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About the Company

Trimeris, Inc. (Nasdag: TRMS) is a biopharmaceutical
company based in Morrisville, North Carolina. The company is
engaged in the discovery, development and commercializa-
tion of new drugs for the treatment of viral diseases. Our core
technology platform focuses on compounds that inhibit viral

replication by blocking viral fusion with healthy immune cells.

FUZEON® (enfuvirtide), approved by the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration (FDA) and European Commission in 2003,
is the first in a new class of anti-HIV drugs called fusion
inhibitors. For more information about FUZEON, please visit

www.fuzeon.com.

Steven D. Skolsky
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Skolsky brings almost twenty-five years of U.S.
and international commercial and clinical develop-
ment experience to his role as Chief Executive
Officer of Trimeris. Mr. Skolsky came to Trimeris
from GlaxoSmithKline (GSK), where he most
recently managed product strategy and worldwide
clinical development for the GSK portfolio as
Senior Vice President, Global Commercial Strategy.
Mr. Skoisky had previously served as Managing
Director of GlaxoSmithKline's operations in New
Zealand and Australia, successively. Mr. Skolsky's
previous leadership as Vice President of Sales and
Marketing of the HIV/Oncaology division at Glaxo
Wellcome firmly grounded his expertise in HIV
where he oversaw the launch of some of the most
successful AIDS drugs — Epivir® (3TC®) and
Combivir®. Mr. Skolsky is a graduate of the
University of North Carolina at Chapet Hill.




The start of Trimeris’ second decade in 2004 coincided
with the first full year of FUZEON® (enfuvirtide) com-
mercial success. FUZEON is the first representative of
a new class of Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)
drugs approved by the U.S. FDA in seven years. The
entry of FUZEON into the marketplace has fulfilled the
promise of the scientific discovery on which our com-
pany was founded, and its success has now become
the unwavering focus of our team.

To Our Shareholders
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We are aligning our objectives to achieve focus on
four critical strategic imperatives:
e Portfolio & Commercialization
+ Maximizing FUZEON use among those who wil
benefit from our product’s ability to fight HIV in
combination with other drugs;
¢ Focusing our Research and Development
(R&D) efforts on efficacy, convenience and
ease-of-use of FUZEON and next generation
fusion inhibitors; and
¢ Building our pipeline with new products of our
own invention or through acquisition.
s fFiscal management with an emphasis on our
cash position and eliminating unnecessary costs.
o Value creation for our shareholders and partners.
e Establishing a culture of trust that values, recog-
nizes and rewards individual and team contribu-
tions, as well as overall achievement in executing
our strategy.

Achievements
2004 was a year of significant achievements, including:
¢ Steady growth of FUZEON in its first full year post-
launch with worldwide sales of $135MM repre-
senting growth of $100MM over 2003,

e A 31% reduction in operating expenses resulting
in a 39% improvement in our net loss versus 2003;

e |ncreased product penetration with steady
growth in new and total prescriptions of 87% and
37%, respectively;

e Reimbursement approval for FUZEON in all major
European markets: '

e Full approval of FUZEON from the FDA and
European Medicines Evaluation Agency (EMEA)
based upon 48-week safety and efficacy data;

e Significant progress in research and develop-
ment of next-generation drug candidates, which
could improve convenience and durability of
clinical response; and

s Expanded distribution of FUZEON in the United
States to all specialty and retail pharmacy outlets.

FUZEON Strategy

The focus of our strategy for FUZEON is to serve all
patients who would benefit from our product due to
the outstanding clinical profile that this new class of
antiretroviral (ARV) agents provides. At the 2002
World Aids Conference in Barcelona, the very first
data emerging from the phase Il TORO studies of
FUZEON were hailed as one of the most significant
advancements in combating HIV to date. This new
class of ARV's—fusion inhibitors—demonstrated
statistically significant and superior activity against
pan-resistant HIV compared to the best combination
of approved ARV's. Patients receiving FUZEON as
part of their HIV regimen achieved levels of HIV sup-
pression and immune system restoration that were
previously unattainable. Since that time, FUZEON has
continued to prove its efficacy in combating HIV.
We are now focused on conveying results from new
clinical trials as well as on programs that will improve
the ease of initiating FUZEON therapy and retain
patients over time through improvements in their
therapeutic experience.

Emerging clinical data from three major studies
showing FUZEON to be a powerful new treatment
strategy for patients who have experience using
agents from each of the traditional classes of HIV
drugs forms the platform of our commercialization
efforts. The results from these studies indicate that the
use of FUZEON with an active, boosted protease
inhibitor can deliver unprecedented virological and
immunological response heretofore seen in patients
initiating their first antiretroviral treatment. These data
clearly demonstrate that FUZEON is the preferred
agent for achieving maximum HIV suppression and
immune restoration in treatment-experienced patients
and presents the opportunity to achieve undetectable
HIV status and thus redefine treatment success in this
population. The opportunity to achieve this goal can
be expanded as new agents, particularly other
inhibitors of HIV entry, become available.

This growing body of clinical evidence is not only
consistent with new treatment guidelines from the
International AIDS Society and the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services but has also created an
excellent opportunity for Trimeris to gain conviction
and support from healthcare practitioners to prescribe
FUZEON more broadly.

In addition to an enhanced marketing program
based on the new clinical data and the final FDA
approval, work is underway to develop needle-free
delivery systems for FUZEON. in 2004, we demonstrated
the bioequivalence of the Biojector® 2000 device com-
pared to standard syringe needles used in administer-
ing FUZEON. As a result, we have since submitted a
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supplemental New Drug Application (sNDA) to the
FDA in May 2005, and we continue to explore promis-
ing alternative syringe and needle systems such as
small gauge insulin needles. This effort could play an
important role in improving patient acceptance and
the overall patient experience with the product.

Inan effort to provide improved continuity of care,
our nursing support praograms have been enhanced to
provide a broad network of highly experienced HIV
nurses 1o interact directly with patients, clinicians and
AIDS service organizations who are key to accept-
ance @f FUZEON and to continuity of care for patients
who enter into therapy. We have also embarked on a
number of post-marketing clinical studies designed to
help patients initiate and sustain FUZEON-based
therapies. We will pursue further work on needle-free
systems, and our R&D team is assessing the role that
FUZEON could play in earlier lines of treatment as well
as a substitute for other HIV therapies that have
unacceptable toxicities.

The Future of HIV-AIDS Treatment
The evolution of care and the advent of new treatments
have undoubtedly had a major impact on long-term
survival rates in patients with HIV. However, there is room
for improvement. The U.S. Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention has indicated that there has been a 37%
increase in young people aged 13-24 who are living with
HIV. This alarming statistic is underscored by data con-
cerning patient compliance and persistence with cur-
rent regimens—patients who do not adhere to their
treatments do not survive. This challenges our company
to provide a product that not only will be useful in the
fight against HIV-AIDS, but one that will be used consis-
tently to ensure long-term treatment success.
Resistance to existing medications raises another
ominous issue. A 2004 study indicated an overall
resistance rate of 76% in a cohort of treatment-experi-
enced patients, and the recent case of an HIV infected
individual in New York City, published in the journal
Lancet, demonstrated the challenge of treating
patients who have rapidly progressing disease with
significant multi-drug resistance. In the New York
case, the virus exhibited full sensitivity to only one
drug, FUZEON, which further demonstrates its utility
in treating multi-drug resistant virus. Our research
team intends to better define the role that fusion
inhibitors ¢an play in the future of therapy, and we
believe FUZEON could develop as an essential back-
bone to many future treatment regimens.

Company Outlook
As we look ahead to 2005, we look forward to other
key milestones:

e Conducting additional clinical studies to support
the expanded use of FUZEON;

e The approval of the sNDA for needle-free sys-
tems, which will allow Trimeris and our partner,
Roche, to actively promote advantages of
needle-free systems in conjunction with FUZEON,;

e The generation of additional quality-of-life and
pharmacoeconomic data to support the value
of FUZEON,;

» Achieving our geal of declaring a next generation
clinical candidate by year-end; and

e The approval of new agents that demonstrate the
profound benefit of combining FUZEON into new
treatment regimens.

Great progress has been made following the
redesign of our R&D organization into a matrix
structure and focusing our efforts on advancing the
next generation fusion inhibitor targeting a product
profile with improved efficacy, convenience and ease
of administration.

We have an ambitious agenda for the years
ahead and look forward to sharpening cur focus
by building our leadership team, gaining additional
traction with a refined set of commercial initiatives,
developing our pipeline with our revitalized R&D
organization, and enhancing business development
capabilities. The strong foundation and core that
brought our revolutionary new therapy to the market-
place provides us a significant head start for our
next decade.

We possess an innovative, first-in-class, technology,
a well conceived and focused strategy, and a highly
motivated team committed to building our enterprise
and delivering success. | thank you, our shareholders,
for your ongoing encouragement and support, and look
forward to our continued growth in 2005.

Ve

Steven D. Skolsky .
Chief Executive Officer
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PARTI

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not historical fact are forward-looking statements.
These forward-looking statements include statements regarding Trimeris, Inc.’s expectations, hopes, beliefs,
intentions or strategies regarding the future and are subject to a number of known and unknown risks and
uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control. While we believe these statements are accurate, our
business is dependent on many factors, some of which are discussed in the “Risk Factors” and “Business”
sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Many of these factors are beyond our control, and any of these and
other factors could cause actual clinical and financial results to differ materially from the forward-looking
statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The results of our previous clinical trials are not
necessarily indicative of the results of future clinical trials and our previous financial results are not necessarily
indicative of our future financial results. Please read the “Risk Factors™ section in this Annual Report on Form
10-K for further information regarding these factors. We undertake no obligation to release publicly the results of
any revisions to the statements contained in this report to reflect events or circumstances that occur subsequent to
the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company primarily engaged in the discovery, development and
commercialization of a new class of antiviral drug treatments called fusion inhibitors. Fusion inhibitors impair
viral fusion, a complex process by which viruses attach to, penetrate and infect host cells. If a virus cannot enter
a host cell, the virus cannot replicate. By inhibiting the fusion process of particular types of viruses, like the
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV), our first commercial product and our compounds under research offer a
novel mechanism of action with the potential to treat a variety of medically important viral diseases.

In September 2004, Trimeris appointed Steven D. Skolsky as its Chief Executive Officer and a member of
the board of directors. Mr. Skolsky succeeds company founder Dr. Dani Bolognesi, who continues to serve as
Chief Scientific Officer of the company and Vice-Chairman of the board of directors. Drawing on his general
management experience and knowledge of HIV therapeutics, Mr. Skolsky is working with management to set a
clear vision for the future of our Company.

We aspire to become a premier, fully integrated biotechnology company dedicated to innovating therapy for
viral diseases. Our strategy is to create value for patients, caregivers, employees and shareholders by discovering,
developing, and commercializing novel medicines that save and improve lives. Our strengths include a leadership
position in HIV viral entry, world-class peptide drug development expertise and a proven collaborative partner.

Fuzeon is our first-generation HIV fusion inhibitor, developed in collaboration with F. Hoffmann-La Roche
Ltd, or Roche. Fuzeon has been shown to inhibit HIV viral fusion with host cells by blocking the conformational
rearrangement of an HIV protein called gp41. The FDA approved the use of Fuzeon in combination with other
anti-HIV drugs for the treatment of HIV-1 infection in treatment-experienced patients with evidence of HIV-1
replication despite ongoing anti-HIV therapy. The FDA granted accelerated approval for the commercial sale of
Fuzeon in 2003, and commercial sales of Fuzeon began in March that same year. Full approval was granted in
October 2004. Roche also filed an application for European marketing approval of Fuzeon in September 2002
and was granted marketing approval under exceptional circumstances by the European Agency for the Evaluation
of Medicinal Products, in May 2003.

Roche is manufacturing Fuzeon drug substance in its Boulder, Colorado facility. Fuzeon finished drug
product is produced using this drug substance at Roche’s manufacturing facility in Basel, Switzerland, and at
another third party facility. Fuzeon is distributed and sold by Roche through Roche’s sales and distribution
network throughout the world in countries where regulatory approval has been received.




Commercial sales of Fuzeon began in the United States in March 2003. Under our collaboration agreement with
Roche, we share profits equally from the sale of Fuzeon in the United States and Canada. During 2004, net sales of
Fuzeon in the United States and Canada were $85.7 million compared to $28.3 million in 2003. Net sales outside the
United States and Canada were $49.5 million compared to $8.2 million in 2003. Unit sales of Fuzeon are expressed in
kits shipped. A kit represents a one-month supply of Fuzeon for a patient. During 2004, Roche shipped approximately
58,900 kits to paying patients in the United States and Canada.

T-1249 is a second-generation HIV fusion inhibitor that has been investigated successfully in four separate
clinical trials. Phase I/II trials of T-1249 demonstrated satisfactory efficacy and safety, including in patients who had
previously failed on or had developed resistance to Fuzeon. In January 2004, Roche and Trimeris announced that
further clinical development of T-1249 was being put on hold due to technical challenges in achieving a formulation
capable of delivering a once daily injection. The compound’s safety, efficacy and tolerability were not factors affecting
the decision. The clinical trial, T1249-105, was ongoing when the decision was made to put the development of T-1249
on hold. T1249-105 is now a compassionate use protocol for patients that were already receiving T-1249, as these
patients have exhausted all treatment options. To date, 26 patients have completed 96 weeks of treatment with T-1249.
T-1249 remains one of our next-generation drug candidates having established the proof-of-concept in overcoming
Fuzeon resistant virus in the clinic. However, our focus will be to pursue formulations that will allow significantly less
frequent dosing.

Our goal is to continue to strengthen and expand our fusion inhibitor franchise. In January 2004, we announced an
extension of our research agreement with Roche to discover, develop and commercialize the next generation of HIV
gp41 peptide fusion inhibitors. The research agreement will focus on the discovery of new HIV gp41 peptide fusion
inhibitors with enhanced efficacy and resistance profiles along with the investigation of improved formulation and
delivery technologies to enable less frequent and more convenient administration of peptide fusion inhibitors. Our
objective is to develop an HIV gp41 fusion inhibitor that can be administered with significantly less frequent dosing.
Although, the research agreement itself does not require that a specific amount be spent on any annual research plan, at
their discretion, either party has the option to supplement the budgeted research plan at their own additional expense.
We are still in discussions with Roche to define the research plan and budget for 2005.

We are also working with Roche to develop improvements in delivery, convenience and other enhancements to
Fuzeon. We believe that any product enhancements made to Fuzeon could potentially be applied to other HIV gp41
peptide fusion inhibitors as well. We have also established discovery programs outside the scope of our Roche
collaboration, which are focused on the development of small molecule HIV fusion inhibitors that could be
administered orally.

Commercial Products
Fuzeon

Fuzeon is our first marketed product for the treatment of HIV. The FDA has approved the use of Fuzeon in
combination with other anti-HIV drugs for the treatment of HIV-1 infection in treatment-experienced patients with
evidence of HIV-1 replication despite ongoing anti-HIV therapy. The standard approach to treating HIV infection has
been to lower viral loads by using a combination of drugs. There are twenty FDA-approved drugs for the treatment of
HIV.

Fuzeon Mechanisin of Action

Fuzeon is a 36-amino acid synthetic peptide that binds to a key region of an HIV surface protein called gp41.
Fuzeon blocks HIV viral fusion by interfering with certain structural rearrangements within gp41 that are required for
HIV to fuse to and enter a host cell.

In the HIV infection process, the gp120 surface protein is stripped away from the virus after gp120 binds to host
cell receptors. Two specific regions in the gp41 protein are thus freed and can bind to one another and cause the viral
membrane to fuse with the host cell membrane. If Fuzeon is present in the bloodstream, it binds tightly to one of these
regions within the gp41 protein and blocks the structural rearrangement necessary for the virus to fuse with the host
cell. Since the virus cannot fuse with the host cell, it cannot penetrate and release its genetic material into the cell. HIV
infection of the host cell is inhibited, and HIV replication within that cell is prevented.
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Commercial Results

Under our collaboration agreement with Roche, Trimeris and Roche share profits from the sale of Fuzeon in the
United States and Canada equally. This amount is reported as collaboration profit (or loss), as a component of revenue,
in the Statements of Operations. Collaboration profit/loss is calculated as follows: Total gross sales of Fuzeon in the
United States and Canada is reduced by any discounts, returns or rebates resulting in total net sales. Net sales are
reduced by costs of goods sold resulting in gross margin. Gross margin is reduced by selling, marketing and other
expenses related to the sale of Fuzeon, resulting in operating income or loss. The Company’s 50% share of the
operating income or loss is reported as collaboration income or loss. For the year ended December 31, 2004, net sales
of Fuzeon in the United States and Canada totaled approximately $85.7 million compared to $28.3 million in 2003.
During the year ended December 31, 2004, sales, marketing and other expenses exceeded the gross margin from the
sale of Fuzeon resulting in the Company’s 50% share of operating loss from the sale of Fuzeon in the United States of
$16.1 million. Unit sales of Fuzeon are expressed in kits shipped. A kit represents a one-month supply of Fuzeon for a
patient. For the year ended December 31, 2004, Roche shipped approximately 58,900 kits to wholesalers compared to
19,400 kits in 2003. The number of kits shipped and the resulting sales levels may not remain constant and may
increase or decrease in the future.

Roche previously had an exclusive distribution arrangement with Chronimed, Inc. (“Chronimed”) to distribute
Fuzeon in the United States during 2003 and the first part of 2004. This exclusive arrangement terminated on April 26,
2004. Effective April 26, 2004, Fuzeon became available through retail and specialty pharmacies across the U.S. Prior
to April 26, 2004, revenue from product sales had been recognized when title and risk of loss had passed to Chronimed,
which was when Chronimed allocated drug for shipment to a patient. Beginning April 26, 2004, revenue is recognized
when Roche ships drug and title and risk of loss passes to wholesalers.

Under our collaboration agreement with Roche, we receive a royalty based on net sales of Fuzeon, as recorded by
Roche, outside the United States and Canada. For the year ended December 31, 2004, net sales of Fuzeon, as recorded
by Roche, outside the United States and Canada were $49.5 million compared to $8.2 million in 2003. Fuzeon is
commercially available in over thirty-five countries, including all the major countries in Europe.

Regulatory

In October 2004, the FDA granted full approval to Fuzeon. The FDA had previously granted accelerated approval
to Fuzeon on the basis of 24-week data in March 2003. Accelerated approval is a special regulatory status designed to
expedite the approval of therapies for serious or life-threatening illnesses, which provide meaningful benefit to patients
over existing treatments. The traditional approval of Fuzeon was based on results from two Phase LI clinical trials,
called TORO-1 and TORO-2, over 48 weeks which confirmed the durable efficacy and safety of Fuzeon-based
regimens.

In September 2002, Roche filed an application for European marketing approval. Roche received marketing
approval under exceptional circumstances from the European Medicines Evaluation Agency, or EMEA, for use of
Fuzeon in the European Union in May 2003. Roche submitted a full analysis of 48-week clinical data to the Committee
for Human Medicinal Products, or CHMP, in December 2003 seeking a label change for Fuzeon. In April 2004, the
CHMP recommended inclusion of the 48 week data in the label. This was followed by approval by the EMEA for this
label change in June 2004. This approval allows Roche to market Fuzeon using the full 48 week safety and efficacy
data. Outside the United States and the European Union, Roche has received approval and reimbursement for Fuzeon
in over thirty-five countries, and is in the process of negotiating reimbursement from additional countries in which they
plan to market Fuzeon.

Manufacturing

Roche manufactures the bulk drug substance of Fuzeon. Based on our progress and experience to date, we believe
that Roche will be able to produce supply of Fuzeon sufficient to meet anticipated demand. If Fuzeon sales levels do
not meet Roche’s and our expectations, the resuiting production volumes may not allow Roche to achieve their
anticipated economies of scale for Fuzeon. If Roche does not achieve these economies of scale, the costs of goods for
Fuzeon could be higher than previous and current expectations.
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Treatment Guidelines

In October 2004, a panel of experts convened by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services published
updated anti-HIV drug treatment guidelines. For treatment-experienced patients with virologic failure, the panel
recommended Fuzeon be added to an optimized background regimen and that inclusion of Fuzeon as part of new
regimens can add significant antiretroviral activity.,

In July 2004, International AIDS Society (IAS)—USA published anti-HIV drug guidelines that recommend
Fuzeon for use in treatment-experienced HIV patients that require a change in therapy after the second, third, or fourth
drug regimen failure. The guidelines caution that Fuzeon should not be delayed to a point when a patient’s outcome
may be compromised by the inability to combine it with other active anti-HIV drugs. The guidelines further state that
there is no evidence that Fuzeon should be discontinued once a patient achieves a viral load that is below the level of
detection.

While these guideline publications provide guidance to clinicians on the recommended role and use of Fuzeon in
clinical practice, physicians are not required to adhere to these recommendations. The actual use of Fuzeon may or may
not be positively affected by these guidelines.

Optimizing Long-Term Response

In October 2004, we announced that in a retrospective, subset analysis of 48-week data from the TORO Phase III
studies, almost twice as many treatment experienced patients (52%) who took Fuzeon with an active protease inhibitor
(PI) regimen (including at least two other active anti-HIV drugs) achieved undetectable levels of HIV (less than 400
copies/ mL), compared to those receiving an active boosted PI regimen without Fuzeon (27%). Patients taking Fuzeon
with an active boosted PI regimen also experienced a significantly greater immunological response, with a median
increase of 104 CD4 cells / mm3 versus an increase of 57 CD4 cells / mm? among patients receiving an active boosted
PI regimen without Fuzeon.

Earlier Treatment with Fuzeon

Also in October 2004, Trimeris and Roche presented data showing that earlier use of Fuzeon in treatment-
experienced HIV patients results in better treatment outcomes and preserves future drug options. A new analysis of the
TORO studies highlighted the benefits of earlier use of Fuzeon, with regard to both virological outcomes and
preservation of future treatment options. The analysis found that 33% of patients who did not receive Fuzeon in their
regimen at the beginning of the TORO studies developed resistance to at least one active treatment option after week
48 or virological failure. By comparison, only 13% of those who began with a Fuzeon -based regimen experienced loss
of at least one active treatment option after 48 weeks or virological failure. Furthermore, significantly more patients
who were treated with a Fuzeon -based regimen from the outset of the study achieved undetectable levels of HIV (less
than 400 copies/mL), compared to the control arm, even including patients who switched to a Fuzeon -based regimen
after failing a regimen without Fuzeon (32% vs. 22%, respectively). These data indicate that in triple class experienced
patients, a Fuzeon-based regimen should be initiated at the next switch in therapy and not delayed until failure of
additional regimens.

Key Initiatives:2004 and 2005

Given the demonstrated efficacy, durability and safety of Fuzeon-based therapies in treatment experienced
patients, we are focusing much of our promotional efforts on three primary objectives; expanding the adoption and
initiation of therapy with Fuzeon, enhancing retention of patients on therapy, and ensuring full access for individuals
that have been prescribed Fuzeon. We have developed and are implementing specific programs that address these three
objectives. These programs complement our more traditional marketing and sales efforts and specifically address the
issues pertaining to chronic use of an injectable therapy.

First, Trimeris and Roche have launched two nursing support programs that are designed to augment the existing
Fuzeon Answer Center—a patient treatment hotline. The first of these programs is a local nursing program that offers
virtually full-time support via a dedicated nursing call center for Fuzeon patients. This support includes assistance with
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drug preparation, administration, and the management of ongoing therapy. A total of 2,606 patients received assistance
from the Fuzeon Answer Center in 2004, with an additional 161 patients enrolled in our outreach support initiative.
The second program utilizes a team of nurses specially trained on the preparation and administration of Fuzeon, who
travel to physician’s offices or patient’s homes to assist with the proper use of the drug. Through the first four months
following initiation (as of December 31, 2004), 275 patients had received assistance from this program. We believe
that these adherence and persistency initiatives will continue to improve patient retention from the first week of therapy
initiation and address some of the problems identified in our field experience to date.

Second, we are initiating various promotional campaigns. At the time of commercial launch in 2003, we believed
that demand for Fuzeon would exceed our ability to manufacture drug supply in the period immediately following
launch. As a result, we conducted limited direct promotion to stimulate demand during 2003. Now that supply
limitations have been overcome, and given the broader experience with Fuzeon among clinicians and patients, we are
positioned to leverage and communicate their experiences in the broadest manner possible. Trimeris and Roche are
working to heighten awareness of Fuzeon through ongoing advertising and promotional campaigns. These print and
internet campaigns, directed to patients, clinicians, pharmacists, nurses, and treatment educators, were implemented
across the U.S. in 2004 and will continue in various forms in 2005.

Prior to launch, only about 250 of the top 2,000 AIDS treating physicians in the U.S. had any experience with
Fuzeon. This differs from other HIV medications that had very large Expanded Access Programs (EAP) prior to
launch, allowing for a greater number of physicians and patients to have experience with the medication prior to
approval. Because of prior supply constraints, we were unable to have an EAP of the size and scope associated with
most HIV products. We believe that more than 2,500 physicians in the United States have prescribed Fuzeon through
December 31, 2004. We now have the physician and patient experience that most HIV drugs experience when they
launch. '

To address the needs of treatment experienced patients living with HIV disease, Trimeris and Roche have
launched the Fuzeon Accelerated Simultaneous Access Program (ASAP). This new initiative provides immediate
access to Fuzeon for patients who are starting treatment with Fuzeon in combination with an investigational anti-HIV
drug obtained through an expanded access program (EAP). Fuzeon ASAP helps to facilitate simultaneous initiation of
Fuzeon with an active investigational agent in a regimen deemed medically appropriate by a physician. For patients
starting treatment with Fuzeon in combination with an investigational drug in expanded access, Fuzeon ASAP provides
up to a 60-day supply of Fuzeon at no cost to the patient, which consists of an immediate shipment of a 30-day supply
and an additional 30-day supply if reimbursement. is still pending. Upon request, patient support and adherence
programs, including at-home nurse visits, are provided to help facilitate successful initiation and continuation of
therapy throughout the duration of treatment. Trimeris and Roche cannot ensure access to Fuzeon for all patients
beyond the initial 60 days if reimbursement is not then established. However, reimbursement assistance is available to
assist in securing coverage for continued Fuzeon use.

In order to further enhance a patient’s ability to initiate and remain on Fuzeon containing therapies, we have
initiated a number of studies to assess the acceptance and utility of novel subcutaneous injection (SCI) delivery
systems. Among these are the Becton Dickinson 31 gauge, thin-walled syringe/needle (BD31G) and the Biojector 2000
(B2000) needle-free delivery system. The BD31G is a shorter, insulin-type of needle that may afford more consistent
SCI dosing that may lead to improvement in the incidence or severity of potential injection site reactions associated
with Fuzeon administration. The BD31G is currently being evaluated in the Phase [Ib/IV study known as T-20
Qualité. We anticipate publishing the findings of the T-20 Qualité study later this year. The B2000 has been used to
deliver millions of injections in a wide range of healthcare settings since receiving FDA approval in 1996. Since 1996,
the use of the B2000 has ranged from vaccine administration to chronic therapy dosing for multiple sclerosis and
diabetes. B2000 needle-free injection works by forcing medication rapidly through a tiny orifice held against the skin.
This creates a fine stream of high-pressure fluid that penetrates the skin and deposits medication in the tissue beneath.
Patient satisfaction surveys conducted by Bioject and their partners indicate a high preference (>70%) for drug
administration via this. needle-free system for a range of medications as compared to conventional needle/syringe
delivery. The reasons expressed for such préferenqe include élimination of needle-phobia, ease .of injection process,
and. amelioration of injection site reactions. Recently, we have completed a single-dose cross-over trial with Fuzeon
known as T-20 405 that was designed to compare the Bioject B2000 needle-free injection device with a standard
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needle/syringe administered by a health care practitioner. Data from this trial indicates that in this setting use of the
needle-free device results in biocequivalent levels of Fuzeon when compared to the standard needle/syringe. A second
study has been proposed which is designed to compare the Bioject B2000 needle-free injection device with standard
needle/syringe self-administration. We plan to pursue labeling discussions with regulatory agencies to allow the
promotion of the administration of Fuzeon via the B2000 system.

Phase III Clinical Trials of Fuzeon
Trial Design

TORO-1, a 48-week Phase III clinical trial was conducted in North America and Brazil. The trial evaluated the
activity and safety of Fuzeon in 491 HIV-infected patients who had previously used all three classes of currently-
approved anti-HIV. drugs. In this clinical trial, all patients received an individually optimized background regimen of
three to five anti-HIV drugs other than Fuzeon. In the control group, patients received only the optimized background
regimen which was selected based on the patient’s treatment history and the genotype and phenotype of the patient’s
virus. A genotypic resistance analysis involves examination of the genetic sequence of the strains of virus present in
the sample. A phenotypic resistance analysis involves an assessment of the ability of a drug to block infection caused
by strains of a virus grown in culture.

TORO-2, a 48-week Phase III clinical trial was conducted in Western Europe and Australia. The protocol for
TORO-2 was substantially similar to TORO-1 and studied 504 HIV-infected patients.

Clinical Trial Resuilts

In 2003, we presented data from a 48-week pooled analysis of TORO-1 and TORO-2. The primary endpoint for the
clinical trials, the difference in the magnitude of decrease in HIV viral loads between the Fuzeon group and the control
group, was met in both the TORO-1 and TORO-2 clinical trials and was statistically significant. Additionally, the increase
of CD4 count from baseline and suppression of viral load below the level of detection were also statistically significant.
An increase in CD4 cell count is indicative of immune system restoration and is important in reducing the likelihood of
opportunistic infection. The following table summarizes the 48-week pooled data, calculated in accordance with FDA
guidelines. Patients in the control group that experienced virologic failure after eight weeks on therapy were allowed to
add Fuzeon, with or without changing their background regimen. The last observations for viral load and CD4 cell count
prior to the regimen change for these patients was used for analysis of the group response. All data depicted below were
statistically significant. Stated otherwise, the statistical measures, p-values, for all the data shown below were less than
0.05. In both of the trials, the p-values for the primary endpoints were less than 0.0001.

POOLED

Fuzeon Control
Primary Endpoint
Mean decrease in viral load (I081g) - -« vt it e 1.48 0.63
Mean decrease in viral load (% reduction) .. ........ ..t e 97 77
Incremental reduction of viral load (logg) .. ... ..o oo 0.85 —
Secondary Endpoints
Mean increase in CD4 cell count (cells/cubic millimeter) .. ..ottt in i, 91 45
Patients achieving viral load below 400 copies (%) ... ...ttt 30 12
Patients achieving viral load below 50 copies (%) . ...t i 18 8
Patients achieving viral load reduction greater than 1.0log,o (%) ......... .. .. .. . ... 37 17
Patients experiencing virologic failure (%) . ....... ... i 52 78
Other Data
Patients discontinuing from trial (%) .. .. oot e 27 25
Patients discontinuing from trial for virological failure (%) ............. .. i .. 6 10
Patients discontinuing from trial for injection site reactions (%) ...........vvuiirieneenenn. .. 4 —
Patients switching from control to Fuzeon (%) . ......... . i — 66




The response of patients in the Fuzeon group surpassed that of the control group across all subgroups studied,
including age, race, baseline CD4 count and baseline viral load. In both treatment groups, greater viral load reduction
was seen in patients who had more active drugs in their optimized background regimen, less treatment experience and
less advanced disease, defined as a patient with a CD4 count greater than 100 cells.

The superiority of virological response achieved with Fuzeon-based regimens was observed regardless of the
number of active agents in the background regimen. Among patients whose virus was sensitive to one drug in the
background regimen, 29% of patients in the Fuzeon group achieved levels of HIV below 400 copies, compared to 7%
in the control group. Among patients whose virus was sensitive to two active agents in the background regimen, 39%
of patients achieved levels of HIV below 400 copies in the Fuzeon group at 48 weeks compared to 15% in the control
group. These results were statistically significant.

48-Week Efficacy Data

Combined TORO-1 and TORO-2 48-week data showed that 30% of patients in the Fuzeon group had undetectable
levels of HIV, defined as less than 400 copies per milliliter of blood, compared to 12% in the control group. In
addition, 80% of the patients in the Fuzeon group who achieved a reduction of HIV viral load to below 400 copies per
milliliter of blood at 24 weeks maintained this response at 48 weeks, compared to 70% in the control group. Thirty-
seven percent of patients in the Fuzeon group maintained at least a 90%, or 1.0 log,,, reduction in blood levels of HIV
at 48 weeks compared to 17% of patients in the control group. Previous clinical studies in HIV have shown that a 68%,
or 0.5 log;y reduction in HIV levels may be associated with clinical benefit to patients. On average, patients in the
Fuzeon group experienced an increase of twice as many CD4 immune cells from baseline as those achieved by patients
in the control group at 48 weeks. In addition, the median duration of virological benefit in the Fuzeon group of 32
weeks was approximately three times longer than the median duration of 11 weeks in the control group. All of these
results were highly statistically significant.

96 Week Efficacy Data

In July 2004, we announced data from patients in TORO-1 and TORO-2 that have completed 96 weeks of
treatment with Fuzeon. Fuzeon durably suppresses HIV and provides continuous increases in CD#4 celis over a period
of 96 weeks.

Additional analyses indicate that there is a distinct disadvantage to patients who wait to initiate Fuzeon based
therapy. In the TORO study, patients originally randomized to the control group were allowed to add Fuzeon to a re-
optimized regimen at virological failure or after 48 weeks on study. Data continued to be collected from these patients
that we have now defined as the “switch” patient. Patients in the Fuzeon treatment group from the outset of the studies
achieved a mean viral load reduction in blood levels of HIV of 2.1 log,, through 96 weeks of treatment. This reduction
was markedly greater than that achieved by the “switch” patients who achieved a mean reduction in viral load at 96
weeks of 1.1 log,,. Patients in the Fuzeon treatment group saw continuous improvements in CD4 cells over the study
period with the mean CD4 increase from baseline of 166 cells per cubic millimeter at week 96 compared to 116 cells
per cubic millimeter in the “switch” patient group.

More than half of treatment-experienced patients who began using Fuzeon at the outset of the study were
successful in completing 96 weeks of treatment.

Impact of Fuzeon on Activities of Daily Living

Data collected from a survey of patients in TORO-1 and TORO-2 suggest that subcutaneous delivery of Fuzeon
was well-accepted by a majority of patients after 48 weeks of treatment.

Conducted among 492 patients in TORO-1 and TORO-2 at week 48, the survey assessed whether the
subcutaneous delivery of Fuzeon influenced a patient’s ability to conduct normal activities of daily living, or ADL.
Most patients reported little or no impact of injection on familiar routines of work (81%), sleep (90%), social life
(84%), travel (65%), intimacy (77%), or privacy (69%). These findings suggest that motivated patients who receive
instruction were able to manage self-injection with little difficulty and without the need for substantial changes in daily
routines.




The survey ‘found that 67% of patients scored self-injection as “very easy” or “easy.” Other responses were
“neutral” (18%), “difficult” (13%) and “very difficult” (3%). Most patients also rated as “very easy” or “easy” various
activities relating to the preparation and usage of Fuzeon, such as administration (67%), dissolution of study drug
(78%), refrigeration (79%) and disposal of needles/syringes (79%).

Results from this survey after 48 weeks of treatment suggest that subcutaneous injection of Fuzeon was
manageable for a majority of patients. Data was collected from 581 patients remaining on treatment at 24 weeks. After
24 weeks, most patients reported little or no impact of injection on familiar routines of work (85%), sleep (90%), social
life (84%), travel (68%), intimacy (77%), privacy (70%), or appearance (75%).

. Safety Results i

The following safety results reflect the data included in the original FDA-approved package insert for Fuzeon. The
overall safety profile of Fuzeon is based on 1,188 subjects who received at least one dose of Fuzeon during various
clinical trials. This includes 1,153 adults, 608 of whom received the recommended dose for greater than 24 weeks, and
35 pediatric subjects. Assessment of adverse events is based on the pooled data from the two Phase III studies, TORO-
1 and TORO-2.

Local Injection Site Reactions. Local injection site reactions, or ISRs, were the most frequent adverse events
associated with the use of Fuzeon. In TORO-1 and TORO-2, 98% of subjects had at least one local ISR. Three percent
of subjects discontinued treatment with Fuzeon because of ISRs. The majority of ISRs were associated with mild to
moderate pain at the injection site, redness, induration and the presence of bumps. Nine percent of patients had local
reactions that required analgesics or limited usual activities.

Other Adverse Events. Serious allergic reactions have been attributed to Fuzeon in less than 1% of patients and
in some cases have recurred upon subsequent re-dosing. The events most frequently reported in patients in the Fuzeon
group, excluding injection site reactions, were diarrhea (26.8%), nausea (20.1%), and fatigue (16.1%). These events
were also commonly observed in the control group and occurred more frequently: diarrhea (33.5%), nausea (23.7%),
and fatigue (17.4%).

An increased rate of bacterial pneumonia was observed in the Fuzeon group in TORO-1 and TORO-2, compared
to the control group. There were 4.68 pneumonia events per 100 patient-years in the Fuzeon group, versus 0.61 events
per 100 patient-years in the control group. Approximately half of the study subjects with pneumonia required
hospitalization. One subject death in the Fuzeon group was attributed to pneumonia. Risk factors for pneumonia
included low baseline CD4 cell count, high baseline viral load, intravenous drug use, smoking and a prior history of
lung disease. It is unclear if the increased incidence of pneumonia was related to Fuzeon use. The study design, which
allowed patients in the control group that experienced virologic failure after eight weeks on therapy to change their
regimen to a Fuzeon containing regimen, may have contributed to this observation. Trimeris and Roche are studying
this further in an epidemiology study of pneumonia in HIV-infected patients on antiretroviral therapy.

48-week Safety Data

The 48-week analysis of safety data from the combined TORO-1 and TOROQ-2 trials revealed that, on at least one
study visit, 98% of patients in the Fuzeon group experienced at least one localized ISR, such as pain/discomfort,
redness, hardness, bumps, itching or bruising. Less than 5% of patients discontinued treatment due to ISRs. Due to a
substantial difference in the duration of treatment for patients in the Fuzeon group compared with the control group,
the rate of adverse events was measured as number of events per 100 years of patient experience. Aside from ISRs, the
incidence of the three most common adverse events was less frequent in the Fuzeon group compared to the control
group. Adverse events included diarrhea (38 per 100 patient-years in the Fuzeon group vs. 73 in the control group),
nausea (27 vs. 50, respectively) and fatigue (24 vs. 38, respectively). Other common signs and symptoms reported at a
lower frequency in the Fuzeon group than the control group were headache, insomnia, and vomiting. Among events
reported more commonly in the Fuzeon group compared to the control group were pain or numbness in the peripheral
nervous system, weight decrease, decreased appetite, swelling of lymph nodes and pneumonia. Other than treatment-

" emergent eosinophilia, grade 3 and grade 4 laboratory abnormalities, when adjusted for exposure, generally showed
higher rates in the control group compared to the Fuzeon group. The eosinophilia was not assomated with clinical
events of hypersensitivity in either treatment group.



96-week Safety Data

No new safety issues were identified in the 96-week analysis, and there was no evidence of long-term or
cumulative toxicities. Rather, patients in the Fuzeon treatment group experienced less diarrhea, nausea and fatigue, side
effects often associated with anti-HIV drug therapy. The frequency and severity of injection site reactions remained
constant and did not increase in severity over 96 weeks.

Current and Future Fuzeon Clinical Trials

We expect to continue our ongoing clinical trials as well as initiate new clinical trials with Fuzeon during 2005.
These trials will focus on the following primary needs for current and potential Fuzeon patients: evaluation of new
delivery systems that may reduce needle-phobia and/or ameliorate the rate/severity of injection site reactions; the effect
of Fuzeon in patients with less treatment experience than in our TORO trials; and the potential for reducing other anti-
HIV drug related toxicities and/or adverse events. The table below summarizes our current on-going, or recently
completed, clinical trials.

Name Description

T20-401 Pilot trial of once daily administration of Fuzeon vs. standard twice daily regimen.

T20-405 Single dose crossover study comparing needle-free injection device vs. standard needle/syringe
administered by a health care professional.

ENF-404 Multi-dose crossover study comparing needle-free injection device vs. standard needle/syringe with
self-administration.

T20 Qualité Quality of life study of standard needle and syringe vs. 31g needle and insulin syringe.

T20 Intense Comparative trial in earlier line patients assessing ongoing Fuzeon use compared to an induction/

maintenance approach.

T20 SwitchTox An assessment of the substitution of ARV’s associated with undesirable side-effects/toxicities in
favor of Fuzeon.

The T20-405 and ENF-404 trials involve the use of the currently approved Biojector 2000 needle-free injectiori
device manufactured by Bioject Medical Technologies, Inc., described above.

Collaborations
Roche

We have entered into a worldwide agreement, as amended, with Roche to develop and market Fuzeon and T-1249,
or a replacement compound. Our agreement with Roche grants them an exclusive, worldwide license for Fuzeon and
T-1249 and certain other peptide compounds in the field of HIV. Roche may terminate its license as a whole or for a
particular country or countries in its sole discretion with advance notice. We will share development expenses and
profits for Fuzeon and T-1249, or a replacement compound, in the United States and Canada equally with Roche.
Outside of the United States and Canada, Roche will fund all development costs and pay us royalties on net sales of
Fuzeon and T-1249, or a replacement compound, for a specified term. In addition, the agreement calls for Trimeris to
receive up to $68 million in upfront and milestone payments, of which we have achieved $28.3 million as of December
31, 2004. Our collaboration with Roche is a contractual one and is not a separate legal entity. Consequently, we have
no investment in any collaboration entity. All assets used in the manufacture of Fuzeon by Roche are owned and
operated by Roche.

Roche is responsible for the sales, marketing and distribution of Fuzeon; all sales are made through their sales
force. The results of our commercial operations are reported on our financial statements as “Collaboration profit/loss”
which is calculated as follows: Total gross sales of Fuzeon by Roche in the United States and Canada is reduced by
estimates for discounts, rebates and returns resulting in total net sales. Net sales are reduced by costs of goods sold
resulting in gross margin. Gross margin is reduced by selling and marketing expenses and other expenses related to the
sale of Fuzeon, resulting in operating income or loss. The Company’s 50% share of the operating income or loss is
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reported as collaboration income or loss. This information is disclosed below in “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation—Critical Accounting Policies—Collaboration Loss.”

Substantially all of the data used to calculate the Collaboration income or loss is derived from information
provided by Roche. We compare sales amounts to data from third party services such as IMS for accuracy. Roche’s
estimate of discounts, rebates and returns is first reviewed by Trimeris marketing personnel based on their knowledge
of the payor mix and other factors and is then reviewed by the Trimeris finance staff. The collaboration has a North
American Joint Marketing Committee, or NAJMC, that oversees the commercialization activities related to Fuzeon.
The NAJMC consists of representatives from Roche and Trimeris. The NAJIMC reviews the budgets for the direct
marketing costs and Roche sales force costs charged to Fuzeon and the costs of departments at Roche that devote time
on Fuzeon-related issues, such as government affairs and reimbursement. The actual costs are reviewed by the Trimeris
NAJMC members and compared to budgeted amounts prior to inclusion in collaboration income/loss. In the event that
we are not satisfied after reviewing the actual costs, we will withhold payment until presented with satisfactory
documentation or appropriate adjustments to the charges are made. Historically the calculation of the collaboration
income/loss has been consistent from period to period but we cannot guarantee that fluctuations will not occur.

We recognize 50% of the total Collaboration profit/loss, which includes estimates made by and recorded by Roche
for reductions to gross sales for expected returns of expired products, government rebate programs, such as Medicaid
reimbursements, and customer incentives, such as cash discounts for prompt payment. Estimates for government rebate
programs and cash discounts are determined by Roche based on contractual terms, historical information from Roche’s
anti-HIV drug portfolio, and Roche’s expectations regarding future utilization rates for these programs. Estimates for
product returns are based on an on-going analysis of industry return patterns and historical return patterns by Roche for
its anti-HIV drug portfolio. This includes the purchase of third-party data by Roche to assist Roche and us in
monitoring channel inventory levels and subsequent prescriptions for Fuzeon. We also monitor the activities and
clinical trials of our key competitors and assess the potential impact on future Fuzeon sales and return expectations
where necessary. Expected returns for Fuzeon are generally low as Fuzeon has a high Wholesale Acquisition Cost, or
WAC, compared to other anti-HIV drugs, and requires significantly more storage space than other anti-HIV drugs due
to the size of a monthly kit because Fuzeon requires twice daily injections. Consequently wholesalers tend to stock
only the necessary volumes of Fuzeon inventory. We believe that wholesalers hold about three weeks supply that has
been sold by Roche to wholesalers, but not yet purchased by patients. The current shelf life of Fuzeon is 36 months.
Roche reviews the estimates discussed above on a quarterly basis and adjusts estimates as appropriate for changes in
facts or circumstances. This estimate reduces our share of collaboration income or loss under our collaboration
agreement.

We have also entered into a research agreement with Roche to discover, develop and commercialize additional
anti-HIV gp41 fusion inhibitor peptides. Pursuant to the agreement, Trimeris and Roche agreed to share the worldwide
research, development and commercialization expenses and profits from the worldwide sales of anti-HIV gp41 fusion
inhibitor peptides created after July 1, 1999. Although, the research agreement itself does not require that a specific
amount be spent on any annual research plan, at their discretion, either party has the option to supplement the budgeted
research plan at their own additional expense. At present we are still in discussions with Roche to define the research
plan and budget for 2005. Our agreement with Roche grants them an exclusive, worldwide license for these peptides.
Either party may terminate the agreement as a whole or for a particular drug, country or countries in its sole discretion
with advance notice. In 2004, we announced that Trimeris and Roche had renewed the joint research obligations under
the agreement through December 31, 2005.

Array Biopharma

In 2001, we entered into an agreement with Array BioPharma, Inc., or Array, to discover orally-available small
molecule fusion inhibitors of HIV and respiratory syncytial virus, or RSV. We will initially screen a library of small
molecule compounds provided by Array against HIV and RSV fusion protein targets. A small molecule is defined as a
molecule that has a molecular weight of less than 2000 daltons. Array will use its drug discovery platform to select the
optimal lead compounds. We will collaborate with Array to identify preclinical candidates, and we will be responsible
for further development of those candidates. Array will provide the initial library of compounds on a non-exclusive
basis and will work exclusively with us on the HIV fusion protein targets during the term of the collaboration. We will
work with Array on a non-exclusive basis on these targets. Array will be entitled to receive payments and royalties
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based on achievement of certain developmental and commercial milestones. In June 2004, the companies announced
the renewal of this research agreement. As part of this renewed agreement, Trimeris will screen small molecule
compounds created by Array against HIV entry inhibitor targets. The terms of the agreement are substantially similar
to those of the initial agreement, signed in 2001.

Neokimia, Inc.

In 2002, we entered into an agreement with Neokimia Inc., or Neokimia, to discover and develop small molecule
HIV fusion inhibitors. We will initially screen a library of small molecule compounds provided by Neokimia.
Neokimia will use its proprietary drug discovery platform to optimize lead compounds. We will collaborate with
Neokimia to identify preclinical drug candidates. Neokimia will provide the initial library of compounds on a non-
exclusive basis and will work exclusively with us on the HIV gp41 fusion protein target during the term of the
collaboration. We exercised our option to select an additional target to add to the collaboration related to HIV fusion.
We will work with Neokimia on a non-exclusive basis on these targets. We, with Neokimia, will equally fund all
research activities through the declaration of a development candidate. We will be responsible for all future clinical
development, regulatory and commercial activities on a worldwide basis. Neokimia will be entitled to receive
payments and royalties on net product sales based on achievement of certain developmental and commercial
milestones. Neokimia also has an option to co-fund clinical development activities for development compounds
through the end of Phase I human clinical trials, in exchange for increased royalties on net product sales. In December
2003, Neokimia merged with Tranzyme, Inc., or Tranzyme, and Tranzyme acquired Neokimia’s rights and obligations
under the 2002 agreement.

Research

As part of our business strategy, we conduct research and development activities both internally and with our
collaborative partners. Our research efforts focus primarily on treating viral diseases by identifying novel mechanisms
for blocking viral fusion. In total, our research and development (R&D) expenses for 2004 were $21.3 million,
compared with $36.8 million for 2003 and $51.2 million for 2002.

Viral Fusion Inhibitors

Viruses utilize the intracellular machinery of a cell to make components that are necessary for viral replication.
Viruses cause disease when their uncontrolled replication interferes with the basic function of the invaded cells. The
attraction of a virus to the cell it infects is based upon a specific interaction between the receptors on the surface of the
target cell and the virus.

Viral infection of cells occurs through a cyclical, multi-step process, consisting of viral entry, intracellular
replication and release. Once the viral genetic material is inside the target cell, this material then directs the target cell
to produce viral proteins and enzymes that are necessary to complete the replication cycle of the virus. When viral
replication is completed, newly formed viruses are released from the cell. These newly formed viruses spread by
infecting new cells. The cycle is repeated when the replicated virus infects the new cells.

Currently marketed antiviral therapies typically target specific enzymes that viruses use to replicate. Other
compounds that are in clinical development, including ours, focus on the entry of the viruses into target cells. We have
pioneered the discovery and development of a new class of anti-HIV compounds, called fusion inhibitors, that prevents
one of the crucial steps in viral entry from occurring by blocking the conformational rearrangement of HIV required to
allow HIV to fuse with a host cell. Fuzeon is a first-generation fusion inhibitor that prevents HIV from entering and
infecting cells. T-1249 is a rationally designed second-generation fusion inhibitor. Our third generation, or next
generation peptides, are also rationally designed peptides with the goal of being long-acting and having an enhanced
resistance profile as compared to Fuzeon.

Novel HIV gp41 Peptide Fusion Inhibitors. One of the goals of the research agreement with Roche is to identify
technologies that improve our anti-HIV peptides. This could be achieved through improving the potency and/or the
time that a peptide remains active in the bloodstream, commonly referred to as the molecule’s half-life. This improved
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half-life may be achieved by attaching additional molecular entities to a peptide. The resulting dosing regimen could be
significantly less frequent than the current twice-daily subcutaneous injection that Fuzeon requires.

Another goal of the research agreement is to discover a peptide with an enhanced resistance profile. This profile
could include effectiveness against HIV strains that may become resistant to other HIV gp41 peptide fusion inhibitors.
A second resistance profile improvement would be a peptide that makes it more difficult for HIV to generate resistant
virus strains to the peptide, therefore improving the durability of the peptide in therapy. We believe these resistance
profile improvements could lead to additional market acceptance of such a peptide.

With respect to our next generation peptide program, our intention is to identify a next generation fusion inhibitor
candidate that has an optimized virological and pharmacokinetic profile as well as to identify a sustained-release
formulation for that peptide that will allow significantly less frequent dosing. We, together with our partner Roche, are
currently researching several promising anti-viral peptides, with the hope of selecting one of these peptides for
advanced pre-clinical studies. In the near future, we plan to select a lead candidate and a back-up candidate that will
proceed to advanced formulation studies. The results of these studies will determine how rapidly we move towards
naming a clinical candidate.

Other Research Programs

Fuzeon Product Optimization. We believe we may be able to improve upon the potential product attributes of
Fuzeon by enhancing methods of delivery. Fuzeon is currently delivered via a twice-daily subcutaneous injection. We
believe that incremental improvements in delivery convenience could enhance its market acceptance resulting in
enhanced adoption, broader use and improved therapy adherence over time. We are currently working with Roche to
explore more convenient delivery, such as use of smaller gauge needles, needle-free delivery devices, multi-dose vials,
and other enhancements. We continue to evaluate the ability to administer Fuzeon once daily with the current
formulation in the clinical trial known as T20-401. While we are no longer actively pursing once daily dosing
formulations of Fuzeon with our internal research efforts, we continue to evaluate the technologies of third parties that
might allow once daily dosing.

Small Molecule HIV Fusion Inhibitors. We also have discovery programs that are focused on orally available
small molecule HIV fusion inhibitors. The development of small molecule HIV fusion inhibitors is not within the
scope of our collaboration with Roche. We have entered into two agreements with Array BioPharma, Inc., and
Neokimia, Inc., to discover small molecule fusion inhibitors of HIV.

Sales, Marketing and Distribution

Trimeris does not exercise direct control over the sales, marketing or distribution of Fuzeon. We currently rely on
Roche for the sales, marketing and distribution of Fuzeon and, if they are approved by the FDA, any other drug
candidates covered by our collaboration with Roche, in accordance with the marketing terms contained in our
development and license agreement with Roche. Roche may terminate this agreement at any time with advance notice.
If Roche fails to market Fuzeon or our other drug candidates, if approved, adequately, we do not have the ability under
our collaboration agreement to establish our own sales, marketing or distribution capabilities. If Roche ceases to
market Fuzeon or our other drug candidates by terminating our agreement, and we were unable to reach agreement
with one or more other marketing partners, we would be required to develop internal sales, marketing and distribution
capabilities. We may not be able to establish cost-effective sales, marketing or distribution capabilities or make
arrangements with third parties to perform these activities on acceptable terms on a timely basis, if at all. This would
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and the market price of our
stock.

Our agreement with Roche and any sales, marketing or distribution arrangements we establish with other parties
gives Roche, and may give those parties, significant control over important aspects of the commercialization of Fuzeon
and our other drug candidates, including:

« market identification;
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« marketing methods;

* pricing;

e drug positioning;

* composition and deployment of sales force; and

» promotional effort and activities.

We may not be able to control the amount or timing of resources that Roche or any third party may devote to our
drug candidates.

Roche previously had entered into an exclusive distribution arrangement with Chronimed, Inc. to distribute
Fuzeon in the United States during the initial commercial launch in 2003 and the first part of 2004. This exclusive
arrangement terminated in April 2004 and Fuzeon became available through retail and specialty pharmacies across the
U.S. This development has enhanced and simplified access to Fuzeon for patients and their healthcare providers by
allowing physicians to write prescriptions for Fuzeon in the same manner as they prescribe other medications.
Furthermore, patients are now able to get Fuzeon from the retail or specialty pharmacy of their choice, including
Chronimed. “

Patents, Proprietary Technology and Trade Secrets

Our success will depend, in part, on our ability, and the ability of our collaborators or licensors, to obtain
protection for our products and technologies under United States and foreign patent laws, to preserve our trade secrets
and to operate without infringing the proprietary rights of third parties.

We own or have exclusive licenses to 35 issued United States patents, numerous pending United States patent
applications, and certain corresponding foreign patents and patent applications. Most of our United States patents
issued to date are currently set to expire between 2013 and 2022.

We also rely on trade secrets, know-how and other proprietary information, which we seek to protect, in part,
through the use of confidentiality agreements with employees, consultants, advisors and others. These agreements may
not provide adequate protection for our trade secrets, know-how or other proprietary information in the event of any
unauthorized disclosure. Our employees, consultants or advisors could disclose our trade secrets or proprietary
information to competitors, which would be detrimental to us.

We have an exclusive, worldwide, royalty-bearing license from the New York Blood Center under certain U.S.
and foreign patents and patent applications relating to certain HIV peptides. Under this license we are required to pay
the New York Blood Center a royalty equal to one-half of one percent of the net sales of Fuzeon up to $100 million in
a calendar year, and one-quarter of one percent of net sales in excess of $100 million for that calendar year. For 2004,
we recognized expense of approximately $575,000 for royalty payments due to the New York Blood Center related to
the sales of Fuzeon.

Competition

We are engaged in segments of the biopharmaceutical industry, including the treatment of HIV, that are intensely
competitive and change rapidly. Fuzeon and any other HIV fusion inhibitors we may develop will compete with
numerous ex'isting therapies. For example, at least 20 drugs are currently approved in the United States for the
treatment of HIV. In addition, a number of companies are pursuing the development of novel pharmaceutical products
that target HIV. Some companies, including several multi-national pharmaceutical companies, are simultaneously
marketing several different drugs and may therefore be able to market their own combination drug therapies. We
believe that a significant number of drugs are currently under development and will become available in the future for
the treatment of HIV.

Fuzeon is delivered via twice daily subcutaneous injections, each delivering 90 mg of Fuzeon. The other approved
anti-HIV drugs are delivered orally at various dosing intervals. We believe that this delivery method is one factor that
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may limit its uptake as compared to other competing drugs. In addition, the Wholesale Acquisition Cost, or WAC, of
Fuzeon is approximately $21,000 for one year of therapy. This price is significantly higher than any of the other
approved anti-HIV drugs. Fuzeon’s price relative to other approved anti-HIV drugs may also limit patient demand.

The need for drugs that have a novel mechanism of action has stimulated interest in the inhibition of HIV entry
into the cell. We believe that several companies are developing or attempting to develop HIV drug candidates that
inhibit entry of the virus into the cell via mechanisms other than fusion. Several companies including GlaxoSmithKline
PLC, Pfizer, Inc., and Schering Plough Corp, are developing CCRS inhibitors that inhibit entry of the virus into the cell
through a different mechanism. These compounds are in various stages of development and none are currently
approved by the FDA,

The standard of care for the treatment of HIV is to administer a regimen that combines drugs from each of the
different classes of anti-HIV drugs. In the event drug candidates are approved that are effective against HIV virus that
has become resistant to currently approved drugs, we believe that using these drugs in combination with Fuzeon may
provide patients with additional treatment options that do not currently exist. These drugs may be both competitive
with Fuzeon in some cases, and synergistic with Fuzeon in other cases.

We believe that there is a significant future market for therapeutics that treat HIV and other viral diseases.
However, we anticipate that we will face intense and increasing competition in the future as new products enter the
market and advanced technologies become available. Existing products or new products for the treatment of HIV
developed by our competitors may be more effective, less expensive or more effectively marketed than any products
eventually commercialized by us. :

Many of our competitors have significantly greater financial, technical and human resources than we have and
may be better able to develop, manufacture, sell, market and distribute products. Many of these competitors have
products that have been approved or are in late-stage development. These competitors also operate large, well-funded
research and development programs. In addition, smaller companies may prove to be significant competitors,
particularly through collaborative arrangements with large pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies. Furthermore,
academic institutions, governmental agencies and other public and private research organizations are becoming
increasingly aware of the commercial value of their inventions for the treatment of HIV and are more actively seeking
to commercialize the technology they have developed.

New developments in our areas of research and development are expected to continue at a rapid pace in both industry
and academia. If our drug candidates are successfully developed and approved, we will face competition based on:

» the safety and effectiveness of the products;

* the convenience of the dosing regimen;

* the timing and scope of regulatory approvals; _

» availability of manufacturing, sales, marketing and distribution capabilities;

» reimbursement coverage;

s price; and

* patent position.

Our competitors may develop more effective or more affordable technology or products, or achieve earlier patent
protection, product development or product commercialization than we can. Our competitors may succeed in

commercializing products more rapidly or effectively than we can, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations and the market price of our stock.

Government Regulation

Human pharmaceutical products are subject to lengthy and rigorous preclinical testing and clinical trials and other
extensive, costly and time-consuming procedures mandated by the FDA and foreign regulatory authorities. The
regulatory approval process includes:

* the establishment of the safety and effectiveness of each product candidate; and
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» confirmation by the FDA that good laboratory, clinical and manufacturing practices were maintained during
testing and manufacturing.

This process typically takes a number of years, depending upon the type, complexity and novelty of the
pharmaceutical product. This process is expensive and gives larger companies with greater financial resources a
competitive advantage over us.

The steps required by the FDA before new drugs may be marketed in the United States include:
+ preclinical studies; ‘

+ the submission to the FDA of a request for authorization to conduct clinical trials on an investigational new
drug, or IND;

» adequate and well-controlled clinical trials to establish the safety and efficacy of the drug for its intended use;
» adequate control of a reliable manufacturing process;

+ submission to the FDA of a New Drug Application, or NDA; and

+ review and approval of the NDA by the FDA before the drug may be shipped or sold commercially.

In the United States, preclinical testing includes both culture and animal laboratory evaluation and
characterization of the safety and efficacy of a drug and its formulation. Certain laboratories involved in preclinical
testing must comply with FDA regulations regarding good laboratory practices. Preclinical testing results are submitted
to the FDA as part of the IND and, unless there is objection by the FDA, the IND will become effective 30 days
following its receipt by the FDA. Submission of an IND does not guarantee that human clinical trials will ever
commence.

Clinical trials involve the administration of the investigational drug to healthy volunteers or to patients under the
supervision of a qualified principal investigator. These clinical trials typically are conducted in three sequential phases,
although the phases may overlap with one another.

Phase I clinical trials represent the initial administration of the investigational drug to a small group of healthy
human subjects or, more rarely, to a group of selected patients with a targeted disease or disorder. The goal of Phase 1
clinical trials is typically to test for safety, dose tolerance, absorption, bio-distribution, metabolism, excretion and
clinical pharmacology.

Phase II clinical trials involve a small sample of the actual intended patient population and seek to assess the
effectiveness of the drug for the specific targeted indications, to determine dose tolerance and the optimal dose range
and to gather additional information relating to safety and potential adverse effects.

Phase III clinical trials are initiated to establish further clinical safety and effectiveness of the investigational drug
in a broader sample of the general patient population at geographically dispersed study sites in order to determine the
overall risk-benefit ratio of the drug and to provide an adequate basis for all labeling for promotion and use. The results
of the research and product development, manufacturing, preclinical testing, clinical trials and related information are
submitted to the FDA in the form of an NDA for approval of the marketing and shipment of the drug.

The FDA closely monitors the progress of each of the three phases of clinical trials and may, at its discretion,
reevaluate, alter, suspend or terminate the testing based upon the data accumulated to that point and the FDA’s
assessment of the risk/benefit ratio to the patient. Once Phase III trials are completed, drug developers submit the
results of preclinical studies, clinical trials and information on the manufacturing of the drug to the FDA in the form of
an NDA for approval to commence commercial sales. Once submitted, the FDA is required to take action on an NDA
within a specified period of time. FDA action may be any one of the following: approval to market the drug, request for
additional information or denial of approval. FDA approvals may not be granted on a timely basis, or at all.
Furthermore, the FDA may prevent a drug developer from marketing a product under a label for its desired indications,
which may impair commercialization of the product. Similar regulatory procedures must be complied with in countries
outside the United States.
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Congress enacted the Food and Drug Administration Modernization Act of 1997 (FDAMA), in part, to ensure the
timely availability of safe and effective drugs, biologics and medical devices by expediting the FDA review process for
new products. Among other things, FDAMA establishes a statutory program for so-called fast track products, which
are defined as new drugs or biologics intended for the treatment of serious or life-threatening conditions that
demonstrate the potential to address unmet medical needs for such conditions. Under the fast track program, the
sponsor of the new drug or biologic may request the FDA to designate the drug or biologic as a fast track product at
any time during clinical development of the product. FDAMA also provides for “rolling” submission of an NDA for a
fast track product, where a sponsor may submit portions of the application to the FDA on a rolling basis. Drugs
designated for the fast track development program may be considered for priority review and for accelerated approval
based on an endpoint other than that required for full approval.

Our potential drug candidates may never receive commercialization approval in any country on a timely basis, or
at all, even after substantial time and expenditures. If we are unable to demonstrate the safety and effectiveness of our
product candidates to the satisfaction of the FDA or foreign regulatory authorities, we will be unable to commercialize
our drug candidates. This would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and market price of our stock. Even if regulatory approval of a drug candidate is obtained, the approval may
limit the indicated uses for which the drug candidate may be marketed.

We, Roche and any existing or potential future collaborative partners are also subject to various federal, state and
local laws and regulations relating to:

» safe working conditions;
* laboratory and manufacturing practices;
* the experimental use of animals; and

» the use and disposal of hazardous or potentially hazardous substances, including radioactive compounds and
infectious disease agents.

Compliance with these laws, regulations and requirements may be costly and time-consuming and the failure to
maintain such compliance by us or our existing and potential future collaborative partners could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The FDA gave fast track designation for the treatment of HIV-infected individuals to Fuzeon in January 1999 and
to T-1249 in May 1999. In October 2004, the FDA granted Fuzeon full approval.

Drugs are also subject to extensive regulation outside the U.S. In the European Union, there is a centralized
approval procedure that authorizes marketing of a product in all countries in the European Union (which include most
of the major countries in Europe). If this procedure is not used, under a decentralized system an approval in one
country of the European Union can be used to obtain approval in another country of the European Union under
simplified application process. After approval under the centralized procedure, pricing and reimbursement approvals
are also required in most countries. Fuzeon received full approval for use in the European Union in June 2004.

Third-Party Reimbursement and Healthcare Reform Measures

In the United States and elsewhere, sales of prescription drugs depend, in part, on the consumer’s ability to obtain
reimbursement for the cost of the drugs from third-party payors, such as private and government insurance programs.
Third-party payors are increasingly challenging the prices charged for medical products and services in an effort to
promote cost containment measures and alternative health care delivery systems. Because of the high cost of the
treatment of HIV, many state legislatures are also reassessing reimbursement policies for these therapies. If third-party
payor reimbursements for any drugs we commercialize are not available or are not available at a level that will allow us
or our potential collaborative partners to sell these drugs on a competitive basis, our results of operations will be
materially and adversely affected. In addition, an increasing emphasis in the United States on the reduction of the
overall costs of health care through managed care has increased and will continue to increase the pressuie to reduce the
prices of pharmaceutical products. The announcement and/or adoption of these types of proposals or efforts could also
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materially and adversely affect our business, since the amount of revenues that we may potentially be able to generate
in the future for any products we may commercialize could affect an investor’s decision to invest in us, the amount of
funds we decide to spend now on our development and clinical trial efforts, and/or our decision to seek regulatory
approval for certain drug candidates.

Recently, several major pharmaceutical companies have offered to sell their anti-HIV drugs at or below cost to
certain countries in Africa, which could adversely affect the reimbursement climate, and the prices that may be
charged, for HIV medications in the United States and the rest of the world. Third-party payors could exert pressure for
price reductions in the United States and the rest of the world based on these offers to Africa. This price pressure could
limit the amount that we would be able to charge for our drugs.

The WAC of a one year’s supply of Fuzeon in the United States is approximately $21,000. This price is
significantly higher than any of the other approved anti-HIV drugs. Furthermore, the indication approved by the FDA
is for the use of Fuzeon in combination with other anti-HIV drugs. Physicians may not readily prescribe Fuzeon due to
cost-benefit considerations when compared with othér anti-HIV drug treatments. Higher prices could also limit our
ability to receive reimbursement coverage for our drugs from third-party payors, such as private or government
insurance programs. If Roche is unable to obtain and maintain reimbursement from a significant number of third-party
payors, it would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Roche has made significant progress in achieving reimbursement from the various payors in the United States.
Currently Fuzeon is covered by Medicaid in all 50 states, 43 of the state and territorial AIDS Drug Assistance
Programs, or ADAPs, and a majority of private insurers. However there are reimbursement challenges remaining.
Some of the payors require patients to meet minimum medical requirements, such as CD4 cell levels, to receive
reimbursement. Other payors limit the number of patients that can receive reimbursement for Fuzeon under their plans.
And other payors may require co-payments by the patient in order to receive reimbursement for Fuzeon that are
significantly higher than those required for other anti-HIV drugs. We and Roche will continue to actively address these
issues during 2005. Outside the United States, Roche in the process of negotiating reimbursement from the countries in
which they plan to market Fuzeon.

Human Resources

During January of 2004, we and Roche put further clinical development of T-1249 on hold. In connection with
this programmatic change, the Company reduced its workforce by approximately 25%. As of February 15, 2005, we
had 97 full-time employees, including a technical scientific staff of 60. None of our employees are covered by
collective bargaining arrangements, and management considers relations with our employees to be good.

Website

Our website address is www.trimeris.com. We make available free of charge through our website, our annual
report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, our director and officers’ Section
16 reports, and all amendments to these reports as soon as reasonably practicable after filing, by providing a hyperlink
to the EDGAR website directly to our reports.
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RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risks described below before making an investment decision. The risks
described below are not the only ones facing our company. Additional risks not presently known to us or that we
currently deem immaterial may also impair our business operations.

Our business, ifinancial condition or results of operations could be adversely affected by any of these risks. The
trading price of our common stock could decline due to any of these risks, and you may lose all or part of your
investment.

If Fuzeon does not maintain or increase its market acceptance, our business will be materially harmed.

We have invested a significant portion of our time and financial resources since our inception in the development
of Fuzeon. Fuzeon is the only drug candidate for which we have obtained FDA approval. We anticipate that for the
foreseeable future, our ability to generate revenues and profits, if any, will depend entirely on the successful
commercialization of Fuzeon. Commercialization of Fuzeon will require the continued support of Roche and Roche’s
ability to manufacture commercial quantities of Fuzeon on a cost-effective basis with the requisite quality, and Roche’s
ability to successfully market Fuzeon throughout the world.

Fuzeon is delivered via a twice daily dosing by injection under the skin. All of the currently approved drug
treatments for HIV are delivered orally. Patients and physicians may not readily accept daily injections of an anti-HIV
drug treatment, which would limit their acceptance in the market. This delivery method may limit the use of Fuzeon
compared to other competing drugs. Moreover, because peptides are expensive to manufacture, the price of Fuzeon is
higher than the prices of currently approved anti-HIV drug treatments. The WAC of one year’s supply of Fuzeon in the
United States is approximately $21,000. This price is significantly higher than any of the other approved anti-HIV
drugs. Furthermore, the indication approved by the FDA is for the use of Fuzeon in combination with other anti-HIV
drugs, and is more restrictive than the indication for other approved anti-HIV drugs. Physicians may not readily
prescribe Fuzeon due to cost-benefit considerations when compared with other anti-HIV drug treatments. Higher prices
could also limit our ability to receive reimbursement coverage for our drugs from third-party payors, such as private or
government insurance programs. If Roche is unable to obtain and maintain reimbursement from a significant number
of third-party payors, it would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

We rely on Roche to manufacture, market and distribute Fuzeon throughout the world in countries where
regulatory approval has been received. If Roche fails to market Fuzeon adequately, we do not have the ability under
our collaboration iagreement to establish our own sales, marketing or distribution capabilities.

Roche has significant inventory of both finished product and raw materials on hand, if Fuzeon sales do not
increase we could face the risk of significant write-offs.

Commercial sales of Fuzeon began in March 2003. In advance of the commercial launch, Roche manufactured
large quantities of commercial drug product in order to satisfy an anticipated large pent-up demand for Fuzeon. Since
that time, sales levels have not matched the original demand forecasts resulting in larger than anticipated inventories of
raw materials, bulk drug substance and finished drug. These raw materials, bulk drug substance and finished drug
product lots cannot be used beyond a certain date due to shelf-life expiration. If drug product is not sold before
expiration of the shelf-date or if raw materials are not consumed, then Roche may write off these inventories at a
significant expense to us. This would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and the market price of our stock.

We have sustained operating losses since our inception, and we expect these losses to continue.

As of December 31, 2004, our accumulated deficit since beginning our operations in January 1993 was
approximately $370.4 million. We had net losses of approximately $75.7 million in 2002, approximately $65.7 million
in 2003, and approximately $40.1 million in 2004. Since inception, we have spent our funds on our drug development
efforts relating primarily to the development of Fuzeon and T-1249. If Fuzeon sales levels do not increase beyond their
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current levels, we expect that we will incur losses for the foreseeable future and that these losses may increase as we
continue our research and development, preclinical testing, clinical trial and regulatory approval efforts. There can be
no assurance that we will become profitable even if we do achieve increased Fuzeon sales levels.

Any additional financing we obtain may result in dilution to our stockholders, restrictions on our operating
flexibility or the transfer of particular rights to technologies or drug candidates.

If we raise funds by selling equity, equity-like instruments (including offering convertible preferred stock or
convertible debt), we may dilute our stockholders’ percentage ownership interest in us. Any debt financings may
contain restrictive terms that would limit our operating flexibility. Additionally, we may have to obtain funds through
arrangements with collaborative partners. These partners may require us to relinquish rights to our technologies or drug
candidates. Any of these forms of financing could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

If Roche does not meet its contractual obligations to us, our research and development efforts and the
regulatory approval and commercialization of our drug candidates could be delayed or otherwise materially and
adversely affected.

We have entered into an agreement with Roche to develop and market Fuzeon and T-1249, or a replacement
compound, worldwide, manufacture clinical and commercial quantities of these compounds, and help conduct our
clinical trials of these compounds. In addition to sharing with us the development expenses and profits for these
compounds in North America and paying us royalties on net sales of these compounds outside of those countries, the
agreement calls for Trimeris to receive up to $68 million in upfront and milestone payments, of which we have
achieved $28.3 million as of December 31, 2004. In addition, we have entered into a research agreement with Roche to
discover, develop and commercialize other anti-HIV fusion inhibitor peptides. The joint research obligations under the
agreement were renewed in January 2004 through December 31, 2005. Our reliance on Roche in connection with these
activities poses a number of risks, including the following:

* Roche has the right to terminate our development and license agreement, including its marketing provisions,
and terminate or not renew the research agreement, in each case as a whole or with respect to any particular
country or countries, at any time and from time to time in its sole discretion, even though we have a joint
management committee consisting of members from Roche and Trimeris that oversees the strategy for our
collaboration and research;

*  Roche may not devote sufficient resources to the research, development or marketing of Fuzeon, or any other
drugs that may be developed;

* Roche may not devote sufficient resources to manufacture Fuzeon in commercial quantities on a cost-effective
basis and with the requisite quality;

» disagreements with Roche could lead to delays in or termination of the research, development or
commercialization of Fuzeon or future drug candidates, or result in litigation or arbitration;

* Roche may choose to devote fewer resources to the research, development and marketing of Fuzeon or our
future drug candidates than it does to drugs of its own development, or may choose to compete with us by
seeking, on its own or in collaboration with our competitors, alternate means of developing drug therapies for
the diseases we have targeted;

* Roche has the right to establish or change the market prices of Fuzeon or any other drug candidates covered
by the Roche collaboration;

+ disputes may arise in the future with respect to the ownership of rights to technology developed with Roche;
and

+ Roche may be a party to mergers, acquisitions or other corporate transactions in the future that result in a
change in its business strategy relating to our collaboration.

If any of the foregoing occurs or if Roche otherwise fails to fulfill any of its obligations to us in accordance with
our agreements, our research and development efforts and clinical trials, and the regulatory approval and
commercialization of our drug candidates could be delayed or otherwise materially and adversely affected.
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We also may rely from time to time on the services of other third parties in connection with our research and
development and clinical trial activities, including contract research organizations, manufacturers who produce clinical
amounts of our drug candidates, licensors, collaborators and others. The failure of any of these persons to perform their
obligations as agreed may also delay and otherwise adversely affect our research and development, clinical trial
activities and regulatory approval of our future drug candidates.

In order to become profitable we will need to maintain arrangements with third parties for the sale, marketing
and distribution of our current and future drug candidates or expend significant resources to develop these
capabilities.

We have limited experience in sales, marketing and distribution of pharmaceuticals. We currently rely on Roche
for the sales, marketing and distribution of Fuzeon and plan to rely on Roche for these activities for any other potential
drug candidates covered by our collaboration with Roche, in accordance with the marketing terms contained in our
development and license agreement with Roche. Roche may terminate this agreement at any time with advance notice.
If Roche fails to adequately market Fuzeon or our future drug candidates, if approved, we do not have the ability under
our collaboration agreement to establish our own sales, marketing or distribution capabilities. If Roche ceases to
market Fuzeon or our future drug candidates by terminating our agreement, and we were unable to reach agreement
with one or more other marketing partners, we would be required to develop internal sales, marketing and distribution
capabilities. We may not be able to establish cost-effective sales, marketing or distribution capabilities or make
arrangements with third parties to perform these activities on acceptable terms on a timely basis, if at all. This would
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and the market price of our
stock.

Our agreement with Roche and any sales, marketing or distribution arrangements we establish with other parties
gives Roche, and may give those parties, significant control over important aspects of the commercialization of our
drugs, including:

* market identification;

* marketing methods;

* pricing;

¢ drug positioning;

+ composition of sales force; and

» promotional activities.

We may not be able to control the amount or timing of resources that Roche or any third party may devote to our
drug candidates.

If sufficient amounts of Fuzeon or any other drugs we attempt to bring to market cannot be manufactured on a
cost-effective basis, our financial condition and results of operations will be materially and adversely affected.

Peptide-based therapeutics are made from long chains of molecular building blocks called amino acids. Fuzeon is
a large peptide composed of a precise 36-amino acid sequence. Large peptides are difficult and expensive to
manufacture because the process of creating commercial quantities of a large peptide is lengthy and complicated. We
and Roche have selected Roche’s facility in Boulder, Colorado to manufacture commercial quantities of the bulk drug 1
substance of Fuzeon. We and Roche have selected one of Roche’s manufacturing facilities and another third party to
produce the finished drug product from such bulk drug substance through a process involving lyophilization, or freeze-
drying. The process Roche is currently using to manufacture Fuzeon bulk drug substance requires approximately five
months to complete and is extremely complicated, requiring over 100 separate, precisely controlled chemical reactions.
Roche is currently manufacturing Fuzeon bulk drug substance on a commercial scale, and Roche and another third
party are producing the finished drug product on a commercial scale. However, as a result of this complex
manufacturing process, Roche or the other third party may encounter unexpected difficulties or expense in
manufacturing Fuzeon in the future.
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In addition, if sales of Fuzeon do not increase, Roche could be forced to scale back manufacturing at the Boulder
facility to levels that are less than optimal. Diminished sales of Fuzeon will not allow us to achieve the economies of
scale that keep our costs of goods low. Any increase in costs of goods would, in turn, decrease our gross margin and
would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and the market price of
our stock.

We do not control the manufacturing and production schedule at Roche’s Boulder facility where Fuzeon is
manufactured and that we cannot ensure that significant costs associated with scheduling decisions will not be
incurred.

Roche manufactures Fuzeon bulk drug substance at their facility in Boulder, Colorado. Roche coordinates the
manufacture of Fuzeon with the balance of its manufacturing efforts. We do not have input into the manufacturing and
production schedule at Roche, Boulder and Roche’s decisions in this area may result in significant additional cost and
expense relating to the manufacture of Fuzeon,

We are currently in the process of finalizing an amendment to our collaboration agreement with Roche that
addresses several significant payments we have made and will make in the future and we cannot guarantee that
these negotiations will lead to a final agreement.

We have been in discussions with Roche to attempt to clarify the responsibility of each of the parties with respect
to certain expenses under our collaboration agreement. In the event that a final understanding regarding these items is
not reached we could be exposed to significant financial risk and expense that we had previously not expected to be
responsible for. This would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations
and the market price of our stock.

If Roche does not re-new our current research agreement to discover, develop and commercialize novel fusion
inhibitors, we may not be able to proceed with the development of our most promising candidates.

We have entered into an agreement with Roche to discover, develop and commercialize novel fusion inhibitors.
This research agreement covers several of our most promising potential drug candidates. If Roche chooses not to re-
new this agreement after 2005 when it expires, we may not be able to proceed with the development and/or
commercialization of these candidates due to both funding and intellectual property limitations.

We may not be able to effectively develop our drug pipeline.

The antiviral peptides and small molecules in our research programs will require extensive additional
development, testing and investment, as well as regulatory approvals, prior to commercialization. Our product research
and development efforts may not be successful. Our drug candidates may not enter preclinical, nonclinical or clinical
studies as or when anticipated or receive the required regulatory approvals. Moreover, our products, if introduced, may
not be commercially successful. The results of preclinical and initial clinical trials of products under development by us
are not necessarily predictive of results that will be obtained from large-scale clinical testing. Clinical trials of products
under development may not demonstrate the safety and efficacy of such products or result in a marketable product.
Findings in nonclinical studies conducted concurrently with clinical studies could adversely impact the development of
our products. In addition, the administration, alone or in combination with other drugs, of any product developed by us
may produce undesirable side effects in humans.

The failure to demonstrate adequately the safety and efficacy of a therapeutic drug under development could delay
or prevent regulatory approval of the product and could have a material adverse effect on us.

We face intense competition in our efforts to develop commercidlly successful drugs in the biopharmaceutical
industry. If we are unable to compete successfully, our business will suffer.

We are engaged in sectors of the biopharmaceutical industry, including the treatment of HIV, that are intensely
competitive and change rapidly. We expect that new developments by other companies and academic institutions in the
areas in which we are conducting our research and development will continue at a rapid pace.
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Fuzeon and our other drug candidates that are successfully developed will compete with numerous existing
therapies, as well as a significant number of drugs that are currently under development and will become available in
the future for the treatment of HIV. For example:

o At least 20 anti-HIV drugs are currently approved in the United States for the treatment of HIV, including
drugs produced by GlaxoSmithKline, Bristol Myers Squibb, Merck, Roche and Abbott Laboratories. Only one
of these currently-approved drugs, Fuzeon, is a viral fusion inhibitor.

*  We believe that other companies may be currently engaged in research efforts to develop viral fusion
inhibitors. "To our knowledge, none of these potentially competing drug candidates have entered human
clinical trials.

* Several companies, including Panacos, Progenics Pharmaceuticals, Pfizer, Schering-Plough, Tanox, Inc.,
Merck and GlaxoSmithKline, are in early stage human clinical trials with anti-HIV drug candidates that target
viral processes different from those targeted by currently approved anti-HIV drugs, and different from the
viral fusion process that our drug candidates target.

We expect to face intense and increasing competition in the future as these new drugs enter the market and
advanced technologies become available. We cannot assure you that existing or new drugs for the treatment of HIV
developed by our competitors will not be more effective, less expensive or more effectively marketed and sold than
Fuzeon or any other drug treatment that we may develop.

Many of our competitors have significantly greater financial, technical, human and other resources than we do.
Smaller companies may also prove to be significant competitors, particularly through collaborative arrangements with
large pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies. Furthermore, academic institutions, governmental agencies and
other public and private research organizations are becoming increasingly aware of the value of their inventions for the
treatment of HIV and are more actively seeking to commercialize the technology they have developed.

We may not receive all necessary regulatory approvals for future drug candidates or approvals may be delayed.

Our research and development activities and the testing, development, manufacturing and commercialization of
any future drug candidates is subject to regulation by numerous governmental authorities in the United States and, to
the extent that we may be engaged in activities outside of the United States, in other countries. The Federal Food, Drug
and Cosmetic Act, the Public Health Service Act and other domestic and foreign statutes and regulations govern or
affect the testing, manufacture, safety, labeling, storage, record keeping, approval, advertising and promotion of
substances such as our drug candidates, as well as safe working conditions and the experimental use of animals. If our
future drug candidates receive the regulatory approvals necessary for commercialization, we will be subject to
continuing regulatory obligations, such as the submission of safety reports and other post-market information.
Noncompliance with any applicable regulatory requirements can result in refusal of the government to approve product
license applications, criminal prosecution and fines, recall or seizure of drugs, total or partial suspension of production,
prohibitions or limitations on the commercial sale of drugs or refusal to allow us to enter into supply contracts. The
FDA also has the authority to revoke product licenses and establishment licenses that it has previously granted.

A number of reasons, including those set forth below, may delay regulatory submissions for our drug candidates,
cause us or our collaborators to cancel plans to submit proposed drug candidates for approval, or delay or prevent
regulatory approval of proposed drug candidates:

« unanticipated preclinical testing or clinical trial results;

* changes in regulations, or the adoption of new regulations;

» unanticipated enforcement of existing regulations;

* the imposition of additional conditions on marketing or commercialization;

+ limitations on the indicated uses for which our drug candidates may be marketed;

» unexpected technological developments;
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* developments by our competitors; and

* delay in manufacturing validation or scale-up.

HIV is likely to develop resistance to Fuzeon and any of our future drug candidates, which could adversely
affect demand for those drug candidates and harm our competitive position.

HIV is prone to genetic mutations that can produce viral strains resistant to particular drug treatments. HIV has
developed resistance, in varying degrees, to each of the currently approved anti-HIV drug treatments, including
Fuzeon. As a result, combination therapy, or the prescribed use of three or more anti-HIV drugs, has become the
preferred method of treatment for HIV-infected patients, because in combination these drugs may prove effective
against strains of HIV that have become resistant to one or more drugs in the combination. In the clinical trials we have
conducted to date, HIV has demonstrated the ability to develop resistance to Fuzeon, as it has with respect to all other
currently-marketed anti-HIV drugs. If HIV, in a wide patient population, in a short time period, develops resistance to
Fuzeon or our other drug candidates when used in combination therapy, it would adversely affect demand for those
drug candidates and harm our competifive position.

Our business is based on a novel technology called fusion inhibition, and unexpected side effects or other
characteristics of this technology may delay or otherwise adversely affect the development, regulatory approval and/
or commercialization of our drug candidates.

The technology platform underlying our drug development program is novel because it is designed to discover
drug candidates that treat viral infection by preventing the virus from fusing to and entering host cells that viruses use
to reproduce themselves. Historically, anti-HIV therapy has primarily involved the inhibition of specific viral enzymes
that are necessary for HIV to replicate. We are not aware of any other approved anti-HI'V pharmaceutical products that
target the inhibition of viral fusion. As a result, existing preclinical and clinical data on the safety and efficacy of this
technology are somewhat limited. Although the most common adverse side effect reported with respect to Fuzeon to
date has been mild to moderate local skin irritations at the site of injection, we may discover other unacceptable side
effects of our drug candidates, including side effects that may only become apparent after long-term exposure. We may
also encounter technological challenges relating to these technologies and applications in our research and
development programs that we may not be able to resolve. Any such unexpected side effects or technological
challenges may delay or otherwise adversely affect the development, regulatory approval and/or commercialization of
our drug candidates.

We are dependent on the successful outcome of clinical trials for our drug candidates.

The FDA granted full approval for the commercial sale of Fuzeon in October 2004. We do not have any other
drug candidates that have received FDA or any other regulatory authority for approval of commercialization. In order
to obtain the regulatory approvals necessary to sell a drug candidate commercially, we must demonstrate to the FDA
and other applicable United States and foreign regulatory authorities that the drug candidate is safe and effective for
use in humans for each target indication. We attempt to demonstrate this through a lengthy and complex process of
preclinical testing and clinical trials, which typically takes a number of years. We also plan to do post-approval clinical
trials for Fuzeon to provide additional clinical data to aid Roche and our marketing efforts. Our success will depend on
the success of these clinical trials.

We cannot assure you that the results of prior clinical trials will warrant further clinical trials or the submission of
NDAs for any potential drug candidates. We may not be able to demonstrate that potential drug candidates that
appeared promising in preclinical testing and early clinical trials will be safe or effective in advanced clinical trials that
involve larger numbers of patients studied over longer durations. We may be required to redesign, delay or cancel our
preclinical testing and clinical trials for some or all of the following reasons, any of which may adversely affect our
results of operations:

« unanticipated adverse or ambiguous results from our preclinical testing or clinical trials;

» change in the focus of Roche;
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» the inability to achieve an acceptable commercial formulation;
» undesirable side effects that delay or extend the trials;
* our inability to locate, recruit and qualify a sufficient number of patients for our trials;

« difficulties in manufacturing sufficient quantities at the requisite quality of the particular drug candidate or
any other components needed for our preclinical testing or clinical trials;

+ regulatory delays or other regulatory actions;
* change in the focus of our development efforts; and

» re-evaluation of our clinical development strategy.

Given the uncertainty surrounding the clinical trial process, we may not be able to successfully develop,
commercialize and market Fuzeon or any of our other drug candidates, which would severely harm our business,
impair our ability to generate revenues and adversely affect our stock price. :

Obtaining regulatory approvals and maintaining compliance with government regulations will entail
significant costs that could harm our ability to achieve profitability.

Due to uncertainties inherent in the clinical development and government regulatory approval process, we may
underestimate the cost and/or length of timé associated with the development and commercialization of our drug
candidates. We will be required to expend significant resources to comply with regulations affecting research and
development, testing, manufacturing, marketing and commercialization activities for our drug candidates. We do not
separately track as an accounting item the amounts we spend to comply with regulatory requirements, but the majority
of our activities and expenditures to date, including our preclinical and clinical trial activities and expenditures, have
been undertaken directly or indirectly in order to comply with applicable governmental regulations. If compliance with
these regulations proves more costly than anticipated, our financial condition and results of operations could be
materially and adversely affected.

Failure to raise additional capital necessary to support our development programs and expand our operations
could lower our revenues and reduce our ability to compete.

We have incurred significant costs as a result of research and development, clinical trials, and the preparation and
submission of the Fuzeon NDA to the FDA. We have continued to incur significant expenditures related to the
manufacture, sale 'and marketing of Fuzeon. Under the current operating environment, excluding any extraordinary
items, based on current sales levels of Fuzeon, we expect that our existing capital resources, together with the interest
earned thereon, will be adequate to fund our current programs for at least the next 24 months. However, any reduction
in Fuzeon sales below current levels or increase in expenditures beyond currently expected levels would increase our
capital requirements substantially beyond our current expectations. In the event Roche becomes unable or unwilling to
share future development expenses for Fuzeon or other compounds covered by our agreements, our capital
requirements would increase substantially beyond our current expectations. We have an ongoing program of business
development which may lead to the establishment of collaborative or licensing arrangements with third parties. In the
event we enter into additional agreements with third parties, our expenditures may be increased.

We have financed our activities primarily through public offerings and private placements of our common stock,
and we expect tocontinue to rely primarily on sales of our equity securities if we are required to raise additional funds
in the future. Our access to capital could be limited if we do not achieve continued progress in our research and
development programs, preclinical testing and clinical trials, and regulatory approvals for our product candidates. If we
fail to meet the clinical and financial expectations of securities analysts and investors, it could have a material adverse
effect on the market price of our common stock and restrict or eliminate our ability to raise additional funds by selling
equity. We also could be limited by overall market conditions. The public capital markets in which our common stock
trades have been extremely volatile. Our failure to raise additional funds or to generate sufficient revenues to support
our operations would seriously harm our business.
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If we cannot maintain commercial manufacturing arrangements with third parties on acceptable terms, or if
these third parties do not perform as agreed, the commercial development of our drug candidates could be delayed
or otherwise materially and adversely affected.

We do not have any manufacturing experience, nor do we have any manufacturing facilities. We and Roche have
selected Roche’s facility in Boulder, Colorado to manufacture commercial quantities of the bulk drug substance of
Fuzeon. We and Roche have selected one of Roche’s manufacturing facilities and another third party to produce the
finished drug product from such bulk drug substance through a process involving lyophilization, or freeze-drying. The
manufacture of pharmaceutical products requires significant expertise and capital investment. Moreover, under our
agreement with Roche, we are required to reimburse a portion of the expenses incurred by Roche in connection with its
manufacture of Fuzeon. Third-party manufacturers of pharmaceutical products often encounter difficulties in scaling
up production, including problems involving production yields, quality control and assurance, shortage of qualified
personnel, compliance with FDA regulations, production costs, and development of advanced manufacturing
techniques and process controls. Our third-party manufacturers, including Roche, may not perform as agreed or may
not remain in the contract manufacturing business for the time required to successfully produce and market Fuzeon and
our other drug candidates. The number of third-party manufacturers with the expertise and facilities to manufacture
bulk drug substance of Fuzeon on a commercial scale is extremely limited. In addition, only a limited number of third-
party manufacturers have the capability to produce a finished drug product on a commercial scale through a process
involving lyophilization.

Roche’s facility in Boulder, Colorado is the only facility manufacturing Fuzeon bulk drug substance. In the event
the intended manufacturing plan generates insufficient supplies of Fuzeon, or the Boulder facility ceases operation for
any reason, we do not have an alternate manufacturing plan in place at this time, and it would take a significant amount
of time to arrange for alternative manufacturers. We do not have insurance to cover any shortages or other problems in
the manufacturing of Fuzeon or our other drug candidates. If our third-party manufacturers, including Roche, fail to
deliver the required commercial quantities of bulk drug substance or finished drug product on a timely basis and at
commercially reasonable prices, and we fail to promptly find one or more replacement manufacturers or develop our
own manufacturing capabilities at a substantially equivalent cost and on a timely basis, the commercial development of
Fuzeon or our other drug candidates could be delayed or otherwise materially and adversely affected. Dependence
upon third parties for the manufacture of Fuzeon or our other drug candidates may harm our ability to develop and
deliver products on a timely and competitive basis.

If Roche or our manufacturing partners do not maintain good manufacturing practices, it could negatively
impact our ability to obtain regulatory approvals and commercialize our drug candidates.

The FDA and other regulatory authorities must approve the facilities that will be used to manufacture commercial
quantities of our drug candidates before commencement of commercial sales. In addition, these authorities require that
our products be manufactured according to good manufacturing practice regulations. The failure by us, Roche or other
third- party manufacturers to maintain current good manufacturing practices compliance and/or our failure to increase
our manufacturing processes as needed to meet demand for our drugs could lead to refusal by the FDA to approve
marketing applications. Failure in either respect could also be the basis for action by the FDA to withdraw approvals
previously granted and for other regulatory action.

In addition, if we change the source or location of supply or modify the manufacturing process with respect to
Fuzeon or any of our other drug candidates, regulatory authorities will require us to demonstrate that the product
produced by the new source or location or from the modified process is equivalent to the product used in any clinical
trials we have conducted. If we are unable to demonstrate this equivalence, we will be unable to manufacture products
from the new source or location of supply or use the modified process. As a result, we may incur substantial expenses
in order to ensure equivalence, and our ability to generate revenues may be harmed.

Our internal research programs and our efforts to obtain rights to new products from third parties may not
yield potential products for clinical development, which would adversely affect any future revenues.

Our long-term success depends in part on our ability to either identify through internal research programs, or to
obtain through licenses from third parties, potential drug candidates that may be developed into new pharmaceutical
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products. A significant portion of the research that we have conducted and will conduct involves new and unproven
technologies. Research programs to identify drug candidates require substantial technical, financial and human
resources, whether or not such programs identify any drug candidates. Qur research programs may fail to yield drug
candidates for clini¢al development for a number of reasons, including:

» the research methodology used may not successfully identify potential drug candidates;

¢ potential drug candidates may on further study be shown to have unduly harmful side effects or characteristics
that indicate they are unlikely to be effective drugs;

° we may be unable to develop larger scale manufacturing methods for particular drug candidates that are
efficient, cost-effective and capable of meeting stringent regulatory standards; and

» others may hold intellectual property rights that prevent us from developing, making or selling certain
products.

We may be unable to obtain suitable drug candidates or products from third parties for a number of reasons,
including:

* we may be unable to purchase or license such compounds on terms that would allow us to obtain an
appropriate return on our investment in the product;

+ third parties may be unwiiling to assign or license product rights to us if they believe such rights would allow
us to compete with them;

° we may be unable to identify suitable products or drug candidates within our areas of expertise; or

» drug candidates that we acquire may not be approved by regulatory authorities due to problems with their
safety or effectiveness.

If we are unable to develop suitable potential drug candidates through internal research programs or by obtaining
rights to new products from third parties, our future revenue growth will suffer.

We depend on patents and proprietary rights, which may offer only limited exclusive protection and do not
protect against infringement. If we are unable to protect our patents and proprietary rights, our assets and business
could be materially harmed.

Our success depends in part on our ability and the ability of our collaborators and licensors to obtain, maintain and
enforce patents and other proprietary rights for our drugs and technologies. Patent law relating to the scope of claims in
the biotechnology field in which we operate is still evolving and involves a great deal of uncertainty.

Although we own or exclusively license more than 35 issued United States patents, and numerous pending United
States patent applications, corresponding foreign patents and patent applications, including issued patents and patent
applications relating to Fuzeon, the issuance of a patent is not conclusive as to its validity or enforceability, and third
parties may challenge the validity or enforceability of our patents. We cannot assure you how much protection, if any,
our patents will provide if we attempt to enforce them and/or if the patents are challenged in court or in other
proceedings. It is possible that a competitor may successfully challenge our patents or that challenges will result in
limitations of their coverage. In addition, the cost of litigation to uphold the validity of patents can be substantial. If we
are unsuccessful in such litigation, third parties may be able to use our patented technologies without paying licensing
fees or royalties te us. Further, we cannot assure you that our pending patent applications will result in issued patents.
Because U.S. patent applications may be maintained in secrecy until a patent issues or is otherwise published, we
cannot assure you that others have not filed patent applications for technology covered by our pending applications.
Moreover, we cannot assure you that we were the first to invent the technology, which, under U.S. patent law, is a
prerequisite to obtaining patent coverage. In the event that a third party has also filed a U.S. patent application on the
technology, we may have to participate in interference proceedings declared by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office
to determine priority of invention, i.e., which party was the first to invent. The costs of these proceedings can be
substantial, and it is possible that such efforts would be unsuccessful, resulting in a loss of our U.S. patent position.
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Moreover, competitors may infringe our patents or successfully avoid them through design innovation. To prevent
infringement or unauthorized use, we may need to file infringement claims. Such proceedings are expensive and time-
consuming. In addition, in an infringement proceeding, a court may decide that a patent of ours is not valid or
enforceable or may refuse to stop the other party from using the technology at issue on the grounds that its technology
is not covered by our patents. Policing unauthorized use of our intellectual property is difficult, and we cannot assure
you that we will be able to prevent infringement or misappropriation of our proprietary rights, particularly in countries
where the laws may not protect such rights as fully as in the United States.

Recently, several generic drug-makers in countries such as India have offered to sell HIV drugs currently
protected under United States patents to patients in Africa at prices significantly below those offered by the drugs’
patent holders in other countries. There is a risk that these drugs produced by the generic drug-makers could be
illegally made or imported into the United States and other countries at prices below those charged by the drugs’ patent
holders. If any of these actions occur with respect to our drugs, it could limit the amount we could charge for our drugs.

In addition to our patented technology, we also rely on unpatented technology, trade secrets and confidential
information. We may not be able to effectively protect our rights to this technology or information. Other parties may
independently develop substantially equivalent information and techniques or otherwise gain access to or disclose our
technology. We require each of our employees, consultants and corporate partners to execute a confidentiality
agreement at the commencement of an employment, consulting or collaborative relationship with us. However, these
agreements may not provide effective protection of our technology or information or, in the event of unauthorized use
or disclosure, they may not provide adequate remedies.

The occurrence of any of these risks could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and market price of our stock.

The intellectual property of our competitors or other third parties may prevent us from developing or
commercializing our drug candidates.

Other companies, universities and research institutions conduct research and development efforts in market
segments, including viral fusion inhibition and the treatment of HIV infection, where we and our collaborators focus
research and development activities. While we are not aware of any patents held by these third parties that we believe
will limit our ability to use, manufacture, market or sell Fuzeon or our potential drug candidates, these third parties
may have obtained or may obtain patents that do so. We cannot assure you that third parties will not assert patent
infringement or other intellectual property claims against us or our collaborators with respect to technologies used in
Fuzeon or our potential drug candidates. Any claims that might be brought against us relating to infringement of third
party patents may cause us to incur significant expenses and, if successfully asserted against us, may cause us to pay
substantial damages. Even if we were to prevail, any litigation could be costly and time-consuming and could divert the
attention of our management and key personnel from our drug development and commercialization efforts or other
business operations. As a result of a patent infringement suit brought against us, we may have to cease or delay
development activities, unless that party is willing to grant us rights to use its intellectual property. Thus we may have
to obtain licenses from other parties before we could continue using, manufacturing, marketing or selling our potential
drugs. Those licenses may not be available on commercially acceptable terms, if at all. If we do not obtain required
licenses, we may not be able to market our potential drugs at all or we may encounter significant delays in drug
development while we redesign potentially infringing drugs or methods.

Uncertainty relating to third-party reimbursement and health care reform measures could limit the amount we
will be able to charge for our drugs and adversely affect our results of operations.

In the United States and elsewhere, sales of prescription drugs depend, in part, on the consumer’s ability to obtain
reimbursement for the cost of the drugs from third-party payors, such as private and government insurance programs.
Third-party payors are increasingly challenging the prices charged for medical products and services in an effort to
promote cost containment measures and alternative health care delivery systems. Because of the high cost of the
treatment of HIV, many state legislatures are also reassessing reimbursement policies for this therapy. If third-party
payor reimbursements for Fuzeon or any of our other drug candidates that we commercialize are not available or are
not available at a level that will allow us or our current or future collaborative partners to sell these drugs on a
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competitive basis, our results of operations will be materially and adversely affected. In addition, emphasis in the
United States on the reduction of the overall costs of health care through managed care has increased and will continue
to increase the pressure to reduce the prices of pharmaceutical products. The announcement and/or adoption of these
types of proposals or efforts could also materially and adversely affect our business, because the amount of revenue
that we may potentially be able to generate in the future for Fuzeon or any of our other drug candidates could affect an
investor’s decision to invest in us, the amount of funds we decide to spend now on our development and clinical trial
efforts, and/or our decision to seek regulatory approval for certain drug candidates.

The WAC of a one year’s supply of Fuzeon in the United States is approximately $21,000. This price is
significantly higher than any of the other approved anti-HIV drugs. Higher prices could also limit our ability to receive
reimbursement coverage for our drugs from third-party payors, such as private or government insurance programs. If
Roche is unable to obtain and maintain reimbursement from a significant number of third-party payors, it would have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Roche has made significant progress in achieving reimbursement from the various payors in the United States.
Currently Fuzeon is covered by Medicaid in all 50 states, 34 of the state and territorial AIDS Drug Assistance
Programs, or ADAPs, and a majority of private insurers. However there are reimbursement challenges remaining.
Some of the payors require patients to meet minimum medical requirements, such as CD4 cell levels, to receive
reimbursement. Other payors limit the number of patients that they will provide reimbursement for Fuzeon. And other
payors may require co-payments by the patient in order to receive reimbursement for Fuzeon that are significantly
higher than those required for other anti-HIV drugs. We and Roche will continue to actively address these issues during
200s.

Several major pharmaceutical companies have offered to sell their anti-HIV drugs at or below cost to certain
countries in Africa, which could adversely affect the reimbursement climate, and the prices that may be charged, for
HIV medications in the United States and the rest of the world. Third-party payors could exert pressure for price
reductions in the United States and the rest of the world based on these offers to Africa. This price pressure could limit
the amount that we would be able to charge for our drugs.

If an accident or injury involving hazardous materials occurs, we could incur [fines or liability, which could
materially and adversely affect our business and our reputation.

In our drug development programs, we use hazardous materials that are subject to government regulations,
including chemicals, radioactive compounds and infectious disease agents, such as viruses and HIV-infected blood. We
believe that our handling and disposal of these materials comply with the standards prescribed by state and federal
regulations, but we cannot completely eliminate the risk of contamination or injury from these materials. If we fail to
comply with these regulations or if a contamination, injury or other accident occurs in connection with our
development activities, we could be held liable for any damages or penalized with fines. Although our general liability
insurance coverage may cover some of these liabilities, the amount of the liability and fines could exceed our
resources. We currently maintain general liability insurance coverage in the amount of approximately $1 million per
occurrence and $2 million in the aggregate. However, insurance coverage is becoming increasingly expensive and we
may not be able to maintain insurance coverage at a reasonable cost or in sufficient amounts to protect us against
potential liabilities. '

If the testing or use of our drug candidates harms people, we could face costly and damaging product liability
claims far in excess of our liability and indemnification coverage.

Our business exposes us to potential product liability risks that are inherent in the testing, manufacturing and
marketing of pharmaceutical products, such as undesirable side effects or injury during clinical trials. In addition, the
use in our clinical trials of drugs that we or our potential collaborators may develop and the subsequent sale of these
drugs by us or our potential collaborators may expose us to liability risks relating to these drugs.

We have obtained an advanced medical technology policy which includes limited product liability insurance
coverage for our clinical trials in the amount of $10 million per occurrence and $10 million in the aggregate. However,
insurance coverage is becoming increasingly expensive and we may not be able to maintain insurance coverage at a
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reasonable cost or in sufficient amounts to protect us against potential liabilities. We intend to expand our insurance
coverage to include the sale of commercial products if we obtain marketing approval for drug candidates in
development, but we cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain or maintain adequate product liability insurance
on acceptable terms, if at all, or that such insurance will provide adequate coverage against our potential liabilities.
Furthermore, our collaborators or licensees may not be willing to indemnify us against these types of liabilities and
may not themselves be sufficiently insured or have a net worth sufficient to satisfy any product liability claims. Claims
or losses in excess of any product liability insurance coverage or indemnification payments that may be obtained by us
could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition.

QOur quarterly operating results are subject to fluctuations. If our operating results for a particular period
deviate from the levels expected by securities analysts and investors, it could adversely affect the market price of our
common stock.

Our operating results are likely to fluctuate over time, due to a number of factors, many of which are outside of
our control. Some of these factors include:

» the market acceptance and sales levels for Fuzeon;

+ the status and progress of our collaborative agreement with Roche;

» the status of our research and development activities;

» the progress of our drug candidates through preclinical testing and clinical trials;
» the timing of regulatory actions;

* our ability to establish manufacturing, sales, marketing and distribution capabilities, either internally or
through relationships with third parties;

+ technological and other changes in the competitive landscape;
« changes in our existing or future research and development relationships and strategic alliances; and

+ the commercial viability of Fuzeon or our other drug candidates.

As a result, we believe that comparing our results of operations for one period against another period is not
necessarily meaningful, and you should not rely on our results of operations in prior periods as an indication of our
future performance. If our results of operations for a period deviate from the levels expected by securities analysts and
investors, it could adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

If we lose any of our executive management or other key employees, we will have difficulty replacing them. If
we cannot attract and retain qualified personnel on acceptable terms, the development of our drug candidates and
our financial position may suffer.

Because our business is very science-oriented and relies considerably on individual skill and experience in the
research, development and testing of our drug candidates, we depend heavily on members of our senior management
and scientific staff. We have entered into employment agreements with Steven D. Skolsky, our Chief Executive
Officer, Dani Bolognesi, our Chief Scientific Officer and Robert R. Bonczek, our Chief Financial Officer and General
Counsel. Each of these agreements is automatically renewed, subject to termination by either of the parties. We have
entered into employment agreements with all employees that are at the level of Vice President or above. These
agreements have a term of one year and are renewable at the Company’s option.

Future recruitment and retention of management personnel and qualified scientific personnel is also critical to our
success. We cannot assure you that we will successfully attract and retain sufficient numbers of qualified personnel on
acceptable terms given the competition among biotechnology, pharmaceutical and health care companies, universities
and non-profit research institutions for experienced management personnel and scientists. If we cannot attract and
retain a sufficient number of qualified personnel or if a significant number of our key employees depart, our drug
development efforts and the timing and success of our clinical trials may be materially and adversely affected. Even if
we do hire and retain a sufficient number of qualified employees, the expense necessary to compensate them may
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adversely affect our operating results. In addition, we rely on scientific advisors and other consultants to assist us in
formulating our research and development strategy. These consultants are employed by other parties and may have
commitments to, or advisory or consulting agreements with, other entities, which may limit their availability to us.

Our charter requires us to indemnify our officers and directors to the fullest extent permitted by law, which
obligates us to make substantial payments and to incur significant insurance-related expenses.

Our charter requires that we indemnify our directors and officers to the fullest extent permitied by Delaware
corporate law. This could require us, with some legally prescribed exceptions, to indemnify our directors and officers
against any and all expenses, judgments, penalties, fines and amounts reasonably paid in defense or settlement of an
action, suit or proceeding brought against any of them by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director or officer
of Trimeris. In addition, expenses incurred by a director or officer in defending any such action, suit or proceeding
must be paid by us in advance of the final disposition of that action, suit or proceeding if we receive an undertaking by
the director or officer to repay us if it is ultimately determined that he or she is not entitled to be indemnified. We have
also entered into indemnification agreements with each of our directors and executive officers. In furtherance of these
obligations, we maintain directors’ and officers’ insurance in the amount of $40 million. Our policies expire in October
2005. For future renewals, if we are able to retain coverage, we may be required to pay a higher premium for our
directors’ and officers’ insurance than in the past and/or the amount of our insurance coverage may be decreased.

Available Information

We maintain a website on the World Wide Web at www.trimeris.com. We make available, free of charge, on our
website our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, as soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are electronically filed with, or furnished to, the
SEC. Our reports filed with, or furnished to, the SEC are also available at the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We lease approximately 61,000 square feet of laboratory and office space at 3500 Paramount Parkway,
Morrisville, North Carolina. We lease this space under a sublease agreement that expires on January 23, 2015. We also
lease approximately 29,000 square feet of laboratory and office space in Durham under a lease agreement that expires
on September 30, 2005. We also sublease approximately 18,000 square feet of laboratory and office space in Durham
under a sublease agreement that expires on July 31, 2005. We believe that there will be suitable facilities available
should additional space be needed.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not a party to any material legal proceedings as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2004.
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PART II.

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS,
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock has traded on the Nasdaq National Market System under the Nasdag symbol “TRMS” since
our initial public offering at $12.00 per share was consummated on October 7, 1997. We have not paid cash dividends
in the past and none are expected to be paid in the foreseeable future. As of March 7, 2005 we had approximately 124
shareholders of record, and believe we had approximately 11,000 beneficial shareholders. The following table sets
forth the high and low bid prices for our common stock for the period indicated as reported on the Nasdaq National
Market System. Such quotations reflect inter-dealer prices without mark-up, mark-down or commissions and may not
necessarily represent actual transactions.

Year ended December 31,

2004 2003
High Low High Low
1StQuarter . . ... $21.35  $14.14  $47.36  $39.03
2nd QUArTET .. .ot $16.60 $13.06 $55.59  $38.05
Brd QUArter . ... ... $15.54 $10.58  $55.29  $23.58
4th QUArter .. ...t e $16.16 $10.89  $35.63 $19.51
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(in thousands, except per share data)

The selected financial data below is taken from the audited financial statements of the Company, which are
included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, or from audited financial statements not included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Please read the financial statements and notes and “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” while reading this selected financial data.

For the Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Statements of Operations Data:

Revenue: |
MileStONE FEVEIMUE . oottt ettt e et et et eis $ 2152 $ 2964 $ 1,133 $ 1,304 $ 936
Royaltyrevenue .......... ... ... it 4,556 755 — — ~—
Collaboration 1088 . . .ottt e e e (16,125)  (25,515) — — —

Total revenue and collaboration 0SS .. ....... ...t 9,417) (21,796) 1,133 1,304 956

Operating expense:

Marketing eXpense .. ........ouni it — — 16,722 3,825 973
Research and development:
Non-cash compensation ........... ... ... coiiiinian.. 159 ()] 250 (969) 5,386
Other research and development expense .................. 21,154 36,824 50,976 59,409 32,970

Total research and developmentexpense ........................... 21,313 36,323 51,226 58,440 38,356

General and administrative:

Non-cash compensation ..............oveivunnreeneenn.. 311 767 1,645 1,905 7,018
Other general and administrative expense .................. 9,840 7,810 9,340 8,048 7,142

Total general and administrative €Xpense . ..................c.o.... 10,151 8,577 10,985 9,953 14,160

Total operating eXPenSeS . ... ... utuntrn et 31,464 45,400 78,933 72,218 53,489

Operating loSS . ..ot vt (40,881) (67,196) (77,800) (70,914) (52,533)

INterest iNCOME . . . ..ttt et e e e e 953 1,534 2,230 4,362 6,114

INterest EXPENSE . . ..ottt e e (160) (G3)) (108) (189) 257

Total other INCOME (EXPENSE) . . . o vt v vttt 793 1,493 2,122 4,173 5,857

Loss before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ........ (40,088) (65,703) (75,678) (66,741) (46,676)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . . ............... — — — — (4,180)

N 088 & ottt e e $(40,088) $(65,703) 3$(75,678) $(66,741) $(50,856)

Basic and diluted net loss per share (1):

Before cumulative effect of accounting change .. .................... $ (1.86) $§ (3.06) $ (393) $§ (B9 $ (3.00)

Accountingchange . ....... ... .. i — — — — 0.27)

Basic and diluted netloss pershare .................... ... ... ... $ (1.86) $ (3.06) $ (393 $ (396 $ (327

Weighted average shares used in computing basic net

losspershare (1) .. ..ot i e e 21,608 21,460 19,272 16,870 15,548

(1) Computed on the basis described in Note 1 to Financial Statements.

As of December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(in thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents and Investment securities—

available-for-sale ....... ... . ... . . il $ 48402 $ 92,198 $149,182 $ 74800 $ 93374
Working capital ........ ... ... 49,204 75,741 128,389 51,636 73,998
Total @SSELS . .« .ottt e 64,820 98,600 154,539 80,644 98,933
Long-term notes payable and capital lease obligations, less current

installments . .. ... ... — — 321 1,014 1,861
Accumulated deficit ........ ... ... ... o (370,364) (330,276) (264,573) (188,895) (122,154)
Total stockholders’ equity ............ ... ... . 30,346 68,668 130,127 53,494 73,379




Selected Quarterly Financial Data
(in thousands, except per share data)

Q1 2004 Q22004 Q32004 Q4 2004
Statements of Operations Data:
MIIEStONE TEVENUE « . oo\ v oe e e et e et e e e e $ 3526 $ 534 $§ 546 $ 546
Royalty revenue . ... ... ... ...t 801 1,109 1,207 1,439
Collaboration 10SS . . ..ottt e e (2,546) (9,850) (2,280) (1,449)
Total revenue and collaboration 1oss . . ........... .. i (1,219) (8,207) 527 536
Operating expense:
Research and development:
Non-cash compensation . ............... ... . iiiiiiiinaeenn.. (638! 2) 109 103
Other research and developmentexpense .. .......................... 6,300 5,382 5,360 4,112
Total research and development expenses ................ ... .. ... 6,249 5,380 5,469 4,215
General and administrative:
Non-cash compensation .......... ... ... ... .. i il — 12 146 153
Other general and administrative eXpense . ..............c..cuvvneen.n 2,666 2,818 2,344 2,012
Total general and administrative €Xpenses .. ... . ..., 2,666 2,830 2,490 2,165
Total Operating EXPENSES . . . .« oo vt v ettt 8,915 8,210 7,959 6,380
Operating oSS . ... e (10,134) (16,417) (8,486) (5,844)
TREereSt INCOMIE L ..ttt e e e e e 261 199 254 239
TNEEIESE EXPEIISE . . o o vttt e e e ettt e e e e 3 2) (43) (112)
Total Other INCOME, NEL . . . . ..ttt e e e et e 258 197 211 127
N LOSS oottt ettt ettt e $ (9,876) $(16,220) $ (8,275) $ (5,717)
Basic and diluted netloss pershare (1) .. ........ ... ... ... .. ... . ... ... $ (046) $ (075 $ (0.38) $ (0.27)
Weighted average shares used in computing basic net loss per share (1) ............ 21,582 21,610 21,617 21,625
Q12003 Q22003 Q32003 Q42003
Statements of Operations Data:
Revenue . ...
MIIESEONE TEVEIMUE . . . o v\t e et et e e et e ettt $ 236 $ 750 $ 989 $ 989
Royalty revenue . ... ... ... e — 87 234 434
Collaboration 10SS . . ... oot e 4,452)  (5,763)  (5,231) (10,069)
Total revenue and collaboration 10Ss . .. .. .. .. .. i i (4,216) (4,926) (4,008) (8,646)
Operating expense:
Researchand development: .. ....... ... ... .. . ... . i
Non-cash compensation . ............... .o, (60) 203 (125) (19)
Other research and development expense .. ............. .. ........... 9,683 10,694 10,850 5,597
Total research and developmentexpense ............ ... 9,623 10,897 10,725 5,578
General and administrative:
Non-cash compensation ........... ... .. uiiiiiniiinnanunenan.. 412 233 122 —
Other general and administrative exXpense ........................... 2,168 2,399 2,088 1,155
Total general and administrative eXpense ... ............oiiiiiiiii.., 2,580 2,632 2,210 1,155
Total OPerating EXPeNSES . . . . o v vttt ettt ettt e 12,203 13,529 12,935 6,733
Operating 1oSs .. .. ...t (16,419) (18,455) (16,943) (15,379)
INtErest iNCOME . .. .ottt i e e et e e e e 506 414 323 291
INTErest EXPENSE . . . oottt e (15) (11) 9 6)
Total other income, DBt ... ... ... 491 403 314 285
Nt 0SS .ottt et e e $(15,928) $(18,052) $(16.629) $(15,094)
Basic and diluted net loss pershare (1) .................. S $ (075) $ (0.84) $ I $ (0.70)
Weighted average shares used in computing basic net loss per share (1) . ........... 21,375 21,418 21,513 21,525

(1) Computed on the basis described in Note 1 to Financial Statements. The sum of quarterly net loss per share amounts may not equal the net loss

per share for the year due to the effects of rounding.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read together with the financial
statements and notes contained elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Certain statements in this section and
other sections are forward-looking. While we believe these statements are accurate, our business is dependent on many
factors, some of which are discussed in the “Risk Factors” and “Business” sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-
K. Many of these factors are beyond our control and any of these and other factors could cause actual clinical and
financial results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
The results of our previous clinical trials are not necessarily indicative of the results of future clinical trials. Please read
the “Risk Factors” section in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We undertake no obligation to release publicly the
results of any revisions to the statements contained in this report to reflect events or circumstances that occur
subsequent to the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

OVERVIEW

Trimeris is a:biopharmaceutical company engaged in the discovery, development and commercialization of novel
therapeutic agents for the treatment of viral disease. The core technology platform of fusion inhibition is based on
blocking viral entry into host cells. FUZEON, approved in the U.S., Canada and European Union, is the first in a new
class of anti-HIV drugs called fusion inhibitors. Trimeris is developing FUZEON and future generations of peptide
fusion inhibitors in collaboration with F. Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd, or “Roche.”

In order to enhance our performance management is addressing several critical success factors. These critical
success factors are broken down into short-term and mid- to long-term.

Short — Term Critical Success Factors and Initiatives:

Work to increase the market acceptance of Fuzeon: Fuzeon is delivered twice daily through subcutaneous
injections. Injection site reactions are the most common adverse event associated with the use of Fuzeon. Management
believes that aversion to twice daily injections and the potential for injection site reactions are the primary impediments
to increasing the market acceptance of Fuzeon. We, together with Roche, are working on several initiatives to increase
the market penetration of Fuzeon including:

* Alternative delivery methods aimed at improving acceptance of subcutaneous injections and reducing injection site
reactions;

+ Nursing programs to help facilitate patient self-administration of and persistency on Fuzeon; and

» Medical Education and promotional programs focusing on the appropriate use of Fuzeon for patients with ongoing
viral replication who have been exposed to drugs from the three other anti-HIV classes (so-called third-line patients
and beyond).

Focusing our research and development efforts:  We, together with our partner Roche, are currently researching
several promising anti-viral peptides, with the hope of selecting one of these peptides for advanced pre-clinical studies.
In the near-future, we plan to select a lead candidate and back-up candidate that will proceed to advanced formulation
studies. The results of these studies will determine how rapidly we move towards naming a clinical candidate.

Managing our resources and liquidity: We ended 2004 with $48.4 million in cash, cash equivalents and
investment securities—available-for-sale. Under the current operating environment, excluding any extraordinary items,
based on current sales levels of Fuzeon, we believe that this will be sufficient to support our operations for at least the
next 24 months. We will continue to evaluate opportunities to increase our liquidity. We will also continue to look for
opportunities to increase our operational effectiveness.

Our people: Our people are very important to the operations of our business. Our success depends on the
continued services and on the performance of our senior management and staff. In 2005, we will continue to create a
culture of trust that values employee contributions and recognizes and rewards open communication, accountability
and achievement.
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Mid- to Long - Term Critical Success Factors and Initiatives

Enhance development of our product pipeline: The focus on our next generation peptide, as mentioned above, is
one aspect to the development of our pipeline. We will also look to business development to strengthen our pipeline
primarily through acquisitions and in-licensing of research programs and clinical stage products.

Overview of Roche Relationship

In July 1999, we entered into a worldwide agreement with Roche, to develop and market Fuzeon and T-1249, or a
replacement compound. In the United States and Canada, we and Roche share equally in development expenses and
profits for Fuzeon and T-1249, or a replacement compound. Outside of these two countries, Roche will fund all
development costs and pay us royalties on net sales of these products.

Development costs for these compounds are incurred by both Roche and Trimeris. Quarterly, we reconcile the
amounts expended and one party pays the other party on a 50/50 basis. Roche holds the New Drug Application, or
NDA, for Fuzeon and is responsible for all regulatory issues and communications with the Food and Drug
Administration or FDA.

Fuzeon was approved for commercialization in the United States in March 2003 and sales began in March 2003. It
is important to recognize that Roche is responsible for the manufacture, sales, marketing and distribution of Fuzeon.
Roche is manufacturing bulk quantities of Fuzeon drug substance in its Boulder, Colorado facility. One of Roche’s
manufacturing facilities and another third party are producing the finished drug product from such bulk drug substance.
The finished drug product is then shipped to a Roche facility for distribution. Roche’s sales force is responsible for
selling Fuzeon. Under our collaboration agreement we do not have the ability or rights to co-market this drug or field
our own Fuzeon sales force. All third party contracts for manufacturing, distribution, sale, and reimbursement are
between Roche and the third party. We are not a party to any of the material contracts in these areas. Roche provides us
with information on manufacturing, sales and distribution of Fuzeon. Roche is responsible for estimating reductions to
gross sales for expected returns of expired products, government rebate programs, such as Medicaid reimbursements,
and customer incentives, such as cash discounts for prompt payment. We review these items for accuracy and
reasonableness. We receive 50% of the product profit for the United States and Canada.

We receive royalties on sales of Fuzeon in countries outside of the United States and Canada. Roche is responsible
for all activities related to Fuzeon outside of the United States and Canada, including regulatory, manufacturing, sales
and distribution. We receive a quarterly royalty report from Roche that summarizes these sales and the royalty amounts
due to Trimeris.

Currently, our only significant source of revenue is from the sale of Fuzeon. Selling, marketing and other charges
in the United States and Canada exceeded the gross margin from the sale of Fuzeon in these countries during the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, resulting in negative cash flow from the sale of Fuzeon in these countries. During
the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, our share of this negative cash flow exceeded royalties received from
the sale of Fuzeon outside these countries. As a result, we had negative cash flow from the collaboration agreement
during the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

We are in the process of finalizing an amendment to our collaboration agreement with Roche. This amendment
will clarify certain responsibilities of the parties under the collaboration agreement. To date we have reached an
agreement in principle regarding certain key terms of this amendment. With respect to the understanding we have with
Roche pertaining to amounts owed for capital contributions and manufacturing milestones, we have recorded these
amounts as of December 31, 2004 on the assumption that we will execute an agreement with terms substantially the
same as those we have agreed to in principle.

Historical Information Necessary to Understand our Business

We began our operations in January 1993 and, prior to April 1, 2003, we were a development stage company.
Accordingly, we have a limited operating history. Since our inception, substantially all of our resources have been
dedicated to:

= the development, patenting, preclinical testing and clinical trials of our drug candidates, Fuzeon and T-1249,
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* the development of a manufacturing process for Fuzeon and T-1249,

* production of drug material for future clinical trials of Fuzeon and T-1249,

» preparation of materials for regulatory filings for Fuzeon,

+ pre-marketing and marketing activities for the commercial launch of Fuzeon, and

» research and development and preclinical testing of other potential product candidates.

We have lost inoney since inception and, as of December 31, 2004, have an accumulated deficit of approximately
$370.4 million. We may never generate significant revenue from product sales or royalties.

Development of current and future drug candidates will require additional, time-consuming and costly research
and development, preclinical testing and extensive clinical trials prior to submission of any regulatory application for
commercial use. We expect to incur losses for the foreseeable future and these losses may increase if our research and
development, preclinical testing, drug production and clinical trial efforts expand. The amount and timing of our
operating expenses will depend on many factors, including:

» the sales levels and market acceptance achieved by Fuzeon,

» the production levels for Fuzeon, which affect the economies of scale in the production process and our cost of
goods sold,

* the status of ouriresearch and development activities,
» product candidate discovery and development efforts, including preclinical testing and clinical trials,
* the timing of regulatory actions,

* the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecuting, maintaining, protecting and enforcing patent claims and other
proprietary rights, ‘

*  our ability to work with Roche to manufacture, develop, sell, market and distribute Fuzeon,
» technological and other changes in the competitive landscape,
* changes in our existing or future research and development relationships and strategic alliances,
* development of any future research and development relationships or strategic alliances,
* evaluation of the.commercial viability of potential product candidates, and
» other factors, many of which are outside of our control.

As a result, we believe that period-to-period comparisons of our financial results are not necessarily meaningful.
The past results of operations and results of previous clinical trials should not be relied on as an indication of future
performance. If we fail to meet the clinical and financial expectations of securities analysts and investors, it could have
a material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock. Our ability to achieve profitability will depend, in
part, on our own or Roche’s ability to successfully develop and obtain and maintain regulatory approval for Fuzeon or
other drug candidates, and our ability to develop the capacity, either internally or through relationships with third

parties, to manufacture, sell, market and distribute approved products, if any. We may never achieve profitable
operations, even if Roche achieves increased Fuzeon sales levels.

Research and Development

The following discussion highlights certain aspects of our on going and planned research and development
programs and commercialization efforts. The results of our previous clinical trials are not necessarily indicative of the
results of future clinical trials.

Fuzeon®, enfuvirtide (formerly known as T-20)

Fuzeon is our first-generation HIV fusion inhibitor, a new class of anti-HIV drugs. The FDA has approved the use
of Fuzeon in combination with other anti-HIV drugs for the treatment of HIV-1 infection in treatment-experienced
patients with evidence of HIV-1 replication despite ongoing antiretroviral therapy. Anti-HIV drugs are referred to as
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antiretroviral agents. The standard approach to treating HIV infection has been to lower viral loads by using a
combination of drugs other than fusion inhibitors that inhibit one of two of the viral enzymes that are necessary for the
virus to replicate: reverse transcriptase and protease. There are currently three classes of drugs that inhibit these two
enzymes: nucleoside reverse transcriptase inhibitors, or NRTIs, non-nucleoside reverse transcriptase inhibitors, or
NNRTIs, and protease inhibitors, or PIs. We refer to NRTIs and NNRTIs collectively as RTIs. There are eleven FDA-
approved RTIs and nine FDA-approved Pls.

In March 2003, the FDA granted accelerated approval for the commercial sale of Fuzeon, and commercial sales of
Fuzeon began in March 2003. Roche received accelerated FDA approval of Fuzeon based on 24-week clinical data
from two Phase III pivotal trials for Fuzeon. In October 2004, the FDA granted full approval based on results from
Phase 111 clinical trials over 48 weeks.

Roche filed an application for European marketing approval in September 2002. Roche received marketing
approval under exceptional circumstances from the European Medicines Evaluation Agency, or EMEA, for use of
Fuzeon in the European Union in May 2003. Roche submitted a full analysis of 48-week clinical data to the Committee
for Human Medicinal Products, or CHMP, in December 2003 seeking a label change for Fuzeon. In April 2004, the
CHMP recommended inclusion of the 48 week data in the label. This was followed by approval by the EMEA for this
label change in June 2004. Outside the United States and the European Union, Roche has received approval and
reimbursement for Fuzeon in over thirty-five countries, and is in the process of negotiating reimbursement from
additional countries in which they plan to market Fuzeon.

Manufacturing

Roche manufactures the bulk drug substance of Fuzeon. Based on our progress and experience to date, we believe
that Roche will be able to produce supply of Fuzeon sufficient to meet anticipated demand. If Fuzeon sales levels do
not meet Roche and our expectations, the resulting production volumes may not allow Roche to achieve their
anticipated economies of scale for Fuzeon. If Roche does not achieve these economies of scale, the costs of goods for
Fuzeon could be higher than our current expectations.

Distribution

On April 26, 2004, Fuzeon became available through retail and specialty pharmacies across the U.S. This
development enhanced and simplified access to Fuzeon for patients and their healthcare providers. Physicians can write
prescriptions for Fuzeon from their own prescription pads and patients can get Fuzeon from the pharmacy of their
choice, including Chronimed, Inc. (“Chronimed”). Prior to April 26, 2004, Fuzeon was only available in the U.S.
exclusively through Chronimed.

Next Generation Peptides and T-1249

We, together with our partner Roche, are currently researching several promising HIV gp41 peptide inhibitors,
with the hope of selecting one of these peptides for advanced pre-clinical studies. In the near-future we plan to select a
lead candidate and back-up candidate that will proceed to advanced formulation studies. The results of these studies
will determine how rapidly we move towards naming a clinical candidate.

T-1249 is a second-generation HIV fusion inhibitor that has been investigated successfully in four separate
clinical trials. Phase I/II trials of T-1249 demonstrated satisfactory efficacy and safety, including in patients who had
previously failed on and had developed resistance to Fuzeon. In January 2004, Roche and Trimeris announced that
further clinical development of T-1249 was being put on hold due to technical challenges in achieving a formulation
capable of delivering a once daily injection. The compound’s safety, efficacy and tolerability were not factors affecting
the decision. The clinical trial, T1249-105, was ongoing when the decision was made to put the development of T-1249
on hold. T1249-105 is now a compassionate use protocol for patients that were already receiving T-1249, as these
patients have exhausted all treatment options. To date, 26 patients have completed 96 weeks of treatment with T-1249.
Although in January 2005, we put further clinical development of T-1249 on hold indefinitely, T-1249 remains one of
our next-generation drug candidates having established the proof-of-concept in overcoming Fuzeon resistant virus in
the clinic. However, our focus will be to continue the pursuit of new formulations of T-1249 or future peptide fusion
inhibitors that will allow significantly less frequent dosing.
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Other Research Programs

On June 3, 2004, we announced the renewal of an agreement with Array Biopharma Inc., or Array, to discover
small molecule entry inhibitors directed against HIV. As part of this renewed agreement, Trimeris will screen small
molecule compounds created by Array against HIV entry inhibitor targets. The terms of the agreement are substantially
similar to those of the initial agreement, signed in August 2001. Array will be entitled to receive research funding as
well as milestone payments and royalties based on the success of this program.

In 2002, we entered into an agreement with Neokimia Inc., or Neokimia, to discover and develop small molecule
HIV fusion inhibitors. We will initially screen a library of small molecule compounds provided by Neokimia.
Neokimia will use its proprietary drug discovery platform to optimize lead compounds. We will collaborate with
Neokimia to identify preclinical drug candidates. Neokimia will provide the initial library of compounds on a non-
exclusive basis and will work exclusively with us on the HIV gp41 fusion protein target during the term of the
collaboration. We exercised our option to select an additional target to add to the collaboration related to HIV fusion.
We will work with Neokimia on a non-exclusive basis on these targets. We, with Neokimia, will equally fund all
research activities through the declaration of a development candidate. We will be responsible for all future clinical
development, regulatory and commercial activities on a worldwide basis. Neokimia will be entitled to receive
payments and royalties on net product sales based on achievement of certain developmental and commercial
milestones. Neokimia also has an option to co-fund clinical development activities for development compounds
through the end of Phase I human clinical trials, in exchange for increased royalties on net product sales.

The following table summarizes our research expenses since inception (in thousands):

Project . 2004 2003 2002 1993-2001 Cumulative
FUZEON . . oot $12.916 $21,842 $39,060 $142244 $216,062
T-1240 2,039 9,386 5,597 13,446 30,468
3rd Generation . ... ..t e 3,933 3,208 3,887 _— 11,028
Other . 2,425 2,387 2,682 — 7,494
A Projects . ... $21,313 $36,823 $51,226 $155,690 $265,052

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
The table below presents our cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

Years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
Net cash used in operating activities .. ............c.uuiniiininininnnnn.. $(42,628) $(56,720) $(72,972)
Net cash (used) provided by investing activities ............. ... .. .ccoonon... 25,033 (19,707) 21,443
Net cash provided by financing activities ............... e 411 1,983 148,970
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ......................... (17,184) (74,444) 97,441
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period ........... ... . ... ......... 45,285 119,729 22,288
Cash and cash equivalents,endof period .. . ....... ... ... .. ool $ 28,101 $ 45,285 $119,729

Operating Activities:  Since inception, we have financed our operations primarily through private placements and
public offerings of common stock, equipment lease financing and payments received from Roche under our
collaboration agreement with Roche.

In 2004, the cash used by operating activities was used primarily to fund research and development relating to
Fuzeon, T-1249 and other product candidates and marketing costs for the commercialization of Fuzeon. The amount
used decreased for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to 2003 primarily due to the reduced net loss and
accrued marketing costs offset in part by the advance payments made to Roche for our share of the cost of the capital
improvements made ‘at Roche’s Boulder facility where Fuzeon drug substance is produced.
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In 2003 and 2002, the cash used in operating activities was primarily to fund research and development relating to
Fuzeon, T-1249 and other product candidates and marketing costs for the commercialization of Fuzeon. The amount
used decreased for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to 2002 primarily due to milestone payments received
from Roche and reduced research and development expenses for the development of Fuzeon.

Investing Activities: In 2004, cash provided by investing activities was due to net maturities of investment
securities—available-for-sale of $26.6 million, offset in part by purchases of property, furniture and equipment of $1.2
million and patent costs of $406,000.

In 2003, cash used by investing activities was due to net purchases of investment securities—available-for-sale of
$17.4 million, purchases of property, furniture and equipment of $1.4 million and patent costs of $300,000.

In 2002, cash provided by investing activities was due to net maturities and sales of investment securities—
available-for-sale of $22.8 million, purchases of property, furniture and equipment of $949,000 and patent costs of
$445,000.

Financing Activities: During 2004 and 2003, the cash provided was primarily due to the exercise of employee
stock options and purchases of our stock under the employee stock purchase plan offset, in part, by payments under
capital lease obligations. During 2002, the cash provided was primarily the result of the sale of our common stock
offset, in part, by payments under capital lease obligations.

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investment securities—available-for-sale.  As of December 31, 2004, we had
$48.4 million in cash and cash equivalents and investment securities—available-for-sale, compared to $92.2 million as
of December 31, 2003. The decrease is primarily a result of cash used by operating activities during the year ended
December 31, 2004.

Future Capital Requirements. We have experienced negative cash flows from operations since our inception and
do not anticipate generating sufficient positive cash flows to fund our operations in the foreseeable future. Although we
expect to share the future development costs for Fuzeon and any other potential drug candidates covered by our
collaboration for the United States and Canada with Roche, we have expended, and expect to continue to expend in the
future, substantial funds to pursue our drug candidates and compound discovery and development efforts, including:

» expenditures for marketing activities related to Fuzeon,
» research and development and preclinical testing of other product candidates, and

* the development of our proprietary technology platform.

We and Roche share profits equally from the sale of Fuzeon in the United States and Canada and we receive a
royalty on the net sales of Fuzeon outside of these two countries. Under provisions of this agreement, our actual cash
contribution to the selling and marketing expenses for Fuzeon in 2004 was limited to approximately $10 million, even
though Roche spent significantly more on these expenses. If certain cumulative levels of sales for Fuzeon in the United
States and Canada are achieved, our share of any additional expenses incurred by Roche during 2004 will be payable to
Roche beginning at a future date over several years from that future date. Although our 2005 contribution to selling and
marketing expenses will be higher as compared to 2004, we are currently in negotiations with Roche to finalize the
2005 budget for selling and marketing expenses and the amount of our contribution.

Under the current operating environment, excluding any extraordinary items, based on current sales levels of
Fuzeon, we expect that our existing capital resources, together with the interest earned thereon, will be adequate to
fund our current programs for at least the next 24 months. However, any reduction in Fuzeon sales below current levels
or increase in expenditures beyond currently expected levels would increase our capital requirements substantially
beyond our current expectations. If we require additional funds and such funds are not available through debt or equity
financings, or collaboration arrangements, we will be required to delay, scale-back or eliminate certain preclinical
testing, clinical trials and research and development programs, including our collaborative efforts with Roche. In the
event Roche becomes unable or unwilling to share future development expenses for Fuzeon, T-1249 or our other
potential drug candidates, our capital requirements would increase substantially beyond our current expectations.
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Our future capital requirements and the adequacy of available funds will depend on many factors, including the
level of market acceptance and sales levels achieved by Fuzeon; expenses related to the sale of Fuzeon; the condition
of the capital markets; the progress and scope of our product development programs; the magnitude of these programs;
the results of preclinical testing and clinical trials; the need for additional facilities based on the results of these clinical
trials and other product development programs; changes in the focus and direction of our product development
programs; the costs [involved in preparing, filing, processing, maintaining, protecting and enforcing patent claims and
other intellectual property rights; competitive factors and technological advances; the cost, timing and outcome of
regulatory reviews; changes in the requirements of the FDA; administrative and legal expenses; evaluation of the
commercial viability of potential product candidates and compounds; the establishment of capacity, either internally or
through relationships with third parties, for manufacturing, sales, marketing and distribution functions; the results of
our business development activities, including in-licensing and merger and acquisition opportunities; and other factors,
many of which are outside of our control.

Since our initial public offering in 1997, we have obtained the majority of our funding through public or private
offerings of our common stock. We expect to continue to obtain our funding through public or private offerings of our
common stock or other equity like instruments, like convertible preferred stock or convertible debt, until such time, if
ever, as we are able to generate significant funds from operations.

We may have difficulty raising additional funds by selling equity. If we fail to meet the clinical and financial
expectations of securities analysts and investors, it could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our
common stock and restrict or eliminate our ability to raise additional funds by selling equity. The public capital
markets in which shares of our common stock are traded have been extremely volatile. Therefore, even if we do
achieve positive clinical or financial results that meet or exceed the expectations of securities analysts and investors,
the state of the public equity markets in general and particularly the public equity market for biotechnology companies
may prohibit us from raising funds in the equity markets on acceptable terms or at all. Even if we are able to obtain
additional funding ithrough an equity financing, the terms of this financing could be highly dilutive to current
shareholders.

We may also attempt to obtain additional funding through debt and debt-like financings such as convertible debt
and/or arrangements with new or existing collaborative partners. Any debt financings may contain restrictive terms that
limit our operating flexibility. Arrangements with collaborative partners may require us to relinquish rights to our
technologies or product candidates or to reduce our share of potential profits. This could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Contractual Obligations. The following table summarizes our material contractual commitments at
December 31, 2004.

Contractual Obligation 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter Total
R (in thousands)
Operating leases™ .......... ... .. .. .. .... $1,549 $1,508 $1,508 $1,538 $1,569 $ 8,473 $16,145
Other contractual obligations** ... ............ 3,025 2,112 2,000 2,000 1,000 — 10,137
Other long-term liabilities reflected on the
Balance Sheet*** . .. ... .. ... ... ..... ... ... — — — — — 15,761 15,761
Total ... .o $4,574 $3,620 $3,508 $3,538 $2,569 $24,234 $42,043

*  Includes payments due under a sublease signed during June 2004, that commenced on January 1, 2005, on an
existing office and laboratory building.

**  We are making advance payments to Roche for our share of the cost of the capital improvements made at Roche’s
Boulder facility where Fuzeon drug substance is produced. Through a series of negotiations, we reached an
understanding iin principle with Roche whereby we will pay Roche for our share of the capital invested in Roche’s
manufacturing facility over a seven-year period. We are in the process of formalizing these terms in a written
agreement. Qur anticipated share of this capital investment is approximately $14.0 million. At December 31,
2004, we have paid $4.5 million and accrued $500,000 (netted in our receivable from Roche) and expect to pay
approximately $500,000 per quarter through June 2009. This amount, net of charges to cost of goods sold, is
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recorded as an asset on our Balance Sheet under the caption “Advanced payment—Roche.” In the event our
collaboration agreement is terminated, we would not be obligated for any unpaid amounts for capital investment.
This amount also includes $1.0 million in 2005 and $112,000 in 2006 for contracts to purchase product candidate
material and fund various clinical studies contingent on delivery of the materials or performance of the services.
Substantially all of these costs will be shared equally with Roche.

*¥% Qur actual cash contribution to the selling and marketing expenses for Fuzeon in 2004 is limited to approximately
$10 million, even though Roche spent significantly more on these expenses. If certain cumulative levels of sales
for Fuzeon in the United States and Canada are achieved, our share of any additional expenses incurred by Roche
during 2004 will be payable to Roche beginning at a future date over several years from that future date. We
currently estimate this date to be in 2011. During the year ended December 31, 2004, we reached our $10 million
limitation for the year. We recorded a liability of approximately $15.8 million as part of collaboration loss during
the year ended December 31, 2004. This represents the net present value of our estimated share of the additional
expenses, discounted at a risk-free interest rate from the expected payment date based on achievement of the sales
milestones in the agreement. »

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Comparison Of Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
Revenues
The table below presents our revenue sources for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

Years ended December 31,
2004 to 2003 2003 to 2002

Increase Increase
2004 2003 2002 (Decrease) (Decrease)
(in thousands)
MileStone revenue . ........... et $ 2,152 $ 2964 $1,133 $ (812) $ 1,831
Royaltyrevenue .............0 .c..uriireunininnann, 4,556 755 — 3,801 755
Collaboration 1oss . ........ ... ... ..., (16,125) (25,515) — 9,390 (25,515)
Total revenue and collaborationloss . .................. $ (9,417) $(21,796) $1,133  $12,379 $(22,929)

Milestone revenue: Total milestone revenue represents the amortization of achieved milestones under our
collaboration with Roche.

The table below presents our achieved milestones from Roche as of December 31, 2004, We are recognizing these
milestones on a straight-line basis.

Total Revenue
Recognized Revenue for the

Through year ended End of
Milestone Date December 31, December 31, Recognition
Total Achieved 2004 2004 Period
(in thousands)
$ 4,600*%  July 1999 $3,413 $ 198 December 2010
2,000 October 2000 1,331 112 December 2010
8,000 March 2003 2,408 932 December 2010
5,000 May 2003 1,338 610 December 2010
2,500 June 2003 388 250 June 2013
750%*  June 2004 51 50 June 2013
Total ... .. . $22.,850 $8,929 $2,152

*  Roche made a nonrefundable initial cash payment to the Company of $10 million during 1999. In July 1999, the
Company granted Roche a warrant to purchase 362,000 shares of common stock at a purchase price of $20.72 per
share. The fair value of the warrant of $5.4 million was credited to additional paid-in capital in 1999, and as a
reduction of the $10 million up-front payment received from Roche. We have deferred $4.6 million, the net of the
$10 million up-front payment and the $5.4 million in warrants, over the research and development period.
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**  We are in the process of finalizing an amendment to our collaboration agreement with Roche. In its present form
the proposed amendment resolves issues related to the performance of certain milestones. As of June 2004, the
parties had agreed that certain performance targets had been met and that payment of this milestone was
appropriate. We have recorded these amounts as of December 31, 2004 in anticipation that we will reach a final
agreement with terms substantially the same as those we have agreed to in principle.

In January 20035, based on our current evaluation of our research and development programs, we placed further
clinical development of T-1249 on hold indefinitely due to challenges in achieving an extended release formulation
that would allow significantly less dosing frequency. In the near future we will select a lead peptide candidate to
conduct pre-clinical and advanced formulation research with the goal of less frequent delivery. Taking into account the
additional research that will be required to achieve these new formulation goals, in 2005 we changed our estimate of
the end of the research and development period from December 2010 to December 2012; as a result we will recognize
approximately $500,000 less revenue in 2005 compared to 2004,

Royalty revenue: Royalty revenue represents the royalty payment earned from Roche based on total net sales of
Fuzeon outside the United States and Canada. Sales of Fuzeon outside the United States and Canada began in June
2003. To calculate the royalty revenue an 8% distribution charge is deducted from Roche’s reported net sales, from
which Trimeris receives a 10% royalty.

The table below presents net sales outside the United States and Canada for the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2003. Fuzeon was launched in June 2003 in the EU.

Years ended December 31

Increase
2604 2003 (Decrease)
(in thousands)
Total net sales outside the United States and Canada (as recorded by Roche) ......... $49.523 $8210 $41,313

Collaboration Loss: The table below presents our collaboration loss for the year ended December 31, 2004
compared to the year ended December 31, 2003. Collaboration loss is reported on our Statement of Operations as a
compoenent of revenue. Under our collaboration agreement with Roche, we share profits equally from the sale of
Fuzeon in the United States and Canada. Fuzeon was launched in March 2003.

Years ended

December 31, Increase
2004 2003 (Decrease)
(in thousands)

Gross Fuzeonsalesby Roche ........ ... ... . . ... . . . iiiiiiiiiiiini $99908 $32,246 §$ 67,662
Lesssales adjustments .. ........ ... e (14,215) (3,901) 10,314
Nt SalES . v it e 85,693 28,345 57,348
Costof goods sold .. ... ..o (51,766) (11,864) 39,902
Gross MAarZiN ... ..ot ittt et e e et 33,927 16,481 17,446
Selling and marketing eXpenses . . . ... oo vttt e (22,311) (57,628) 35,317
Other COSES . vttt e e e (11,504)  (9,526) (1,978)
Total shared profit & 1oss . ........ .. . . i 112 (50,673) 50,785
Trimeris share (50%) . . . ..o e 56 (25,337) 25,393
Costs exclusive to Trimeris Inc. . ... . .. . (16,181) (178) (16,003)
Net collaboration 1088 . . oo .ottt e $(16,125) $(25,515) $ 9,390

Gross Fuzeon sales by Roche:  Gross Fuzeon sales are recorded by Roche. Prior to April 26, 2004, Roche had an
exclusive distribution arrangement with Chronimed to distribute Fuzeon in the United States during the initial
commercial launch in 2003, which terminated on April 26, 2004. Effective April 26, 2004, Fuzeon became available
through retail and specialty pharmacies across the U.S. Prior to April 26, 2004, revenue from product sales was
recognized when title and risk of loss has passed to Chronimed, which was when Chronimed allocated drug for
shipment to a patient. Beginning April 26, 2004, revenue is recognized when Roche ships drug and title and risk of loss
passes to wholesalers.
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The table below presents the number of kits shipped to wholesalers in the U.S. and Canada during 2004 and 2003.

Kits Shipped 2004 2003

QL oo 11,000 —
Q2 16,200 3,000
Q3 14,600 7,000
Q4 17,200 9,000
) 59,000 19,000

*  Includes an estimated 3,000 kits as a result of inventory build up at wholesalers.

Sales adjustments: Sales adjustments are recorded by Roche based on their experience with selling Fuzeon.
Sales adjustments increased for the year ended December 31, 2004 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2003
due to increased kit sales as presented above. There were no material revisions to Roche’s recorded estimates of sales
adjustments for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Cost of goods sold: Cost of goods sold increased for the year ended December 31, 2004 as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2003 due to increased kit sales as described above.

Cost of goods sold for the year ended December 31, 2004 includes approximately $6.8 million relating to
unabsorbed costs that were the result of unexpectedly low initial manufacturing volumes when Fuzeon was launched
and various costs associated with the development of the Fuzeon manufacturing process.

These costs were disclosed to us during the second quarter of 2004 by Roche. Previously, we inquired about
manufacturing variances and were provided amounts by Roche which we previously recorded. After a series of
discussions and negotiations during the second quarter with Roche and notwithstanding our contractual agreement, we
agreed in principle on an amount subject to some additional due diligence. We recorded the above amount during the
second quarter. We are currently in the process of formalizing an amendment to our collaboration agreement with
respect to the variance calculation.

Gross Margin: Gross margin as a percentage of net sales for the year ended December 31, 2004 was 40%
compared to 58% for the year ended December 31, 2003. The gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2004
declined compared to December 31, 2003 primarily as a result of unabsorbed manufacturing costs described in the
immediately preceding two paragraphs. Excluding these costs, gross margin from the collaboration for the year ended
December 31, 2004 is approximately 47% compared to 34% for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Selling and marketing expenses: Our actual cash contribution to certain selling and marketing expenses for
Fuzeon in 2004 is limited to approximately $10 million, even though Roche spent significantly more on these
expenses. If certain cumulative levels of sales for Fuzeon in the United States and Canada are achieved, our share of
any additional expenses incurred by Roche during 2004 will be payable to Roche beginning at a future date over
several years from that future date. During the year ended December 31, 2004, we reached our $10 million limitation
for the year. Although our 2005 contribution to selling and marketing expenses will be higher as compared to 2004, we
are currently in negotiations with Roche to finalize the 2005 budget for selling and marketing expenses and the amount
of our contribution. Selling and marketing expenses excludes incremental selling and marketing costs included in
“Costs exclusive to Trimeris,” below.

Other costs: Other costs for the year ended December 31, 2004 comprises net inventory write offs, a supply
contract penalty and charges for the Boulder manufacturing facility. Also included in other costs are general and
administrative and distribution charges. Trimeris is responsible for 50% of these costs under the collaboration
agreement.

Costs exclusive to Trimeris: Costs exclusive to Trimeris includes the net present value of the Company’s
estimated share of certain marketing expenses in excess of approximately $10 million, based on expected timing and
terms of payment under the agreement. The marketing limit is discussed above. Also included in the costs exclusive to
Trimeris is approximately $575,000 related to license fees for certain technology paid to a third party.
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Research And Development Expenses

The table below presents our research and development expenses for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002.

Years ended December 31,

2004 to 2003 2003 to 2002

Increase Increase
2004 2003 2002 (Decrease) (Decrease)
(in thousands)
Non-cash compensation . ........c.oovreeirineinnennnn.. $ 159 % () $ 250 $ 160 $ (251
Other research and development expense ................ 21,154 36,824 50,976 (15,670) (14,152)
Total research and development expense . ............... $21,313 $36,823 $51,226  $(15,510) $(14,403)

Total research and development expenses include gross research and development expenses less Roche’s shére of
such costs for Fuzeon and T-1249. Under our collaboration agreement, Roche and we shared equally the development
costs incurred during the period from July 1, 1999 to December 31, 2004 for Fuzeon, T-1249 and other potential
candidates.

Non-cash compensation: Non-cash compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 is primarily
comprised of amortization expense for restricted stock issued to employees in June 2004. This restricted stock grant
vests 100% after the third year of service and is being amortized on a straight-line basis over the three-year period.
Non-cash compensation expense in 2003 and 2002 comprises expense calculated under EITF 96-18, “Accounting for
Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or
Services.” The change in expense resulted because the cumulative expense calculated under EITF 96-18 for stock
options previously granted to non-employees was less at December 31, 2003 compared to December 31, 2002,
primarily because of the decrease in the market price of our stock from $43.17 at December 31, 2002 to $20.94 at
December 31, 2003, and the fact that a significant number of the options previously granted to non-employees became
vested during 2002. At December 31, 2003, the majority of these options were vested.

Other research and development expense: Other research and development expense decreased for the year
ended December 31, 2004 compared to the year ended December 31, 2003 as a result of:
* decreased costs associated with ongoing clinical trials for Fuzeon,

¢ decreased costs associated with our clinical trials for T-1249, whose clinical development was put on hold in
January 2004,

* decrease in the purchase of drug material for future clinical trials,

* decrease in the costs in connection with a potential building project, and

» decreased personnel expenses, due to a headcount reduction in workforce implemented in January 2004

Other research and development expense decreased for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2002 as a result of reduced expenses related to the following:

* production of drug material for Fuzeon clinical trials,

¢ our two Phase III clinical trials for Fuzeon which were initiated in late 2000, and the data accumulation and
compilation process for clinical data from these trials,

* our Phase II clinical trials for Fuzeon which were substantially completed in 2002.

* during 2003, we extended the term of our research agreement with Roche to December 2005. We also
recognized reimbursement from Roche for their 50% share of certain research and development expenses,
incurred by Trimeris, during the year ended December 31, 2003. We did not recognize a similar
reimbursement for the year ended December 31, 2002 because the research agreement was not renewed until
December 2003.
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Total research personnel were 62, 91 and 88 at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. We expect
research and development expenses, net of the reimbursements for Fuzeon and next generation development costs from
Roche, to be lower during 2005 as compared to 2004, barring any unforeseen changes, as a result of reduced post
marketing commitment expenses for Fuzeon due to the fact that we received accelerated FDA approval, and submitted
48 week data for full FDA approval during 2003 and received approval in October of 2004.

In 2004, Roche and Trimeris conducted research pursuant to an agreed upon research plan, in furtherance of our
goals under our joint research agreement. In 2005, we believe that the total cost to be shared by the parties under the
research plan will be significantly less than in 2004. Although, the research agreement itself does not require that a
specific amount be spent on any annual research plan, at their discretion, either party has the option to supplement the
budgeted research plan at their own additional expense. At present we are still in discussions with Roche to define the
research plan and budget for 2005.

General and Administrative Expenses

The table below presents our general and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002.

Years ended December 31,

2004 to 2003 2003 to 2002

Increase Increase
2004 2003 2002 (Decrease) (Decrease)
. (in thousands)
Non-cash compensation . ...........c..cov ... $ 311 § 767 $ 1,645 § (456) $ (878)
Other general and administrative expense ................. 9840 7,810 9,340 2,030 (1,530)
Total general and administrative expense . ................ $10,151 $8,577 $10,985 $1.,574 $(2,408)

Non-cash compensation: Non-cash compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 is comprised
of amortization expense for restricted stock issued to employees in June 2004. This restricted stock grant vests 100%
after the third year of service and is being amortized on a straight-line basis over the three-year period. Non-cash
compensation expense in 2003 and 2002 comprises expense calculated under EITF 96-18, “Accounting for Equity
Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or
Services.” The decrease from 2002 to 2003 is primarily due to the fact that some of the options previously granted to a
former consultant who became an employee during 2001 became vested during 2002, and the remaining options
granted to this individual became vested during 2003.

Other general and administrative expense: Other general and administrative expense increased for the year
ended December 31, 2004 compared to the year ended December 31, 2003 as a result of :

* increased costs to meet new requirements placed on public companies by The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
and related regulations issued by the SEC and new Nasdaq listing standards,

* increased incentive compensation payments to our executives. In 2003, we did not pay bonuses to our three
top executives,

* increased premiums for directors and officers’ insurance and

* increased recruitment costs.

Other general and administrative expense decreased for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2002 as a result of:

+ decreased professional fees related to a legal dispute with a former consultant that was settled in 2002, and

+ decreased bonuses as we did not pay bonuses to our three top executives for 2003.

These decreases were partially offset by increases in the following expenses:
¢ increased premiums for directors and officers’ insurance, and

+ additional professional fees due to new requirements placed on public companies by The Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.
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Total general and administrative employees were 35, 41 and 40 at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. We expect other general and administrative expenses to increase in the future due to increased costs to
meet new requirements placed on public companies by The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and related regulations issued
by the SEC and new Nasdagq listing standards.

Other Income (Expense)
The table below presents our other income (expense) for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

Years ended December 31,

2004 to 2003 2003 to 2002
, Increase Increase
2004 2003 2002 (Decrease) (Decrease)

{in thousands)

INEETESE INCOME ...\ v v ettt e e et e e e et $953 $1,534 $2,230  $(581) $(696)
Interest EXPenses .. .. ..ottt e (160) 41y (108) (119) 67
Total other income (EXPETSE) .. .o v i, $793 $1493 $2,122 $(700) $(629)

Other income (expense) consists of interest income and expense. Interest income decreased across all periods as a
result of decreasing average investment balances. Interest expense increased in 2004 compared to 2003 as a result of
accreting the excess marketing expenses recorded on the balance sheet as “Accrued marketing costs.” Our actual cash
contribution to certain selling and marketing expenses for Fuzeon in 2004 is limited to approximately $10 million, éven
though Roche spent significantly more on these expenses. If certain cumulative levels of sales for Fuzeon in the United
States and Canada are achieved, our share of any additional expenses incurred by Roche during 2004 will be payable to
Roche beginning at a future date over several years from that future date. During the year ended December 31, 2004,
we reached our $10 million limitation for the year. We recorded a liability of approximately $15.8 million as part of
collaboration loss ‘during the year ended December 31, 2004. This represents the net present value of our estimated
share of the additional expenses, discounted at a risk-free interest rate from the expected payment date based on
achievement of the sales milestones in the agreement. Interest expense in 2003 and 2002 is related to interest payments
on capital leases during those periods. All capital leases were paid off during 2003.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements other than operating leases for our properties. In the past we
have entered into derivative transactions that represented call options sold on our stock to a third party financial
institution and were entered into in order to generate cash from the option premiums and provide us with the
opportunity to raige capital at prices significantly in excess of the market price at the time of the transaction. All of
these options have expired unexercised. In the event these options were exercised, we expect they would have been
settled by issuing shares of our stock. We may enter into similar transactions in the future, subject to market conditions.
We enter into these transactions as a potential method to raise capital and not to speculate on the future market price of
our stock. We have no subsidiaries or other unconsolidated limited purpose entities, and we have not guaranteed or
otherwise supported the obligations of any other entity.

In April 2002, we entered into a set of derivative transactions with a financial institution that could have been
settled by selling up to 200,000 shares of our stock to the financial institution at prices significantly higher than the
market price per share of our stock at the inception of the transaction. Alternatively, we had the option to settle this
contract by making a cash payment to the financial institution for the underlying value of the derivative contract to the
financial institution on the settlement date. This contract was expected to be settled by issuing shares of our stock in the
event the option was exercised. This agreement expired unexercised. In 2002, we received approximately $388,000 in
proceeds for the sale of this call option that was accounted for as an increase to additional paid-in capital in accordance
with EITF 00-19. We may enter into similar transactions in the future, subject to market conditions. We enter into these
transactions as a potential method to raise capital and not to speculate on the future market price of our stock.

Critical Accounting Policies

We believe the following accounting policies are the most critical to our financial statements. We believe they are
important to the presentation of our financial condition, and require the highest degree of management judgment to
make the estimates necessary to ensure their fair presentation. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

46




Revenue Recognition Under Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104

Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 104, “Revenue Recognition” summarizes the SEC’s views in applying
generally accepted accounting principles to revenue recognition in financial statements. SAB No. 104 establishes the
SEC’s view that it is not appropriate to recognize revenue until all of the following criteria are met: persuasive
evidence that an arrangement exists; delivery has occurred or services have been rendered; the seller’s price to the
buyer is fixed or determinable; and collectability is reasonably assured. Further, SAB No. 104 requires that both title
and the risks and rewards of ownership be transferred to the buyer before revenue can be recognized. We believe that
our revenue recognition policies are in compliance with SAB No. 104.

Milestone Revenue and Deferred Revenue—Roche

SAB No. 104 provides guidance that it is appropriate to recognize revenue related to license and milestone
payments over the research and development term of a collaboration agreement. The primary estimates we make in
connection with the application of this policy are the length of the period of the research and development under our
collaboration agreement with Roche and the estimated commercial life of Fuzeon. In the event our judgment of the
length of these terms changes, the milestone revenue to be recognized under our collaboration with Roche would
change prospectively in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 20, “Accounting
Changes.” If either term were expected to be longer, the amount of revenue recognized would be less per quarter than
currently being recognized. If either term were expected to be shorter, the amount of revenue recognized would be
more per quarter than currently being recognized.

To date, the Company has received a $10 million license fee, research milestone payments of $15 million and has
achieved $3.3 million in manufacturing milestones. The license fee and research milestones were recorded as deferred
revenue and are being recognized ratably over the research and development period. The manufacturing milestones
were also recorded as deferred revenue and are being recognized ratably through June 2013, which is the current
expected commercial life of Fuzeon.

At the time of the license fee payment, Roche was granted a warrant to purchase Trimeris stock. The fair value of
the warrant, $5.4 million, was credited to additional paid-in capital in 1999, and as a reduction of the $10 million
license fee payment.

Over the course of the collaboration, our estimate of the end of the research and development period has changed:

* During the fourth quarter of 2002, we changed our estimate of the end of this research and development
period to 2007 based on the expected development schedule of T-1249 or a replacement compound, the final
compound covered by our collaboration agreement with Roche.

*  During the first quaster of 2004, we changed our estimate of the end of the research and development period to
2010 from 2007. This change was due to a change in estimate of the development period for T-1249 or a
replacement compound as further clinical development of T-1249 has been placed on hold. We recognized
approximately $800,000 less of milestone revenue for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2003 due largely in part to this change in estimate.

e In January 2005, based on our current evaluation of our research and development programs, we placed
further clinical development of T-1249 on hold indefinitely due to challenges in achieving an extended release
formulation that would allow significantly less dosing frequency. Taking into account the additional research
that will be required to achieve our goals for formulation, in January 2005, we changed our estimate of the end
of the research and development period from December 2010 to December 2012; as a result we will recognize
approximately $500,000 less milestone revenue in 2005 compared to 2004.

Collaboration Income/Loss

Product sales of Fuzeon began in the United States on March 27, 2003 and are recorded by Roche. Under the
collaboration agreement with Roche, the Company shares profits equally from the sale of Fuzeon in the United States
and Canada with Roche, which is reported as collaboration income (loss) in the Statements of Operations as a
component of revenue. Collaboration income (loss) is calculated as follows: Total gross sales of Fuzeon in the United
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States and Canada is reduced by any estimated-discounts, rebates or returns resulting in total net sales. Net sales are
reduced by costs of goods sold resulting in gross margin. Gross margin is reduced by selling and marketing expenses
and other costs related to the sale of Fuzeon, resulting in operating income or loss. The Company’s 50% share of the
operating income or loss is reported as collaboration income or loss as a component of revenue. Roche previously had
an exclusive distribution arrangement with Chronimed to distribute Fuzeon in the United States. This exclusive
arrangement terminated on April 26, 2004. Effective April 26, 2004, Fuzeon became available through retail and
specialty pharmacies across the U.S. Prior to April 26, 2004, revenue from product sales was recognized when title and
risk of loss has passed to Chronimed, which is when Chronimed allocates drug for shipment to a patient. We do not
believe there were any shipments that were as a result of incentives and/or in excess of the wholesaler’s ordinary
course of business inventory level. Beginning April 26, 2004, revenue is recognized when Roche ships drug and title
and risk of loss passes to wholesalers. Roche prepares its estimates for sales returns and allowances, discounts and
rebates based primarily on their historical experience with Fuzeon and other anti-HIV drugs and their estimates of the
payor mix for Fuzeon, updated for changes in facts and circumstances on a quarterly basis. If actual results differ from
these estimates, these estimates will be adjusted which could have an effect on results from operations in the period of
adjustment.

We recognize 50% of the total Collaboration income/loss which includes estimates made by and recorded by
Roche for reductions to gross sales for expected returns of expired products, government rebate programs, such as
Medicaid reimbursements, and customer incentives, such as cash discounts for prompt payment. Estimates for
government rebate programs and cash discounts are determined by Roche based on contractual terms, historical
information from Roche’s anti-HIV drug portfolio, and Roche’s expectations regarding future utilization rates for these
programs. Estimates for product returns are based on an on-going analysis of industry return patterns and historical
return patterns by Roche for its anti-HIV drug portfolio. This includes the purchase of third-party data by Roche to
assist Roche andius in monitoring channel inventory levels and subsequent prescriptions for Fuzeon. We also monitor
the activities and clinical trials of our key competitors and assess the potential impact on future Fuzeon sales and return
expectations where necessary. Expected returns for Fuzeon are generally low as Fuzeon has a high Wholesale
Acquisition Cost; or WAC, compared to other anti-HIV drugs, and requires significantly more storage space than other
anti-HIV drugs due to the size of a monthly kit because Fuzeon requires twice daily injections. Consequently
wholesalers tend ito stock only the necessary volumes of Fuzeon inventory. We believe that wholesalers hold less than a
month of Fuzeon inventory. The current shelf life of Fuzeon is 36 months. Roche reviews the estimates discussed
above on a quarterly basis and revises estimates as appropriate for changes in facts or circumstances. These estimates
reduce our share of collaboration income or loss under our collaboration agreement.

Calculation of Compensation Costs for Stock Options Granted to Non-Employees

Compensation costs for stock options granted to non-employees are accounted for in accordance with Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123 and Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF’) Issue No. 96-18,
which require that such compensation costs be measured at the end of each reporting period to account for changes in
the fair value of the Company’s common stock until the options are vested. These costs are non-cash charges resulting
from stock option grants to non-employees. The primary estimate we make in connection with the calculation of this
expense is the future volatility of our stock price used to calculate the value of the stock options in the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. At December 31, 2004, we estimated the future volatility at 50% based on the implied future
volatility for call: options in our stock quoted on the Chicago Board Options Exchange in January 2005. A higher
volatility would result in greater compensation costs, and a lower volatility would result in lower compensation costs
for these stock options.

In addition, the closing market price per share of our stock at the end of each reporting period has a significant
effect on the value of the stock options calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. A higher market price
per share of our stock would result in greater compensation costs, and a lower market price per share of our stock
would result in lower compensation costs for these stock options. At December 31, 2004, there were options to
purchase approximately 21,000 shares of common stock granted to non-employees outstanding that were not fully
vested that could result in additional changes in compensation costs under EITF 96-18.
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Capitalization of Patent Costs

The costs of patents are capitalized and are amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated remaining
lives of the patents, either 17 years from the date the patent is granted or 20 years from the initial filing of the patent,
depending on the patent. These costs are primarily legal fees and filing fees related to the prosecution of patent filings.
We perform a continuous evaluation of the carrying value and remaining amortization periods of these costs. The
primary estimate we make is the expected cash flows to be derived from the patents. In the event future expected cash
flows derived from any patents are less than their carrying value, the related costs would be expensed at that time.

Accrued Marketing Costs

In 2004 we reached an agreement with Roche whereby our actual cash contribution to certain selling and
marketing expenses for Fuzeon in 2004 is limited to approximately $10 million, even though Roche spent significantly
more on these expenses. If certain cumulative levels of sales for Fuzeon in the United States and Canada are achieved,
our share of any additional expenses incurred by Roche during 2004 will be payable to Roche beginning at a future
date over several years from that future date. We currently estimate this date to be in 2011. During the year ended
December 31, 2004, we reached our $10 million limitation for the year. We recorded an expense, and associated
liability, of approximately $15.6 million as part of collaboration loss during the year ended December 31, 2004. This
represents the net present value of our estimated share of the additional expenses, discounted at a risk free interest rate
from the expected payment date based on achievement of the sales milestones in the agreement. We are increasing the
liability over time to the expected payment amount. In 2004 we increased this liability by $154,000, for accretion of
interest. The total liability of $15.8 million is reflected on our balance sheet under the caption “Accrued marketing
costs.” '

Advanced Payment—Roche

We are making advance payments to Roche for our share of the cost of the capital improvements made at Roche’s
Boulder facility where Fuzeon drug substance is produced. Through a series of negotiations, we reached an
understanding in principle with Roche whereby we will pay Roche for our share of the capital invested in Roche’s
manufacturing facility over a seven-year period. We are in the process of formalizing these terms in a written
agreement. Our anticipated share of this capital investment is approximately $14.0 million. At December 31, 2004, we
have paid $4.5 million and accrued $500,000 and expect to pay approximately $500,000 per quarter through June 2009.
This amount, net of charges to cost of goods sold, is recorded as an asset on our Balance Sheet under the caption
“Advanced payment—Roche.” This asset will be amortized to cost of goods sold based on the units of Fuzeon sold
during the collaboration period. We estimate that as of December 31, 2004, this asset has a remaining useful life of
approximately 12 years. In the event our collaboration agreement is terminated, we would not be obligated for any
unpaid amounts for capital investment. In addition, other peptide drug candidates discovered under our collaboration
with Roche, including T-1249, can be manufactured using this same Roche facility. The carrying value of this asset
will be evaluated annually for impairment or if a triggering event occurs.

Accounting and Other Matters

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board Emerging Issues Task Force issued its consensus
concerning Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables (“EITF 00-21”). EITF 00-21 addresses how to
determine whether a revenue arrangement involving multiple deliverables should be divided into separate units of
accounting, and if separation is appropriate, how the consideration should be measured and allocated to the identified
accounting units. EITF 00-21 is effective prospectively for arrangements entered into in fiscal periods beginning after
June 15, 2003. The adoption of EITF 00-21 had no impact on our financial statements.

In December 2003, SFAS No. 132 (revised), “Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement
Benefits,” was issued. SFAS No. 132 (revised) prescribes employers’ disclosures about pension plans and other
postretirement benefit plans; it does not change the measurement or recognition of those plans. SFAS No. 132 (revised)
retains and revises the disclosure requirements contained in the original SFAS 132. It also requires additional
disclosures about the assets, obligations, cash flows, and net periodic benefit cost of defined benefit pension plans and
other postretirement benefit plans. SFAS 132 (revised) generally is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15,
2003. Our disclosures in note 8 incorporate the requirements of SFAS No. 132 (revised).
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In November 2004, SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4,” was issued. SFAS
No. 151 amends the guidance in ARB No. 43, Chapter 4, “Inventory Pricing,” to clarify the accounting for abnormal
amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage). Paragraph 5 of ARB 43,
Chapter 4, previously stated that . . . under some circumstances, items such as idle facility expense, excessive spoilage,
double freight, and re-handling costs may be so abnormal as to require treatment as current period charges. . . .” This
statement requires that those items be recognized as current-period charges regardless of whether they meet the criterion
of “so abnormal.” In addition, this statement requires that allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of
conversion be based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. SFAS No. 151 generally is effective for fiscal
years ending after June 15, 2005. We are assessing the impact of this statement on our financial statements.

In December 2004, SFAS No. 123 (revised), “Share-Based Payment,” was issued. SFAS No. 123 (revised)
requires that the cost resulting from all share-based payment transactions be recognized as a charge in the financial
statements. This statement establishes fair value as the measurement objective in accounting for share-based payment
arrangements and requires all entities to apply a fair-value-based measurement method in accounting for share-based
payment transactions with employees except for equity instruments held by employee share ownership plans. This
statement also establishes fair value as the measurement objective for transactions in which an entity acquires goods or
services from non-employees in share-based payment transactions. This statement amends FASB Statement No. 95,
Statement of Cash Flows, to require that excess tax benefits be reported as a financing cash inflow rather than as a
reduction of taxes paid. This Statement replaces FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,
and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. SFAS No. 123 (revised) is
effective—as of the beginning of the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005. We are
assessing the impact of this statement on our financial statements.

The FASB also issues exposure drafts for proposed statements of financial accounting standards. Such exposure
drafts are subject to comment from the public, to revisions by the FASB and to final issuance by the FASB as
statements of financial accounting standards. Management considers the effect of the proposed statements on our
financial statements and monitors the status of changes to issued exposure drafts and to proposed effective dates.

Corporate Code of Ethics

We have a code of ethics for our employees and officers. This document is available on our website at the
following address: http://trimeris.com/about/trimeris_code_of _ethics.pdf.

ITEM7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE OF MARKET RISK

Our exposure to market risk is primarily in our investment portfolio. We do not use derivative financial
instruments for speculative or trading purposes. Substantially all of our contracts are denominated in US dollars;
therefore, we have no material foreign currency risk. We have an investment policy that sets minimum credit quality
standards for our investments. The policy also limits the amount of money we can invest in any one issue, issuer or
type of instrument. We have not experienced any material loss in our investment portfolio, and we believe the market
risk exposure in our investment portfolio has remained consistent over this period.

The table below presents the carrying value, which is approximately equal to fair market value, and related
weighted-average interest rates for our investment portfolio at December 31, 2004. Fair market value is based on
actively quoted market prices. Our investments are generally most vulnerable to changes in short-term interest rates in
the United States. Substantially all of our investments mature in twelve months or less, and have been given a rating of
Al or higher by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization or are the debt obligations of a federal agency
and, therefore, we believe that the risk of material loss of principal due to changes in interest rates is minimal.

Carrying Average
Amount Interest Rate
' (thousands)
Cash equivalents—fixedrate ........... ... ... .. .. ... .. ... $27,353 2.09%
Investment securities—available-for-sale—fixed rate .. ............ 20,301 2.24%
Overnight cash investments—fixedrate ......................... 748 1.28%
Total investment SECUTIHES . ... vt r oo nnsnns $48,402 2.14%




In April 2002, we entered into a set of call transactions with respect to 200,000 shares of our common stock. This
transaction is described in detail under Item 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations—Off Balance Sheet Transactions.” The derivative transactions relating to these 200,000 shares
expired unexercised in April 2003.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information required by Item 8 is included in Item 15 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There have been no changes in or disagreements with the Company’s independent auditors, KPMG LLP.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. We maintain “disclosure controls and procedures,” as such
term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), that are designed
to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange
Commission rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure. In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that
disclosure controls and procedures, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not
absolute, assurance that the objectives of the disclosure controls and procedures are met. Additionally, in designing
disclosure controls and procedures, our management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the
cost-benefit relationship of possible disclosure controls and procedures. The design of any disclosure controls and
procedures also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no
assurarnce that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions.

Based on their evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were
effective.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004. In making this assessment, our management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) in Internal Control - Integrated Framework. As a
result of this assessment, management believes that, as of December 31, 2004, our internal control over financial
reporting is effective based on those criteria.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2004 has been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report
which appears on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting. There was no change in our internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the quarter ending December 31, 2004 that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

No information was required to be disclosed in a report on Form 8-K in the fourth quarter that was not so disclosed.
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PARTIII

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by Item 10 is incorporated by reference from the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed
by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 is incorporated by reference from the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed
by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The informatien required by Item 12 is incorporated by reference from the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed
by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by Item 13 is incorporated by reference from the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed
by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 as to principal accounting fees and services is incorporated by reference from
the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120
days after the end of the fiscal year.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following documents are filed as part of this report:

Page Number
(a)l. Financial Statements
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm . ........... ... ... ... ... .... F-1
Balance Sheets as of December 31,2004 and 2003 .. ... .. . . F-3
Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 ............ F-4
Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 .. .. F-5
Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31 2004, 2003 and 2002 ............ F-6
Notes to Financial Statements ................. S F-7

(a)2. Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules required under Regulation S-X are omitted as the required information is not
applicable.

(a)3. Exhibits

The Exhibits filed as part of this Form 10-K are listed on the Exhibit Index immediately preceding such Exhibits
and are incorporated by reference. The Company has identified in the Exhibit Index each management contract and
compensation plan filed as an exhibit to this Annual Report on Form 10-K in response to Item 15(a) of Form 10-K.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Trimeris, Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control
over Financial Reporting, that Trimeris, Inc. (the Company) maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on, criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment
and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements,
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate. ‘

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Trimeris, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in COSO.
Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the balance sheets of Trimeris, Inc. as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related statements of
operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2004, and our report dated March 9, 2005, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/  KPMG LLP

Raleigh, North Carolina
March 9, 2005
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Trimeris, Inc:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Trimeris, Inc. (the Company) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
and the related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2004. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Trimeris, Inc. as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. '

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated March 9, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on
management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

/s/  KPMG LLP

Raleigh, North Carolina
March 9, 2005
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TRIMERIS, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except par value)

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ....... ... ... ittt
Investment securities—available-for-sale ........... ... ... ... .. . . .. ..
Recoverable franchise taxes .. .. .. oot i i e
Accounts receivable—Roche ... .. .
Prepaid expenses ............ O P

Total CUITENE ASSELS . . . o oottt e e e e e e

Property, furniture and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization of
$11,646 and $10,306 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively . ...................
Other assets:
Patent costs, net of accumulated amortization of $200 and $196 at December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively ... ... ..
Advanced payment—Roche . . ....... ... ..., e
D POSIES ..ot

Total Other aSSetS ..o it e

TOtal AS8EES . v v i i e e

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable ... ... e e
Accounts payable—Roche .. ... ...
Current installments of obligations under capital leases ...........................
Accrued COMPENSALON . . ... .ot
Deferred revenue—Roche . ... ... ...
ACCTUEA EXPEINSES . o o v vt v et et e et e r e e e e e e

Total current liabilities .. ... ... .. ... e
Deferred revenue—RoOChe ... .. . .
Accrued marketing CoSES .. ... ... e
Other lHabilities . . . ... .o

Total liabilities ......... ... ..

Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred Stock at $0.001 par value per share, authorized 10,000 shares; issued and
outstanding zero shares at December 31,2004 and 2003 ........ ... ... ... ......

Common Stock at $0.001 par value per share, authorized 60,000 shares; issued and
outstanding 21,917 and 21,573 shares at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively ..

Additional paid-in capital . . ... ... L

Accumulated defiCit . ... ... i e

Deferred compensation ................ ... .. ...... e e

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ......... e e

Total stockholders’ equity ... .... e cee

Commitments and contingencies. . e P e
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ............. e P

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

F3

As of December 31,
2004 2003

$ 28,101 $ 45,285
20,301 46,913

144 —
5,878 —
1,630 2,106

56,054 94,304

2,408 2,578

1,829 1,650
4,498 —

31 68
6,358 1718

$ 64,820 $ 98,600

$ 1424 § 893

— 11,029
— 274
2,981 1,739
2,185 3,954
260 674

6,850 18,563
11,736 11,369

34,474 29,932

22 22
403,307 398,925
(370,364)  (330,276)
(2,613) —

(6) (3) -
30,346 68,668

'$ 64820 $ 98,600




TRIMERIS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Revenue: _ .
MIIESIONE TEVENUE . . . o\ttt et et et e e e e e e e e e $ 2,152 $ 2964 $ 1,133
Royaltyrevenue .......... .ot iiiii i e 4,556 755 —
Collaboration 10SS . o\t vttt e e e e (16,125) (25,515) —
Total revenue and collaborationoss . ...... ... ... .. i i 9,417) (21,796) 1,133
Operating expenses:
Marketing eXPeISe . . . ..o v vt e — — 16,722
Research and development:
Non-cash coOmpensation . . ... ....... ittt 159 (D) 250
Other research and development expense .......... ... ... .. ........ 21,154 36,824 50,976
Total research and development eXpense . ..............c..oeeuiinnenann.. 21,313 36,823 51,226
General and administrative: v
Non-cash compensation . ..........c..oiineiiiieeenn.. e 311 767 1,645
Other general and administrative eXpense .. ...............coeuoen .. 9,840 7,810 9,340
Total general and administrative €Xpense ... .............oveerurernnnnn. 10,151 8,577 10,985
Total operating eXpenses . ... ......c.uueeeriinreeeeniineeeneeennns 31,464 45400 78,933 .
Operating 1oss ..................... e (40,881) (67,196) (77,800)
Other income (expense):
Interest income . e PP 953 1,534 2,230
INterest EXPEISE . . . oottt e e . (160) (41) (108)
Total other INCOME (EXPENSE) . .« vttt ittt et et et e et et enns 793 1,493 2,122
Nt 0SS o vttt $(40,088) $(65,703) $(75,678)
Basic and diluted net loss pershare . ...... ... o i $ (1.86) $ (3.06) § (393
Weighted average shares used in per share computations . ...................... 21,608 21,460 19,272

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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TRIMERIS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
_ (in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Nt 0SS oot e
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of property, furniture and equipment .........
Non-cash compensation EXpense . .. ....o.uiuniiuiiininnenneeneenann.
Amortization of deferred revenue—Roche ........ ... .. .. .. Lo L
Other amortization . . ........ .ttt e e
401 (Kyplanstockmatch ...... .. ... . i
Restricted stock donation ............ . i
Patent costs €Xpensed . . ... ...t e
Decrease (increase) in assets:
Recoverable franchise taxes ........ ..ottt
Accounts'receivable—Roche ... .. .. L ool
Prepaid eXpenses .. ... i e
Advanced payment—Roche, net ............ ... .. i L
Other @ssels . .. ..ottt e e
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accountspayable ... .. ...
Accounts:payable—Roche ........ ... . ..
Accrued COMPENSAION . . .o oottt ettt e e e
ACCTUE BXPENSES . v vt ettt et e e e
Accrued marketing Costs .. ... ...
Other liabilities . ... ... i e e e
Deferred revenue—Roche ....... .. ... ..

Net cash used by operating activities ........ ... .. ... it

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, furniture and equipment .......... ... ... .........
Sales of investment securities—available-for-sale . .......................
Purchases of investment securities—available-for-sale . ... ................
Maturities of investment securities—available-for-sale ...................
Patent COStS . .ot e s

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities .....................

Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments under capital lease obligations .......................
Proceeds from issuance of Common Stock,net ............. ... ... ...,
Proceeds from sale of call OPtONS .. .. ..v\vveeet ittt
Proceeds from exercise of stock options ................. ... ... PP
Employee stock purchase plan stock issuance ........... N
Repayment of notes receivable from stockholders . ............... N

Net cash provided by financing activities ...........c. . .o ino....

- Net increase (decrea'se) in cash and cash equivalents e PR PR
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ........... Ce e

Cash and cash équivalents atend of year ................... e P

Supplemental disclosure of c¢ash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for interest ... ........c.vueeeernieeeeninenn..

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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For the years ended December 31,

2004

2003

2002

$(40,088) $(65,703) $(75,678)

1,340 1,615 1.912
470 766 1,895
(2,152)  (2,964)  (1,133)
64 71 37

614 724 662

— — 79

163 424 677
(144) 1 1
(5,878) — —
476 (976) (776)
(4,498) — —
37 97 30
531 (599) (1,202
(11,029) (42200 2,380
1242 (1,228) 919
(414) 228)  (2,775)
15,761 — —
127 — —
750 15,500 —
(42,628)  (56,720)  (72,972)
(1,170) (1,377 (949)
— — 1,100
(40,149)  (53,154)  (67,991)
66,758 35724 89,728
(406) (900) (445)
25033 (19,707) 21,443
(274) (741) (927)
— — 147491

— — 388

505 2,244 1,508
180 480 501

— — 9

411 1,983 148,970
(17,184)  (74,444) 97441
45285 119,729 = 22,288

©$28,101 $ 45,285 $119,729

41

$ 108




TRIMERIS, INC,
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization

Trimeris, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated on January 7, 1993 in Delaware, to discover and develop novel
therapeutic agents that block viral infection by inhibiting viral fusion with host cells. Prior to April 1, 2003, the
financial statements were prepared in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 7,
“Accounting and Reporting by Development Stage Enterprises,” to recognize the fact that the Company was devoting
substantially all of its efforts to establishing a new business. Principal operations commenced with the commercial
launch of Fuzeon® on March 27, 2003, and revenue was recognized from the sale of Fuzeon beginning in 2003. As a
result, beginning on April 1, 2003, the Company no longer prepares its financial statements in accordance with
SFAS No. 7.

The Company has a worldwide agreement with F. Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd., or Roche, to develop and market
T-20, currently known as Fuzeon, whose generic name is enfuvirtide, and T-1249, or a replacement compound. Fuzeon
is manufactured and distributed by Roche through Roche’s sales and distribution network throughout the world in
countries where regulatory approval has been received. The Company shares profits equally from the sale of Fuzeon in
the United States and Canada with Roche, and receives a royalty based on net sales of Fuzeon outside the United States
and Canada.

Liguidiry
We have experienced negative cash flows from operations since our inception and do not anticipate generating
sufficient positive cash flows to fund our operations in the foreseeable future. Although we expect to share the future
development costs for Fuzeon and our other potential peptide drug candidates covered under the collaboration
agreement, for the United States and Canada equally with Roche, we have expended, and expect to continue to expend

in the future, substantial funds to pursue our drug candidate and compound discovery and development efforts,
including:

+ expenditures for marketing activities related to Fuzeon,
+ research and development and preclinical testing of other products candidates, and

* the development of our proprietary technology platform.

Under the current operating environment, based on current sales levels of Fuzeon, we expect that our existing
capital resources, together with the interest earned thereon, will be adequate to fund our current programs based on
current expectations. However, any reduction in Fuzeon sales below current levels or increase in expenditures beyond
currently expected levels would increase our capital requirements substantially beyond our current expectations. If we
require additional funds and such funds are not available through debt or equity financing, or collaboration
arrangements, we will be required to delay, scale-back or eliminate certain preclinical testing, clinical trials and
research and development programs, including our collaborative efforts with Roche. In the event Roche becomes
unable or unwilling to share future development expenses for Fuzeon, T-1249 or our other potential drug candidates,
our capital requirements would increase substantially beyond our current expectations.

Since our initial public offering in 1997, we have obtained the majority of our funding through public or private
offerings of our common stock. We expect to continue to obtain our funding through public or private offerings of our
common stock or other equity-like instruments (including convertible preferred stock or convertible debt) until such
time, if ever, as we are able to generate significant funds from operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents of $28.1 million and $45.3 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
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TRIMERIS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—CONTINUED

respectively, are stated at cost and consist primarily of overnight commercial paper, variable rate demand notes,
commercial paper, short-term debt securities and mutual funds that hold these securities. The carrying amount of cash
and cash equivalents approximates fair value.

Investment Securities—Available-For-Sale

Investment securities, which consist of short-term debt securities, short-term corporate securities, municipal
bonds, commercial paper and federal agency securities, are classified as available-for-sale, and are reported at fair
value based on quoted market prices. The cost of securities sold is determined using the specific identification method
when computing realized gains and losses. Unrealized gains and losses are included as a component of stockholders’
equity until realized.

In accordance with its investment policy, the Company limits the amount of credit exposure with any one issuer.
These investments are generally not collateralized and typically mature within one year.

Financial Instruments

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” as amended, requires disclosure of fair
value information iabout financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the balance sheet, for which it is
practicable to estimate fair value. Fair value is defined in the SFAS as the amount at which the instruments could be
exchanged in a cumrent transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Fair value is
determined using available market information.

Financial instruments other than investment securities—available-for-sale held by the Company include accounts
receivable, notes receivable, accrued marketing costs, accounts payable and obligations under capital leases. The
Company believes that the carrying amount of these financial instruments approximates their fair value. The Company
also has commitments of approximately $1.1 million as described in note 11. The Company believes this amount
reflects the approximate fair value of these commitments.

Property, Furniture and Equipment

Property, furniture and equipment are recorded at cost. Property, furniture and equipment under capital leases are
initially recorded at the present value of minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Property,
furniture and equipment held under capital leases and leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line
method over the lesser of the lease term or estimated useful life of the asset, generally three years.

Intangible Assets

Management performs a continuing evaluation of the carrying value and remaining amortization periods of
unamortized amounts of intangible assets. Any impairments would be recognized when the expected future operating
cash flows derived from such intangible assets are less than their carrying value. During 2004 and 2003, $163,000 and
$424,000 respectively, of patent costs were expensed in other research and development expense because the expected
future operating cash flows from these patents was less than their carrying value.

The costs of patents are capitalized and are amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated remaining
lives of the patents, the longer of-17 years from the date the patent is granted or 20 years from the initial filing of the
patent. Financing costs were incurred as part of the Company’s capital lease agreements and are amortized straight-line
over the lease term.
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TRIMERIS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—CONTINUED

Accrued Marketing Costs

In 2004 the Company reached an agreement with Roche whereby cash contribution to certain selling and
marketing expenses for Fuzeon in 2004 is limited to approximately $10 million, even though Roche spent significantly
more on these expenses. If certain cumulative levels of sales for Fuzeon in the United States and Canada are achieved,
the Company’s share of any additional expenses incurred by Roche during 2004 will be payable to Roche beginning at
a future date over several years from that future date. We currently estimate this date to be in 2011. During the year
ended December 31, 2004, the Company reached the $10 million limitation for the year. As a result the Company
recorded a liability of approximately $15.6 million as part of collaboration loss during the year ended December 31,
2004. This represents the net present value of the additional selling and marketing expenses, discounted at a risk free
interest rate from the expected payment date based on achievement of the sales milestones in the agreement. The
Company is increasing the liability over time to the expected payment amount. In 2004 the Company increased the
initial recorded liability by $154,000 for accretion of interest. The total liability of $15.8 million is reflected on our
balance sheet under the caption “Accrued marketing costs.”

Advanced Payment—Roche

The Company is making advance payments to Roche for the cost of the capital improvements made at Roche’s
Boulder facility where Fuzeon drug substance is produced. Through a series of negotiations, the Company has reached
an understanding in principle with Roche whereby the Company will pay for its share of the capital invested in Roche’s
manufacturing facility over a seven-year period. The Company is in the process of formalizing these terms in a written
agreement. The Company’s anticipated share of this capital investment is approximately $14.0 million. At
December 31, 2004, the Company has paid $4.5 million and accrued $500,000 and expects to pay approximately
$500,000 per quarter through June 2009. This amount, net of charges to cost of goods sold, of $502,000 in 2004, is
recorded as an asset on the Balance Sheet under the caption “Advanced payment-Roche.” This asset will be amortized
to cost of goods sold based on the units of Fuzeon sold during the collaboration period. The Company estimates that
this asset has a remaining useful life of approximately 12 years. In the event the collaboration agreement is terminated,
the Company would not be obligated for any unpaid amounts for capital investment. In addition, other peptide drug
candidates discovered under our collaboration with Roche, including T-1249, can be manufactured using this same
Roche facility. The carrying value of this asset will be evaluated annually for impairment or if a triggering event
gccurs.

Milestone Revenue and Deferred Revenue—Roche

To date, the Company has received a $10 million license fee, research milestone payments of $15 million and has
achieved $3.3 million in manufacturing milestones. The license fee and research milestones were recorded as deferred
revenue and are being recognized ratably over the research and development period. The manufacturing milestones
were also recorded as deferred revenue and are being recognized ratably over the commercial life of Fuzeon or through
June 2013.

At the time of the license fee payment, Roche was granted a warrant to purchase Trimeris stock. The fair value of
the warrant, $5.4 million, was credited to additional paid-in capital in 1999, and as a reduction of the $10 miilion
license fee payment.

Over the course of the collaboration our estimate of the end of the research and development period has changed:

*  During the fourth quarter of 2002, we changed our estimate of the end of this research and development
period to 2007 based on the expected development schedule of T-1249 or a replacement compound, the final
compound covered by our collaboration agreement with Roche.

*  During the first quarter of 2004, we changed our estimate of the end of the research and development period to
2010 from 2007. This change was due to a change in estimate of the development period for T-1249 or a
replacement compound as further clinical development of T-1249 has been placed on hold. We recognized
approximately $800,000 less of milestone revenue for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2003 due largely in part to this change in estimate.
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TRIMERIS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—CONTINUED

e In January 2005, based on our current evaluation of our research and development programs, we placed
further clinical development of T-1249 on hold indefinitely due to challenges in achieving an extended release
formulation that would allow significantly less dosing frequency. Taking into account the additional research
that will be required to achieve our goals for formulation, in January 2005, we changed our estimate of the end
of the research and development period from December 2010 to December 2012; as a result we will recognize
approximately $500,000 less revenue in 2005 compared to 2004.

Royalty Revenue

Under our collaboration agreement with Roche, we receive a royalty based on net sales of Fuzeon outside the
United States and Canada. These royalties are recognized as revenue when the sales are earned. Royalties of
$4,556,000 and $755,000 were recognized as revenue during the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. ‘

Collaboration Loss

Product sales of Fuzeon began in the United States on March 27, 2003. Under the collaboration agreement with
Roche, the Company shares profits equally from the sale of Fuzeon in the United States and Canada with Roche, which
is reported as collaboration loss in the Statements of Operations as a component of revenue. Collaboration income/loss
is calculated as follows: Total gross sales of Fuzeon in the United States and Canada is reduced by any discounts,
returns or rebates resulting in total net sales. Net sales is reduced by costs of goods sold resulting in gross margin.
Gross margin is reduced by selling and marketing expenses and other costs related to the sale of Fuzeon, resulting in
operating income or loss. The Company’s 50% share of the operating income or loss is reported as collaboration
income or loss. Total net sales of Fuzeon in the United States and Canada were $85.7 and $28.3 million during the year
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, sales and
marketing expenses exceeded the gross margin from the sale of Fuzeon resulting in the Company’s 50% share of
operating loss from the sale of Fuzeon in the United States of $16.1 and $25.5 million, respectively. Roche previously
had an exclusive distribution arrangement with Chronimed, Inc. (“Chronimed™) to distribute Fuzeon in the United
States during 2003. This exclusive arrangement terminated on April 26, 2004. Effective April 26, 2004, Fuzeon
became available through retail and specialty pharmacies across the U.S. Prior to April 26, 2004, revenue from product
sales had been recognized when title and risk of loss had passed to Chronimed, which was when Chronimed allocated
drug for shipment to a patient. Beginning April 26, 2004, revenue is recognized when Roche ships drug and title and
risk of loss passes to wholesalers.

Roche prepares estimates for sales returns and allowances, discounts and rebates based primarily on their
historical experience with Fuzeon and other anti-HIV drugs and their estimates of the payor mix for Fuzeon, updated
for changes in facts and circumstances on a quarterly basis. If actual results differ from these estimates, these estimates
will be adjusted which could have an effect on results from operations in the period of adjustment.

Concentrations

The Company has a collaboration agreement with Roche, which accounted for 100% of the Company’s royalty
revenue for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. The collaboration agreement with Roche also accounts for
100% of our collaboration loss. All of the accounts receivable at December 2004, is comprised of receivables from
Roche.

Research and Development

Research and development costs, including the cost of producing drug material for clinical trials, are charged to
operations as incurred.
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TRIMERIS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—CONTINUED

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities, and their respective tax bases and
operating loss and tax credit carry-forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period
that includes the enactment date. The Company has established a valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets due
to the uncertainty surrounding the realization of such assets.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The
most significant estimates made by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are: the estimate of the
length of the research and development period for our Roche collaboration; the estimate of the future volatility of our
stock price used to calculate the value of stock options granted to non-employees; the estimate(s) of sales returns and
allowances, discounts and rebates related to sales of Fuzeon; the estimate of losses incurred related to unusable product
and supplies; the estimate of the period when our liability for accrued marketing costs comes due; the estimate of the
patent life of Fuzeon; and the estimate of the expected future operating cash flows from our intangible patent assets.

Net Loss Per Share

In accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share” (“SFAS No. 128”), basic loss per common share is
calculated by dividing net loss by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period after
certain adjustments described below. Diluted net income per common share reflects the maximum dilutive effect of
common stock issuable upon exercise of stock options, stock warrants, and conversion of preferred stock. Diluted net
loss per common share is not shown, as common equivalent shares from stock options, restricted stock, and stock
warrants, would have an anti-dilutive effect. At December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, there were 3,244,000, 2,701,000
and 2,484,000 options to purchase common stock outstanding, respectively. At December 31, 2004, 2003 -and 2002,
there was a warrant outstanding with Roche to purchase 362,000 shares of common stock. At December 31, 2002, there
were 3,000 shares of unvested restricted stock outstanding, which became fully vested during 2003. At December 31,
2004, there were 179,000 restricted stock grants, which become fully vested in 2007 and 50,000 restricted stock grants,
which become fully vested in 2008.

Stock-Based Compensation

SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS No. 123”), encourages, but does not require
* . companies to record compensation cost for stock-based employee compensation plans at fair value. The Company has
chosen"to continue to account for employee stock-based compensation using the method prescribed in Accounting
Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations.
- Accordingly, compensation cost for stock options is measured as the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the
Company’s stock at the date of the grant over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock.

Compensation costs. for stock options granted to non-employees are accounted for in accordance with SFAS
No. 123 and Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”). 96-18, “Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to
Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods. or Services,” which require that
compensation be measured at the end of each reporting pemod for changes in the fair value of the Company’s common
stock until the options are- vested.
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TRIMERIS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—CONTINUED

SFAS No. 123 permits entities to recognize as expense over the vesting period the fair value of all stock-based
awards on the date of grant. Alternatively, SFAS No. 123 also allows entities to continue to apply the provisions of
APB Opinion No. 25 and provide pro forma net income and pro forma earnings per share disclosures for employee
stock option grants as if the fair-value-based method defined in SFAS No. 123 had been applied. The Company has
elected to continue to apply the provisions of APB Opinion No. 25. Had the Company determined compensation
expense based on the fair value at the grant date for its stock-based plans under SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net loss
and basic loss per share would have been increased to the pro forma amounts indicated below for the years ended
December 31 (in thousands, except per share data):

2004 2003 2002

Net loss: '
Asreported . . ... e $(40,088) $(65,703) $(75,678)
Add back: Compensation cost recorded under APB25 ..................... ... : 497 824 1,873
Compensation cost resulting from common stock options, restricted stock and

employee stock purchaseplan ....... ... ... .. ... . il (9,284) (13,813) (11,833)
Pro fOMMA . .o vt e e e e e e e e e e e e e $(48,875) $(78,692) $(85,638)
Basic and diluted loss per share:
ASTEPOTIEd . . .t e $ (186 $ (B.06) $ (3.93)

Pro forma ....... R A P § 26) $ 367§ 444

The fair value of common stock options is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model with the following assumptions used:

2004 2003 2002
Estimated dividend'yield ......... .. ... . e 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected stock price volatility . ......... ... . 50.0% 50.0% 45.0%
Risk-free interest rafe ... ... oottt 3.50% 3.50% 4.00%
Expected life of options ....... ... 5 years S years 5 years
Expected life of employee stock purchase planoptions ... ...................... 2 years 2 years 2 years

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income (loss) includes all non-owner changes in equity during a period and is divided into two
broad classifications: net income (loss) and other comprehensive income (“OCI”). OCI includes revenue, expenses,
gains, and losses that are excluded from earnings under generally accepted accounting principles. For the Company,
OCI consists of unrealized gains or losses on securities available-for-sale.

Segment Reporting

SFAS No. 131, “Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” establishes standards for
reporting information about the Company’s operating segments. The Company operates in one business segment,.the
_business of discovery, development and commercialization of novel pharmaceuticals.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. These
reclassifications had no impact on net loss or stockholders’ equity as previously reported. The Company reclassified
$40.4 million of auction rate securities from cash and cash equivalents to investment securities—available-for-sale, as
of December 31, 2003 and, accordingly, reflected additional purchases of investment securities—available-for-sale of
$40.4 million in the 2003 statement of cash flows.
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TRIMERIS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—CONTINUED

2. INVESTMENT SECURITIES—AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

The following is a summary of available-for-sale securities. Estimated fair values of available-for-sale securities
are based generally on quoted market prices (in thousands).

) Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
Cost - Gains Losses Value

December 31, 2004
Federal agency securities maturing within L year .................... $ 1,506 $— $3 $ 1,503
Federal agency securities maturing after 1 year through 5 years ........ 501 _ 1 500
Corporate debt securities maturing within 1year .................... 1,007 — 1 1,006
Corporate debt securities maturing after 10 years . ............c....... 1,000 — — 1,000
Other debt securities maturing after 1 year through Syears ............ 730 — 1 729
Other debt securities maturing after 5 years through 10 years .......... 1,637 — — 1,637
Other debt securities maturing after 10 years ....................... 10,235 — — 10,235
Municipal bonds maturing after 10 years .......... ... ............ 3,691 — — 3,691

$20,307 $— $6 $20,301
December 31, 2003
Equity securities maturing within lyear .. ......................... $18,425 $— $— $18,425
Corporate debt securities, maturing within 1 year ................... 6,488 1 4 6,485
Corporate debt securities maturing after 1 year through S years ........ 600 —_ — 600
Corporate debt securities maturing after 10years . ................... 2,316 — — 2,316
Other debt securities maturing after 10 years ....................... 15,156 — —_— 15,156
Municipal bonds maturing after 10years ............. ... ... ...... 3,931 = — 3,931

$46,916 $1 $4 $46,913

There were no sales of these investments or realized gains or losses during 2004 or 2003. All unrealized losses on
investment securities are considered to be temporary given the credit ratings on these investment securities and the
short durations of the unrealized losses.

3. LEASES

The gross amount of furniture and equipment and related accumulated amortization recorded under capital leases
and included in property, furniture and equipment were as follows at December 31, 2003 (in thousands):

2003
Furniture and equipment . .. ... ..o $ 1,268
Less accumulated amortization ................ . ... e (1,173)
$ 95

The Company had no property, furniture or equipment under capital leases at December 31, 2004.
The Company also has several non-cancelable operating leases, primarily for office space and office equipment,

that extend through January 2015. Rental expense, including maintenance charges, for operating leases during 2004,
2003 and 2002 was $1.9 million, $1.7 million, and $1.7 million respectively.
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TRIMERIS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—CONTINUED

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases (with initial or remaining lease terms in
excess of one year) of December 31, 2004 (in thousands) are:

OPERATING
_LEASES
Year ending December 31:
200 L e e e $ 1,549
2006 . . e e e 1,508
2007 1,508
2008 . 1,538
2000 . 1,569
Thereatter . . . 8,473
Total minimum lease PAYMENLS . . .. ... ...ttt ettt e $16,145

4. PROPERTIES, FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT

Property, furniture and equipment consists of the following at December 31, 2004 and 2003 (in thousands):

2004 2003
Furniture and equipment . ........... .. .. [ $ 12,896 $ 10,733
Leasehold improvements . . ... ... v ottt e e e e s 1,158 883
Furniture and equipment under capital lease ............. . ... i, — 1,268

14,054 12,884
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization . .......... ...ttt (11,646) (10,306)

$ 2408 § 2,578

The depreciable lives of our property, furniture and equipment are as follows:

Equipment and furniture .................... 3.5 years
Computer / software ....................... 3 years
Leasehold improvements ................... Lesser of useful life or life of lease

5. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Offerings of Common Stock

In January 2002, the Company closed a private placement of approximately 1.3 million shares of common stock at
$34.00 per share. The net proceeds of the offering were approximately $40.8 million after deducting applicable
issuance costs and expenses of approximately $2.0 million.

- In October 2002, the Company closed a public offering of approximately 2.5 million shares of common stock at
$45.25 per share. The net proceeds of the offering, including the proceeds received in connection with the exercise of
the underwriters’ over-allotment option, were approximately $106.7 million after deducting applicable issuance costs
and expenses of approximately $6.6 million.

Derivative Transactions

In April 2002, the Company entered into a set of derivative transactions with a financial institution that could have
“been settled by selling up to a total of 200,000 shares of its stock to the financial institution at prices significantly
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higher than the market price per share of the Company’s stock at the inception of the transaction. The Company
received approximately $388,000 in proceeds that were accounted for as an increase to additional paid-in capital in
accordance with EITF Issue No. 00-19, “Determination of Whether Share Settlement Is within the Control of the
Company for Purposes of Applying EITF Issue No. 96-13, “Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed
to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company’s Own Stock.” Alternatively, the Company had the option to settle these
contracts by making a cash payment to the financial institution for the underlying value of the derivative contracts to
the financial institution on the settlement date. The Company intended to settle the contracts by issuing shares. The
derivative transactions relating to these 200,000 shares expired unexercised in April 2003.

Warrant

In July 1999, the Company granted Roche a warrant to purchase 362,000 shares of common stock at a purchase
price of $20.72 per share. The warrant is exercisable prior to the tenth annual anniversary of the grant date and was not
exercised as of December 31, 2004. The fair value of the warrant of $5.4 million was credited to additional paid-in
capital in 1999, and as a reduction of the $10 million up-front payment received from Roche. We deferred $4.6 million,
the net of the $10 million up-front payment and the $5.4 million in warrants, over the research and development period.
The value was calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model using the following assumptions: estimated
dividend yield of 0%; expected stock price volatility of 86.00%; risk-free interest rate of 5.20%; and expected option
life of ten years.

Preferred Stock

The Board of Directors has the authority to issue shares of preferred stock and to fix the rights, preferences,
privileges and restrictions thereof, including dividend rights, conversion rights, voting rights, terms of redemption, and
liquidation preferences, without any further vote or action by the stockholders.

6. STOCK OPTION PLAN

In 1993, the Company adopted a stock option plan which allows for the issuance of non-qualified and incentive
stock options. During 1996, the Trimeris, Inc. New Stock Option Plan (the “Stock Option Pian”) was implemented and
replaced the 1993 plan. Under the Stock Option Plan, as amended, the Company may grant non-qualified or incentive
stock options for up to 4,102,941 shares of common stock. The exercise price of each incentive stock option shall not
be less than the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant and an option’s maximum term
is ten years. Outstanding incentive stock options have been issued at prices ranging from $0.34 to $78.50 per share.
The vesting period generally occurs ratably over four years. At December 31, 2004, there were approximately 785,000
options remaining available for grant. All incentive stock options which had been granted under the 1993 plan were
cancelled at inception of the Stock Option Plan while the non-qualified stock options remain outstanding at an exercise
price of $0.43. No more grants will be made under the 1993 plan.

Stock option transactions for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

2004 Price 2003 Price 2002 Price

Options outstanding at January 1 ............. 2,701,000 $33.38 2,484,000 $31.32 2,161,000 $27.12
Granted ................ ... ... . ... 945,000 14.18 472,000  40.74 499,000 43.30
Exercised ......... ... ... .. o . (56,000) 9.02  (156,000) 14.35 (155,000 9.75
Cancelled ............................ (346,000) 43.79 (99,000) 47.01 (21,000)  42.07
Options outstanding at end of period .......... 3,244,000 $27.09 2,701,000 $33.38 2,484,000 $31.32
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The following summarizes information about stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2004:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Number Average
Outstanding Remaining Weighted Weighted
Range of Exercise as of December 31, Contractual Average Number Average
_____lzice_ 2004 Life Exercise Price  Exercisable  Exercise Price
$0.34-1.00 ...... e 91,000 1.68 $ .48 91,000 $ 48
$1.01-8.00...... e 179,000 3.31 $ 7.86 179,000 $ 7.86
$9.00-11.625 ... ... 778,000 6.74 $11.57 448,000 $11.62
$11.626-20.00 .. ....ooiii 657,000 8.31 $15.26 175,000 $16.41
$20.01-4000 .......... i 343,000 7.55 $28.26 199,000 $31.08
$40.00-45.11 ... ... 628,000 7.25 $42.84 521,000 $42.99
$45.12-5000 ........ .. 317,000 7.61 $47.14 273,000 $47.42
$50.00-78.50 .. ... 251,000 E $63.25 196,000 $63.63
$0.34-7850 . ... o 3,244,000 @ $27.09 2,082,000 $30.50

The Company applies APB Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its plans. Accordingly,
compensation cost related to stock options issued to employees would be recorded on the date of grant only if the
current market price of the underlying stock exceeded the exercise price. The Company recorded deferred charges of
$3.3 million in 2004, $0 in 2003 and $164,000 in 2002, representing the fair value of restricted common stock granted
to employees.

Compensation expense for employee stock options was approximately $0, $767,000 and $1.9 million for 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

Compensation costs for stock options granted to non-employees are accounted for in accordance with SFAS
No. 123 and EITF 96-18 over the service period that generally coincides with vesting, generally four years. The
measurement date for the calculation of compensation expense is considered to be the date when all services have been
rendered or the date that options are fully vested. Compensation expense is recognized during interim periods up to the
measurement date based on changes in the fair value of the Company’s common stock. Compensation expense for non-
employee stock options of $22,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002, was recorded as an increase to additional
paid-in capital. Compensation expense reversal of $27,000 and $58,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively, was recorded as a decrease to additional paid-in capital.

7. INCOME TAXES

At December 31, 2004, the Company has net operating loss carryforwards (NOLs) for federal tax purposes of
approximately $333.4 million which expire in varying amounts between 2008 and 2024. The Company has state net
economic losses of approximately $258.1 million which expire in varying amounts between 2008 and 2019. The
Company has research and development credits of $9.2 million which expire in varying amounts between 2008 and
2024.

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 contains provisions which limit the ability to utilize net operating loss carryforwards
and tax credit carryforwards in the case of certain events including significant changes in ownership interests. If the
Company’s NOLs and/or tax credits are limited, and the Company has taxable income which exceeds the permissible
yearly NOL, the Company would incur a federal income and/or state tax liability even though NOLs would be
available in future years.
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The components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as
follows (in thousands):

2004 2003

Deferred tax assets:
Tax loss carryforwards . . ... e $ 125,119 $ 119,906
Tax Credits . oot 9,167 8,242
Deferred revenue .. ... 4,764 5,918
Reserves and accruals ... ... o e s 8,902 3,527

Total gross deferred tax assels . ... .. ..covnnir i 147,952 137,593
Valuation allowance . ....................... N (147,952) (137,593)
Netdeferred asset ... ..ottt — —
Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred tax lability . ......... .. — —
Net deferred tax assets (liability) .. ......... .. .. . . i $ —  $ —

The Company has established a valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty
surrounding the realization of such assets. The valuation allowance represents the amount necessary to reduce the
Company’s gross deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. The increase in the
valuation allowance was approximately $10.4 million, $28.2 million, and $32.6 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The valuation allowance includes deferred tax assets that when
realized, may increase equity rather than reduce tax expense. The Company will evaluate this amount when the criteria
for recognizing the deferred tax asset relating to these amounts are met.

The reasons for the difference between the actual income tax benefit for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002 and the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate to losses before income tax
benefit are as follows (in thousands):

% of Pre- % of Pre- % of Pre-
2004 tax Loss 2003 tax Loss 2002 tax Loss

Income tax benefit at statutoryrate ... ......... $(13,630) (34.000% $(22,339) (34.000% $(25,730) (34.00)%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit .. ... .. 3,599 8.98% — — — —
Non-deductible meals and entertainment

expensesandother ............... . ..... 303 0.75% 14 0.02% 14 0.02%
Non-deductible compensation . ............... —% 261 0.40% 600 0.79%
Generation of research credit ................ 631y (1.5N% (1,597) (243)% (2,280) @BOD%
Change in federal portion of valuation

allowance ......... .. ... . 10,359 25.84% 23,661 36.01% 27,396 36.20%
Incometaxbenefit......................... $ — —_— $ — — $ — —

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
401 (K) Plan

The Company sponsors a 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan (the “401k Plan”) under Section 401 (k) of the Internal
Revenue Code covering all qualified employees. Participants may elect a salary reduction from 1% to 75% as a
contribution to the 401k Plan, up to the annual Internal Revenue Service allowable contribution limit. Modifications of
the salary reductions may be made quarterly. The 401k Plan permits the Company to match participants’ contributions.
Beginning in 1998, the Company matched up to 100% of a participant’s contributions with Company stock, provided
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the participant was.employed on the last day of the year. The number of shares issued is based on the contributions to
be matched divided by the closing price of the Company’s stock on the last trading day of the year. During 2004,
43,000 shares were issued, and compensation expense of $614,000 was recognized. During 2003, 35,000 shares were
issued, and compensation expense of $724,000 was recognized. During 2002, 15,000 shares were issued, and
compensation expense of $662,000, was recognized. These shares vest ratably based on a participant’s years of service
and are fully vested after four years of service.

The normal retirement age shall be the later of a participant’s 65th birthday or the fifth anniversary of the first day
of the 401k Plan year in which participation commenced. The 401k Plan does not have an early retirement provision.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan, which permits eligible employees to purchase newly issued
common stock of the Company up to an aggregate of 250,000 shares. Under this plan, employees may purchase from
the Company a designated number of shares through payroll deductions at a price per share equal to 85% of the lesser
of the fair market vialue of the Company’s common stock as of the date of the grant or the date the right to purchase is
exercised. A total of 15,000, 16,000, and 14,000 shares were issued under this plan in 2004, 2003, and 2002,
respectively. At December 31, 2004 there were 96,000 shares remaining available for issuance.

Post-Retirement Health Insurance Continuation Plan

In June 2001, the Company adopted a post-retirement health insurance continuation plan (“the Plan”). Employees
who have achieved the eligibility requirements of 60 years of age and 10 years of service are eligible to participate in
the Plan. The Plan provides participants the opportunity to continue participating in the Company’s group health plan
after their date of retirement. Participants will pay the cost of health insurance premiums for this coverage, less any
contributions by the Company; this amount was previously capped at $300 per month per participant. In November
2003, the Plan was amended and the limit on contributions by the Company was changed to 50% of the health
insurance premium for the employee and his or her spouse. '

The components of net periodic post-retirement benefits cost and the significant assumptions of the Plan for 2004,
2003 and 2002 consisted of the following (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002

S EIVICE COSE vttt ettt et e e $135 $29 $17
ISt COSt . .ottt e e e 30 6 3
Recognized net actuarial 10SS ... .. ..ottt e — 1 —
Amortization of prior SErvice COSES . ... ...t e 24 3 3

Total . . $189 839 $23

The Plan’s status as of December 31 was as follows:

2004 2003

Accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation (APBO) . ........ ... ... i $(674) $(137)
Unrecognized Prior SETVICE COSL . . . v v vttt ettt e e et e e e e e e e e et 37 29
Unrecognized NEL10SS . ... ottt e e 42 36

Accrued post-retirement benefit COSt .. ... .. $(261) $ (72)

The accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation, or APBO, was determined using a discount rate of 6.00% and
6.25% at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. A 1% increase in the trend factors would increase the projected

F-18




TRIMERIS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—CONTINUED

APBO by approximately $160,000 and would increase the service and interest cost components by approximately
$56,000. A 1% decrease in the trend factors would decrease the projected APBO by approximately $120,000 and

would decrease the service and interest cost components by approximately $42,000.

The expected future benefit payments under the plan (in thousands) are as follows:

Year(s) ending Amount
2005 ... ... e $—
2006 . . e e PP —
2007 . —
200 . 1
2000 L 3
20100 2014 ... 84
Total L . e e $88

9. ROCHE COLLABORATION

In July 1999, the Company announced a worldwide agreement with F. Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd., or Roche, to
develop and market T-20, currently known as Fuzeon, whose generic name is enfuvirtide, and T-1249, or a
replacement compound. In the United States and Canada, the Company and Roche will share development expenses
and profits for Fuzeon and T-1249, or a replacement compound equally. Outside of these two countries, Roche will
fund all development costs and pay the Company royalties on net sales of these products. Roche made a nonrefundable
initial cash payment to the Company of $10 million during 1999, and a milestone payment of $2 million in 2000. The
Company recorded a $8 million milestone in March 2003, a $5 million milestone in May 2003, a $2.5 million
milestone in June 2003 and a $750,000 milestone in June 2004. The June 2004 milestone has been recorded as the
parties have agreed that certain performance has been met and that payment is appropriate. We have recorded this
amount as of December 31, 2004 in anticipation that we will reach a final agreement with terms substantially the same
as those we have agreed to in principle. Roche will provide up to an additional $33 million in cash upon achievement
of developmental, regulatory and commercial milestones. This agreement with Roche grants them an exclusive,
worldwide license for Fuzeon and T-1249, and certain other compounds. Under this agreement with Roche, a joint
management committee consisting of members from Trimeris and Roche oversees the strategy for the collaboration.
Roche may terminate its license for a particular country in its sole discretion with advance notice. This agreement with
Roche gives Roche significant control over important aspects of the commercialization of Fuzeon and our other drug
candidates, including but not limited to pricing, sales force activities, and promotional activities.

Roche is manufacturing Fuzeon bulk drug substance in its Boulder, Colorado facility. Roche’s manufacturing
facility in Basel, Switzerland and another third party facility are producing the finished drug product from such bulk
drug substance. Fuzeon is distributed and sold by Roche through Roche’s sales and distribution network throughout the
world in countries where regulatory approval has been received. -

The Company and Roche agreed to limit the Company’s actual cash contribution to the Fuzeon selling and marketing
expenses in 2004 to approximately $10 million, even though Roche has spent significantly more on these expenses. If
certain cumulative levels of sales for Fuzeon in the United States and Canada are achieved, our share of any additional
expenses incurred by Roche during 2004 will be payable to Roche beginning at a future date over several years from that
future date. We currently estimate this date to be in 2011. During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company’s share
of selling and marketing expenses exceeded $10 million. In addition to the $10 million included in collaboration loss, the
Company recorded a liability of $15.8 million as part of collaboration loss, which represents the net present value of the
Company’s estimated share of these expenses in excess of approximately $10 million, based on the expected timing and
terms of payment under the agreement. At present, Trimeris and Roche have not yet agreed what limit, if any, will be
placed on Trimeris’ contribution to Fuzeon selling and marketing expenses for 2005 and beyond.
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In July 1999, the Company granted Roche a warrant to purchase 362,000 shares of common stock at a purchase
price of $20.72 per share. The warrant is exercisable prior to the tenth annual anniversary of the grant date and was not
exercised as of December 31, 2004. The fair value of the warrant of $5.4 million was credited to additional paid-in
capital in 1999, and as a reduction of the $10 million up-front payment received from Roche. We deferred $4.6 million,
the net of the $10 million up-front payment and the $5.4 million in warrants, over the research and development period.
The value was calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model using the following assumptions: estimated
dividend yield of 0%; expected stock price volatility of 86.00%; risk-free interest rate of 5.20%; and expected option
life of ten years.

In 2001, the Company executed a research agreement with Roche to discover, develop and commercialize novel
generations of HIV fusion inhibitor peptides. Roche and Trimeris will fund worldwide research, development and
commercialization costs, and share profits from worldwide sales of new HIV fusion inhibitor peptides discovered after
July 1, 1999, The joint research obligations under the agreement are renewable thereafter on an annual basis. The term
of this agreement was extended to December 2005 during 2003.

Product sales of Fuzeon began in the United States on March 27, 2003 and are recorded by Roche. Under the
collaboration agreement with Roche, the Company shares profits equally from the sale of Fuzeon in the United States
and Canada with Roche, which is reported as collaboration loss in the Statements of Operations as a component of
revenue. Collaboration income or loss is calculated as follows: Total gross sales of Fuzeon in the United States and
Canada is reduced by any discounts, returns or rebates resulting in total net sales. Net sales is reduced by costs of goods
sold resulting in gross margin. Gross margin is reduced by selling, marketing and other expenses related to the sale of
Fuzeon, resulting in operating income or loss. The Company’s 50% share of the operating income or loss is reported as
collaboration income or loss. Total net sales of Fuzeon in the United States and Canada were $85.7 million and $28.3
million during the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2004
and 2003, sales, marketing and other expenses exceeded the gross margin from the sale of Fuzeon resulting in the
Company’s 50% ishare of operating loss from the sale of Fuzeon in the United States of $16.1 million and $25.5
million, respectively. Roche previously had an exclusive distribution arrangement with Chronimed, Inc. (“Chronimed”)
to distribute Fuzeon in the United States during 2003. This exclusive arrangement terminated on April 26, 2004.
Effective April 26, 2004, Fuzeon became available through retail and specialty pharmacies across the U.S. Prior to
April 26, 2004, revenue from product sales had been recognized when title and risk of loss had passed to Chronimed,
which was when Chronimed allocated drug for shipment to a patient. Beginning April 26, 2004, revenue is recognized
when Roche ships drug and title and risk of loss passes to wholesalers.

Our share of the collaboration loss for the year ended December 31, 2004 includes approximately $4.7 million of
a net charge comprised of our share of a supply contract penalty, and charges for the Boulder manufacturing facility
partially off-set by an adjustment to Roche’s inventory.

Under our collaboration agreement with Roche, the Company contributes towards a share of the capital invested
in Roche’s manufacturing facility through the depreciation charged to cost of goods sold as the products are sold.
Through a series of negotiations, we have reached an understanding in principle with Roche whereby we will pay
Roche for our share of the capital invested in Roche’s manufacturing facility over a seven-year period. We are in the
process of formalizing these terms in a written agreement. Our anticipated share of this capital investment is
approximately $14 million. As a result, we accrued an initial payment of $4 million at June 2004 and expect to pay
approximately $500,000 per quarter through June 2009. As.a result, Roche will no longer include the depreciation
related to the manufacturing facility in the cost of goods sold. In the event our collaboration agreement is terminated,
we would not be obligated for any unpaid amounts for capital investment.

These payments, net of the portion allocated to cost of goods sold, are recorded as an asset presented as

“Advanced payment—Roche”. This asset will be amortized based on the units of Fuzeon sold during the collaboration
period, in order to properly allocate the capital investment to cost of goods sold in future periods. Assuming all
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payments are made and sales of Fuzeon continue, the Company estimates that this asset has a remaining useful life of
approximately 12 years. In addition, other peptide drug candidates discovered under our collaboration with Roche,
including T-1249, can be manufactured using the same Roche facility. The carrying value of this asset will be
evaluated annually for impairment or ifa triggering event occurs.

10. OTHER COLLABORATIONS

In July 2001, the Company entered into a non-exclusive agreement with Array BioPharma, Inc. (“Array”™) to
discover orally-available small molecule fusion inhibitors of HIV and respiratory syncytial virus, or RSV. In April
2002, the Company entered into a non-exclusive agreement with Neokimia, Inc. (“Neokimia”) to discover and develop
small molecule HIV fusion inhibitors. Array and Neokimia will be entitled to receive payments and royalties based on
achievement of certain developmental and commercial milestones. In June 2004, Trimeris and Array announced the
renewal of their research agreement. As part of this renewed agreement, Trimeris will screen small molecule
compounds created by Array against HIV entry inhibitor targets. The terms of the agreement are substantially similar
to those of the initial agreement, signed in 2001.

In September 1997, the Company obtained an exclusive, worldwide, royalty-bearing license from the New York
Blood Center under certain U.S. and foreign patents and patent applications relating to certain HIV peptides. Under this
license we are required to pay to the New York Blood Center a royalty equal to one-half of one percent of the net sales
of Fuzeon up to $100 million, and one-quarter of one percent of net sales in excess of $100 million. Royalties of
$575,000 were expensed during 2004.

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is involved in certain claims arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of
management, the uitimate disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position
or results of operations of the Company. -

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had commitments of approximately $1.1 million to purchase product
candidate materials and fund various clinical studies over the next twenty-four months contingent on delivery of the
materials or performance of the services. Substantially all of these expenditures will be shared equally by Roche under
the Company’s collaboration agreement with Roche. Under this collaboration agreement, Trimeris and Roche are
obligated to share the future development expenses for Fuzeon and T-1249 for the United States and Canada.

In 2004, the Company entered into a sublease agreement for its office and laboratory space in Morrisville, North
Carolina. The sublease calls for the payment of a security deposit of $754,000 in 2005.

12. REDUCTION IN WORKFORCE

During January of 2004, we put further clinical development of T-1249 on hold. In connection with this
programmatic change, the Company reduced its workforce by approximately 25%. In January 2004 we initially
estimated approximately $600,000 in severance and other related costs; actual costs were approximately $450,000.
This expense was charged to the Statement of Operations under “Other research and development expense” and “Other
general and administrative expense,” in the first quarter of 2004. At December 31, 2004 there was no remaining
liability related to the reduction in workforce.
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10.24®  Form of Purchase Agreement dated as of May 7, 2001 by and between Trimeris, Inc. and the purchasers set

forth on the signature page thereto.

10.25®  Sublease Agreement dated as of December 14, 2001 between Trimeris, Inc. and Triangle Pharmaceuticals,

Inc.

10.26®  Second Amendment dated as of January 21, 2002 between University Place Properties, LLC and Trimeris,

Inc.

10.27  Form of Equity Option Confirmation for Call Transaction.

10.28@  First Amendment to the Research Agreement by and between Trimeris, Inc. and F. Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd.

And Hoffmann-La Roche Inc. dated November 13, 2003. (Portions of this exhibit have been omitted
pursuant to a request for confidential treatment filed with the Commission.)

10.29®  Form of Purchase Agreement dated as of January 23, 2002 by and between Trimeris, Inc. and the purchasers

set forth on the signature page thereto.

10.30tm  Rescission of the Amendment to the Development and License Agreement dated July 12, 2004.

10.31®  Amendment to the Development and License Agreement between Trimeris, Inc. and Hoffman-La Roche

dated on July 12, 2004. (Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment filed with the Commission.)

10.32®%  Third Amendment of Lease between University Place Properties, LLC and Trimeris, Inc. dated May 28,

2003.

10.33®  Agreement of Sublease by and between Gilead Sciences, Inc. and Trimeris, Inc.

10.34 Description of compensation arrangement for Andrew L. Graham. ¥

10.35 Description of non-management director compensation arrangements.
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Consent of KPMG LLP.

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification by Steven D. Skolsky as Chief Executive Officer.
Rule 13a-14(a) Certification by Robert R. Bonczek as Chief Financial Officer.
Section 1350 Certification by Steven D. Skolsky as Chief Executive Officer.
Section 1350 Certification by Robert R. Bonczek as Chief Financial Officer.

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this form pursuant
to Item 15(a) of this report.

Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-31109)
initially filed with the Commission on July 11, 1997.

Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1999.
Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999.
Incorporated by reference to Trimeris” Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000.
Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000.
Incorporated by reference to Trimeris” Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001.
Incorporated by reference to Trimeris” Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 11, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to Trimeris” Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001.
Incorporated by reference to Trimeris® Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on January 30,
2002.

Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 filed
with the Commission on March 25, 2002.
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(3) Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 filed
with the Commission on March 27, 2003.

(k) Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003,

(1) Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 filed
with the Commission on March 12, 2004,

(m) Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004,

(n) Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Current Report on Form &-K filed with the Commission on September 10,
2004.

(0) Incorporated Iby reference to Trimeris” Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2003,
filed with the Commission on October 15, 2004,

(p) Incorporated 'by reference to Trimeris’ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A for the quarter ended June 30, 2004,
filed with the Commission on October 15, 2004.

All financial statement schedules have been omitted because either they are not required, are not applicable or the
information is otherwise set forth in the Financial Statements and Notes thereto.




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Steven D. Sk_olsky, certify that:

1.1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Trimeris, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the company as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer(s) and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the company, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this report is being prepared,

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the company’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the company’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the company’s auditors and the audit committee of the company’s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
. financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the company’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a 31gn1ﬁcant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reportmg

Date : March 10, 2005

/s/ * STEVEN D. SKOLSKY

o ' Steven D. Skolsky
' Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Robert R. Bonczek, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Trimeris, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the company as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the company, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this report is being prepared; ' : :

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

(¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the company’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the company’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the company’s auditors and the audit committee of the company’s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent functions): '

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the company’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date : March 10, 2005

/s/  ROBERT R. BONCZEK

Robert R. Bonczek
Chief Financial Officer and General Counsel




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Trimeris, Inc. (the “Company”) for the period ending
December 31, 2004 as filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), 1, Steven D.
Skolsky, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
result of operations of the Company.

/s STEVEN D. SKOLSKY
Steven D. Skolsky

Chief Executive Officer
March 10, 2005

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to § 18 U.S.C. 1350 and is not being filed as part of
the Report or as a separate disclosure document.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Trimeris, Inc. (the “Company”) for the period ending
December 31, 2004 as filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Robert R.
Bonczek, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and ' :

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
result of operations of the Company.

/s ROBERT R. BONCZEK
Robert R. Bonczek

Chief Financial Officer
March 10, 2005

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to § 18 U.S.C. 1350 and is not being filed as part of
the Report or as a séparate disclosure document.
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KPMG LLP
150 Fayetteville Street Mall, Suite 1200
Raleigh, North Carolina 27601

Transfer Agent

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
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877-282-1168

www.eguiserve.com

Legal Counsel

Wilmer Cutler Pickering Hale and Dorr LLP
2445 M Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20037

Financial and Other information

The Company’s Annual Report filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on
Form 10-K, periodic filings and press releases
are available to shareholders without charge.
To obtain copies contact:

Investor Relations

Trimeris, Inc.

3500 Paramount Parkway
Morrisville, North Carolina 27560
Phone: 919-419-6050

Fax: 919-419-1816

Email: info@trimeris.com

Electronic copies of these reports are also
available at: www.trimeris.com

Trimeris' common stock is traded on the
Nasdag National Market System under
the symbol: TRMS

Board of Directors

Jeffrey M. Lipton
Chairman of the Board of Directors
President and Chief Executive Officer, NOVA Chemicals Corporation

Steven D. Skolsky
Chief Executive Officer, Trimeris, Inc.

Dani P. Bolognesi, Ph.D.
Chief Scientific Officer, Trimeris, Inc.

Felix J. Baker, Ph.D.
Managing Member
Baker Bros. Advisors, LLC

Julian C. Baker
Managing Member
Baker Bros. Advisors, LLC

E. Gary Cook, Ph.D.
Retired Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer,
Witco Corporation

J. Richard Crout, M.D.
President, Crout Consulting, Former Director, Bureau of Drugs,
U.S. Food and Drug Administration

Charles A. Sanders, M.D.
Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Glaxo Inc.

Kevin C. Tang
Founder and Managing Director of Tang Capital Management, LLC

Senior Management

Steven D. Skolsky
Chief Executive Officer

Dani P Bolognesi, Ph.D.
Chief Scientific Officer

Robert R. Bonczek, J.D.
Chief Financial Officer, General Counsel

Andrew L. Graham
Corporate Secretary, Director of Finance

M. Lynn Smiley, M.D.
Senior Vice President, Clinical Research

George W. Koszalka, Ph.D.
Executive Vice President, Scientific Operations

Trademarks

FUZEON® is a registered trademark of Hoffmann-LaRoche Inc.

Trimeris and the Trimeris logo are registered trademarks of Trimeris, Inc.

Epivir® (3TC®) and Combivir®are registered trademarks of Glaxo Group Limited UK
Biojector®is a registered trademark of Bioject Medical Technologies, Inc.

This document and any attachments may contain forward-looking information about the Company’s financial results and business prospects that
involve substantial risks and uncertainties. These staternents can be identified by the fact that they use words such as “expect,” “project,”
“intend,” "plan,” “believe” and other words and terms of similar meaning. Among the factors that could cause actual results to differ materially are
the following: there is uncertainty regarding the success of research and development activities, regulatory authorizations and product commer-
cializations; the results of our previous clinical trials are not necessarily indicative of future clinical trials; and, our drug candidates are based
upen novel technology, are difficult and expensive to manufacture, and may cause unexpected side effects. For a detailed description of
these factors, see Trimeris’ Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC") on March 11, 2005, and its periodic

reports filed with the SEC.



Trimeris, Inc.

3500 Paramount Parkway
Marrisville, NC 272560
Phone: 919-419-6050
Fax: 919-419-1816

Toll Free: 1-877-652-4027
www.trimeris.com
info@trimeris.com

s Zztient Suspert o Treatment

7 ofiizs o Novel Antiviral Therapies
ciivity © GP-4L

Uze o Extre-Calfutar
FUZEON® « Blocking Vi

- . - n
Tinicar Cancidzte o GP220

O

To Anerava!l o Fuson [nhibitien o Discovery o Development
o Zzviz~t Suzsort o Treetment Opticns o Resis

Lu ....-....LJuu

“xa-Cenuiar Activity © FIRST IN CLASS o GP-41 Protein Target © Bisck Wg\fira

__v___

RPN 2rgTies © SCiznlvic axpartise © cxwa-
SR o COMMERCIALIZATION © Clinical Candidate o GP-120 Protein Target © Sustained Release © Alignment
- sal o Fusien Inhikition © Discovery o Bevelopment © Unprecedented Efficacy © New Treatment P re g“ :

el

iral Therapies © Scientific Exnert’

o

nt Sugport © Treatment Options © Resistance Profiles o Noval Antiv

‘.-1 Pi@k\.uh farget o Blocking Viral Entry © Strategic Marketing © Clinical Candidate © GP- 120 Proteintarg

o Execution o FOCUS IS THE FUTURE o 704 Ful Approval © Fusion inhibition © .,»s"c

m'ww“ Y i
~ -

S

e»t

d Sfficacy © New Treatment Paradigm o Research © Innovation © Patient Suppaert © ireat z
iviral Ther@pies o Scientific Expertise © Extra-Cellular Activity © SAVE AND IMPROVE LIVES © GP-4L -
ic Mar+2ting o Clinical Candidate © GP-120 Protein Target o Sustained Release o Alfg~
_:.=~"=hibition o Discevery © Cevelopment o Unprecedented Efficacy © \% R
Sugou = ceatment Options © ACHIEVEMENT o Resistance Profiies © Nevz. . 0 72
O .1l Seatein Target © Blocking Viral Entry o Strategic Merketinz
>eytion © FDA Full Approval © TEAMWORK © Fusion . == .2n«

AN
> Zizcking Viral Entry © Strat

o~ o CREATIVITY o =54 Di‘ Auj""/

S
-, [P PR ©

TUIIIE T« - Tzziment Paradigm o Research © Innovation © Patie - z3or
Traatment Duuons * Red WIWE s Thnm e RO i ‘2 Expertise © Extra-Celiular Activity o GP-. fretely
T ~ieting © C 77 =r2ein Target © Sustained Release © Allynment

S e T T dppra -~ sinition o EXCELLENCE - Tz

T-zatment Paradigm © nezzstio o
-3 o Resistance Profiles © ‘T;:,::ei

{uf 10y

112 a0 g) ki

UOyIO

-~
)
3
=
=y
=
3
o
&
Al

ny




UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K/A
(AMENDMENT NO. 1) AN
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (d) OF THE & S
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 //
g
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 <\\\, due b

[J TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF TH \
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 @ \4

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 0-23155

TRIMERIS, INC. \

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

N
2R
1]

DELAWARE 56-1808663
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
3500 PARAMOUNT PARKWAY

MORRISVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 27560

(Address of principal executive offices, including zip code)

(919) 419-6050

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code:

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(B) OF THE ACT:
None
SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(G) OF THE ACT:
Common Stock, $.001 par value (Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15 (d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant
was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90
days. [X] Yes [] No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part III of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or any amendment to this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. []

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the
Act). Yes [ ] No

The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant, as of June 30, 2004 was
approximately $259,050,000 (based on the last sale price of such stock as reported by the Nasdag National Market
System on June 30, 2004).

The number of shares of the registrant’s common stock outstanding as of April 26, 2005 was 21,949,847,




Explanatory Note

This Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A, or Amendment No. 1, is being filed by Trimeris, Inc. to amend our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or SEC, on March 11, 2005, or the Initial Report, to include the information originally intended to be
incorporated by reference from our Definitive Proxy Statement for our 2005 annual meeting of stockholders pursuant
to Regulation 14A of the Securities Act of 1934, as amended.

Since we will not be filing our Definitive Proxy Statement by the end of 120 days following our fiscal year end as
originally intended, we are hereby filing this Amendment No. 1, to add the information required by Part IIT of Form
10-K. Pursuant to Rule 12b-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, Part III of the Initial Report is
hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following Part III as set forth below. As a result of this Amendment
No. 1, the certifications pursuant to Sections 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, filed as exhibits to the original
filing, have been re-executed and re-filed as of the date of this Amendment No. 1.

Other than as set forth in this Amendment No. 1, no information included in the Initial Report has been amended by
this Amendment No. 1. This Amendment No. 1 does not reflect events occurring after the filing of the Initial Report and
does not modify or update the disclosures therein in any other way than as required to reflect this Amendment No. 1.

As used in this Amendment No. 1, the terms “we,” “us,” “our,” “the Company” and “Trimeris” refer to Trimeris
Inc., unless the context indicates otherwise.




PARTIII

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following table sets forth the name, age and position of our executive officers, directors and key employees as
of April 28, 2005:

Name ;AE Position

Steven D. Skolsky . ........ .o 48  Chief Executive Officer and Director

Dani P. Bolognesi, Ph.D. ........... 64  Chief Scientific Officer and Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
Robert R.Bonczek ................ 60  Chief Financial Officer and General Counsel

M. Lynn Smiley, MD. ............. 52 Senior Vice President of Clinical Research

George Koszalka, Ph.D. ............ 54  Executive Vice President of Scientific Operations

Andrew Graham .................. 35  Director of Finance (Principal Accounting Officer) and Secretary
Jeffrey M. Lipton (1)(2)(3) .......... 62 Chairman of the Board of Directors

Felix J. Baker, PA.D. (2) ............ 36 Director

Julian C. Baker (3) ................ 38  Director

E. Gary Cook, Ph.D. )(3) .......... 60  Director

J. Richard Crout, M.D. (1) .......... 75 Director

Charles A. Sanders, M.D. (1)(2) ...... 73 Director

KevinC. Tang (2)(3) .............. 38 Director

(1) Member of the Audit and Finance Commitiee.
(2) Member of the Compensation Comumnittee.
(3) Member of the Nomination and Governance Committee.

Steven D. Skolsky, was named Chief Executive Officer in September 2004. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Skolsky was employed with GlaxoSmithKline (“GSK™), where he most recently managed product strategy and world
wide clinical development for the GSK portfolio as Senior Vice President, Global Commercial Strategy. Mr. Skolsky
previously served as Managing Director of GSK’s operations in New Zealand from 2000 to 2001 and in Australia from
1999 to 2000. Mr. Skolsky received his B.A. degree from the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill.

Dani P. Bolognesi, Ph.D., a founder of Trimeris, has been a director since its inception and served as Chief
Executive Officer of the Company from 1999 through August 2005. Dr. Bolognesi currently serves as Chief Scientific
Officer and Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors. Dr. Bolognesi held a number of positions at Duke University
from 1971 to March 1999, including, James B. Duke Professor of Surgery, Professor of Microbiology/Immunology,
Vice Chairman of the Department of Surgery for Research and Development and Director of the Duke University
Center for AIDS Research from 1989 to March 1999. From 1988 to March 1999, Dr. Bolognesi was the Director of the
Central Laboratory Network that supports all HIV vaccine clinical trials sponsored by the National Institutes of Health.
Dr. Bolognesi received his Ph.D. degree in Virology from Duke University and a B.S. degree from Rensselaer
Polytechnic Institute.

Robert R. Bonczek joined Trimeris as a consultant in March 1997. He was named Acting Chief Administrative
Officer and Acting Chief Financial Officer in September 1999, was named Chief Financial Officer in March 2000 and
was named General Counsel in April 2000. From 1991 until 2001, Mr. Bonczek acted in a consulting capacity for
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette, an investment bank, and for Wilmer Cutler Pickering Hale and Dorr LLP (formerly
Wilmer Cutler & Pickering), a law firm. Since 1991, Mr. Bonczek has served as President of AspenTree Capital, a
financial services and investment management company. Prior to 1991, Mr. Bonczek was with E.I. Du Pont de
Nemours & Co., a chemical company, for 24 years, holding a number of senior management positions, including
Corporate Counsel. Mr. Bonczek received his J.D. degree from the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill, his
M.B.A. from The Wharton School at the University of Pennsylvania and a B.A. degree from the University of North
Carolina at Chapel Hill.

M. Lynn Smiley, M.D. joined Trimeris as Senior Vice President of Clinical Research in January 2001. From
January 1997 until January 2001, Dr. Smiley served as Vice President of HIV and Opportunistic Infections Clinical

3



Development at Glaxo Wellcome, Inc., now GlaxoSmithKline plc. From March 1988 to December 1996, Dr. Smiley
held several positions in research and development at Burroughs Wellcome Co. and Glaxo Wellcome, Inc., including
Director of the Infectious Diseases and Immunology Department. Dr. Smiley has also held teaching positions at the
University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine since 1984, and has served as Clinical Professor of
Medicine since 1994. Dr. Smiley received her M.D. from Duke University Medical School and a B.A. degree from the
University of Kansas.

George Koszalka, Ph.D. joined Trimeris as Senior Vice President of Corporate Strategy in June 2002 and has
served as Executive Vice President of Scientific Operations since July 2004. Dr. Koszalka served as Division Director
of Virology at GlaxoSmithKline from January 2001 to June 2002, with global responsibilities for Research and Clinical
Virology and serving as a liaison between the commercial, clinical development and research areas in the antiviral
franchise. From 1973 until 2001, Dr. Koszalka held positions of increasing responsibility within Research and
Development with Burroughs Wellcome and Glaxo Wellcome. Dr. Koszalka holds an M.S degree and a Ph.D. in
Biochemistry from North Carolina State University and received a B.S. degree from Bethany College.

Andrew L. Graham, C.P.A. joined Trimeris as Director of Finance and Secretary in September 2004. From 2002
to 2004, Mr. Graham served as Chief Accounting Officer at Paradigm Genetics, Inc. From 1999 to 2002, Mr. Graham
served as Comptroller and later as Director of Finance at Paradigm Genetics, Inc. Mr. Graham received his B.A and
M.A. degrees in accounting from North Carolina State University and his M.B.A. from the University of North
Carolina at Chapel Hill.

" Jeffrey M. Lipton has been a director of Trimeris since June 1998 and has been Chairman of the Board since June
1999. Since July 1998, Mr. Lipton has been President and Chief Executive Officer of NOVA Chemicals Corporation.
Previously, Mr. Lipton served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of NOVA Corporation from
February 1994 until September 1994. From September 1994 to July 1998 he was President of NOVA Corporation.
Prior to NOVA, Mr. Lipton worked with E.I. Du Pont de Nemours & Co. for almost three decades, were he held a
number of senior management positions. Mr. Lipton serves on the Board of Directors of NOVA Chemicals
Corporation, and is a Director of Hercules Incorporated. Mr. Lipton is a Director, a member of the Executive
Committee, and Chairman of the Finance and Membership Committee of the American Chemistry Council. He is a
member of the Executive Committee and Honorary Secretary of the Society of Chemical Industry and is a member of
the Canadian Council of Chief Executives. Mr. Lipton received his M.B.A. from Harvard University and a B.S. degree
from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute.

Felix J. Baker, Ph.D. has served as a director of Trimeris, Inc. since April 2004. Dr. Baker is a Managing Member
of Baker Bros. Advisors, LLC, which he and his brother, Julian Baker, founded in 2000. Dr. Baker’s firm manages
Baker Brothers Investments, a family of long-term investment funds for university endowments and foundations,
which are focused on publicly traded life sciences companies. In 1994, Dr. Baker co-founded a biotechnology investing
partnership with the Tisch Family, which led to the establishment in 2000 of Baker/Tisch Advisors, LLC. Dr. Baker is
currently a Managing Member of Baker/Tisch Advisors. Dr. Baker holds a B.S. and a Ph.D. in Immunology from
Stanford University, where he also completed two years of medical school. He is also a director of Neurogen
Corporation, Conjuchem Inc., Seattle Genetics, Inc., and AnorMED Inc,

Julian C. Baker has served as a director of Trimeris, Inc since April 2004. Mr. Baker is a Managing Member of
Baker Bros. Advisors, LLC, which he and his brother, Felix Baker, Ph.D., founded in 2000. Mr. Baker’s firm manages
Baker Brothers Investments, a family of long-term investment funds for university endowments and foundations,
which are focused on publicly traded life sciences companies. In 1994, Mr. Baker co-founded a biotechnology
investing partnership with the Tisch Family, which led to the establishment in 2000 of Baker/Tisch Advisors, LLC.
Mr. Baker is currently a Managing Member of Baker/Tisch Advisors. Previously, Mr. Baker was employed from 1988
to 1993 by the private equity investment arm of Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation. He is also a director of Incyte
Corporation, Neurogen Corporation, and Theravance, Inc. Mr. Baker holds an A.B. magra cum laude from Harvard
University.

E. Gary Cook, Ph.D. has been a director of Trimeris since February 2000. Since May 2002, Dr. Cook has served
as Chairman of Integrated Environmental Technologies. From 1996 to 1999, Dr. Cook was Chairman of the Board of
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Directors, President and Chief Executive Officer of Witco Corporation, a global specialty chemicals corporation. From
1994 to 1996, Dr. Cook was President and Chief Operating Officer of Albemarle Corporation, a global specialty
chemicals corporation. From 1992 to 1994, Dr. Cook was Senior Vice President, President-——Chemicals, and member
of the Board of Directors of Ethyl Corporation. Prior to Ethyl, Dr. Cook was with E.I. Du Pont de Nemours & Co. for
23 years, holding a number of senior management positions, including Vice President, Printing and Publishing, Vice
President, Medical Products, and Vice President, Corporate Plans. Dr. Cook serves on the Boards of Directors of
Louisiana-Pacific Corporation and Envirokare Tech, Inc. Dr. Cook received his Ph.D. degree in Chemistry from The
Virginia Polytechnic Institute and University and a B.S. degree from the University of Virginia.

J. Richard Crout, M.D. has been a director of Trimeris since November 1998. Since 1994, Dr. Crout has been
President of Crout Consulting, a firm that provides consulting advice to pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies
on the development of new products. From 1984 to 1993, Dr. Crout was Vice President, Medical and Scientific Affairs
with Boehringer Mannheim Pharmaceuticals Corp. From 1973 to 1982, Dr. Crout was Director of the Bureau of Drugs,
now known as the Center for Drug Evaluation and Research at the U.S. Food and Drug Administration. Dr. Crout
received his M.D. degree from Northwestern University Medical School and an A.B. degree from Oberlin College.

Charles A. Sanders, M.D. has been a director of Trimeris since October 1996. From 1989 to May 1995,
Dr. Sanders was Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of Glaxo Inc. and a member of the
Board of Directors of Glaxo plc. Dr. Sanders is currently retired. Prior to joining Glaxo, Dr. Sanders held a number of
positions at Squibb Corporation, a multinational pharmaceutical corporation, including Vice Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer of the Science and Technology Group and Chairman of the Science and Technology Committee of
the Board. Dr. Sanders serves on the Boards of Directors of Vertex Pharmaceuticals Incorporated, Genentech, Inc.,
Biopure Corporation, Fisher Scientific International, Icagen Incorporated and Cephalon, Inc. Dr. Sanders received his
M.D. degree from Southwestern Medical College of the University of Texas.

Kevin C. Tang has been a director of Trimeris since August 2001. Mr. Tang is the Managing Director of Tang
Capital Management, LLC, a Life Sciences-focused investment company he founded in August 2002. From September
1993 to July 2001, Mr. Tang held various positions at Deutsche Banc Alex Brown, Inc., an investment banking firm,
most recently serving as Managing Director and head of the firm’s Life Sciences research group. Mr. Tang currently
serves as a director of IntraBiotics Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Mr. Tang received a B.S. from Duke University.

Audit Committee

The Board of Directors has a standing Audit and Finance Committee, which assists the Board in executing its
responsibilities. The Audit and Finance Committee’s responsibilities include providing oversight of the quality and
integrity of the Company’s regulatory and financial accounting and reporting, risk management, legal and regulatory
compliance, the internal and external audit functions and the preparation of this Audit and Finance Committee report.
The Audit and Finance Committee is composed of three non-employee directors, each of whom is independent as
defined in Nasdaq listing standards and is chaired by Dr. Crout. The other members of the committee are Mr. Lipton
and Dr. Sanders. Although each of the members of the Audit and Finance Committee is financially literate, the Board
has determined that Mr. Lipton is an audit committee financial expert as defined by the SEC. Our Board of Directors
has adopted a written charter for the Audit and Finance Committee, a copy of which is available on-line at
Www.trimeris.com.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our officers and directors, and persons who own more than 10% of a
registered class of our equity securities, to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the SEC and the
Nasdaq National Market (“Nasdaq”). Officers, directors and greater than 10% stockholders are required by SEC
regulations to furnish us with copies of all reports they file pursuant to Section 16(a).

Based solely on a review of the copies of such reports furnished to us, or written representations from certain
reporting persons that no other reports were required for those persons, we believe that, during the year ended
December 31, 2004, all Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to our officers, directors and greater than 10%
stockholders were satisfied.




Code of Ethics

The Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Ethics which outlines the principles, policies and laws that govern
the activities of our personnel and establishes guidelines for professional conduct in the workplace. The Code of Ethics
applies to all of our employees, officers and directors. A copy of our Code of Ethics is available on our website at
www.trimeris.com or you may request a free copy from our Compliance Officer at the following address: 3500
Paramount Parkway, Morrisville, NC 27560.

To date, there have been no waivers under our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics. We intend to disclose any
amendments to our Code of Ethics and any waiver granted from the Code on a Form 8-K filed with the SEC within four
business days following such amendment or waiver or on our website at www.trimeris.com within four business days
following such amendment or waiver. The information contained or connected to our website is not incorporated by
reference into this report and should not be considered a part of this or any other report that we file or furnish to the SEC.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Executive Compensation

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the annual and long-term compensation paid by
us during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 to Messrs. Skolsky, Bolognesi, Ellis (resigned
effective June 27, 2004), Bonczek, Koszalka, Creech (resigned effective October 25, 2004), and Graham (collectively,
the “Named Executive Officers”).

Summary Compensation Table

Long Term
Annual Compensation Compensation
Restricted Securities
‘ Stock Awards  Underlying All Other
Name And Principal Position Year Salary Bonus (2) [¢)) Options (#) Compensation
Steven D. Skolsky ................ 2004 $142,381(1) $ 70,000 $575,500(3) 350,000(5) 1y
Chief Executive Officer 2003 — — — — —
2002 — — — —_ —
Dani P. Bolognesi ................ 2004 $438,263 $167,000  $442,582(4)  94,000(6) an
Chief Scientific Officer 2003 437,304 — — 54,000(7) an
2002 417,300 313,000 — 69,000(8) ay
M. NixonEllis ................... 2004 $157,522 $ — — — $166,793(12)
President (resigned) 2003 314,304 — — 26,000(7) —_
2002 294,876 180,000 — 34,500(8) —
RobertR. Bonczek ................ 2004 $292,040 $ 89,000 $221,998(4)  47,200(6) an
Chief Financial Officer and General 2003 291,300 — — 26,000(7) (11)
Counsel 2002 278,604 127,000 — 34,500(8) (11)
Barney Koszalka . ..... PO 2004 $222,768 $ 49,000 $155,540(4)  32,800(6) (1)
Executive Vice President of 2003 196,308 53,000 — 14,000(7) a1
Scientific Operations 2002 111,013 51,000 — 10,000(9) an
Timothy J. Creech ................ 2004 $147,027 $ — $ 98,980(4)  20,800(6)(10) —
Vice President of Finance (Principal 2003 165,300 42,000 — 12,000(7) an
Accounting Officer) (resigned) 2002 149,304 57,000 — 9,500(8) (1
Andrew L. Graham ............... 2004 $ 45454(1) $ 7,000 — 5,000(9)
Director of Finance (Principal 2003 — — — —
Accounting Officer) 2002 — — — —

(1) Mr. Skolsky and Mr. Graham each commenced employment with Trimeris in September 2004.




2)

()

(4)

&)

(6)

(7

()

In February 2003, 2002 bonuses were awarded and paid to the Named Executive Officers for achievement in
2002; however, such bonuses are reported with the 2002 compensation. In February 2004, a 2003 bonus was
awarded and paid to Mr. Creech for achievement in 2003; however, such bonus was reported with the 2003
compensation. The other Named Executive Officers that were present in 2003 did not receive a bonus for that
year. In February 2005, 2004 bonuses were awarded and paid to the Named Executive Officers for achievement in
2004; however, such bonuses are reported with the 2004 compensation.

These shares of restricted stock were granted to Mr. Skolsky pursuant to the Amended and Restated Stock
Incentive Plan in connection with his initial employment agreement with Trimeris. The dollar value of the grant
was calculated using $11.51, the closing price of our stock on the date of grant. These restricted shares vest 100%
in September 2008. In the event that Mr. Skolsky’s employment is terminated because of death, disability, without
Cause, or for Good Reason (as these terms are defined in Mr. Skolsky’s employment agreement), Mr. Skolsky is
entitled to receive a pro rata number of the shares granted (but in no event, other than termination for Cause, shall
Mr. Skolsky be entitled to receive less than 50% of the shares granted).

On June 22, 2004, the Compensation Committee approved an aggregate number of shares of restricted stock to be
granted to all eligible employees, including the Named Executive Officers pursuant to our Amended and Restated
Stock Incentive Plan. The dollar value of the grant was calculated using $14.14, the closing price of our stock on
the date of grant. These restricted shares vest 100% in June 2007 and are cancelled in the event that employment
is terminated prior to vesting. ,

These options to purchase shares of stock were granted to Mr. Skolsky pursuant to the Amended and Restated
Stock Incentive Plan in connection with his initial employment agreement with Trimeris. The options vest
monthly over four years (100% vesting in September 2008). In the event that Mr. Skolsky’s employment is
terminated because of death, disability, without Cause, or for Good Reason (as these terms are defined in
Mr. Skolsky’s employment agreement), prior to September 2006, Mr. Skolsky will automatically vest in 50% of
the options granted.

On June 22, 2004, the Compensation Committee approved an aggregate number of options to purchase shares of
our common stock to be granted on a quarterly basis over four quarters to all eligible employees, including the
Named Executive Officers pursuant to our Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan. These option grants were
designed to be awarded at the fair market value of our common stock on the date of that particular quarterly grant.
These quarterly option grants began in June 2004 and continued thereafter until April 2005, as long as the
employee was employed by us on the date of grant. Once granted, the aggregate number of options become
exercisable over a four-year period, with the first grant in June 2004 exercisable in full in June 2005 and the
remainder of the grants exercisable ratably over a three-year pertod beginning in June 2005. The number in this
column represents the total number of options to purchase shares of our common stock that the Named Executive
Officer received pursuant to such grants on a quarterly basis in June 2004, October 2004, January 2005 and April
2005.

On June 18, 2003, the Compensation Committee approved an aggregate number of options to purchase shares of
our common stock to be granted on a quarterly basis over four quarters to all eligible employees, including the
Named Executive Officers pursuant to our Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan. These option grants were
designed to be awarded at the fair market value of our common stock on the date of that particular quarterly grant.
These quarterly option grants began in June 2003 and continued thereafter until April 2004, as long as the
employee was employed by us on the date of grant. Once granted, the aggregate number of options become
exercisable over a four-year period, with the first grant in June 2003 exercisable in full in June 2004 and the
remainder of the grants exercisable ratably over a three-year period beginning in June 2004. The number in this
column represents the total number of options to purchase shares of our common stock that the Named Executive
Officer received pursuant to such grants on a quarterly basis in June 2003, October 2003, January 2004 and April
2004.

On June 26, 2002, the Compensation Committee approved an aggregate number of options to purchase shares of
our common stock to be granted on a quarterly basis over four quarters to all eligible employees, including the
Named Executive Officers pursuant to our Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan. These option grants were
designed to be awarded at the fair market value of our common stock on the date of that particular quarterly grant.
These quarterly option grants began in June 2002 and continued thereafter until April 2003, as long as the
employee was employed by us on the date of grant. Once granted, the aggregate number of options become
exercisable over a four-year period, with the first grant in June 2002 exercisable in full in June 2003 and the
remainder of the grants exercisable ratably over a three-year period beginning in June 2003. The number in this
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column represents the total number of options to purchase shares of our common stock that the Named Executive
Officer received pursuant to such grants on a guarterly basis in June 2002, October 2002, January 2003 and April
2003.

(9) These options to purchase shares of stock were granted pursuant to the Amended and Restated Stock Incentive
Plan in connection with the executive officer’s commencement of employment with Trimeris. The options vest
monthly over four years from the date of commencement of employment.

(10) This number represents the total number of options approved by the Compensation Committee to be granted to
Mr. Creech beginning in June 2004. Mr. Creech received 10,400 of these options prior to his departure, however
these options expired unexercised following his termination of employment with the Company.

(11) Beginning in 1998, we matched up to 100% of a participant’s annual contributions to the Trimeris Employee
401(k) Plan with common stock, provided the participant was employed on the last day of the year. The number of
shares issued is based on the annual contributions to be matched divided by the closing price of the common stock
on the last trading day of the year. The dollar amount of matching contributions were calculated using the closing
stock price on the date of grant. On December 31, 2002, December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2004, the closing
price was $43.17, $20.94 and $14.17, respectively. On December 31, 2004, Mr. Skolsky received 635 shares of
stock. Based on the closing price that day the value of the Company’s 401(k) contribution to Mr. Skolsky for 2004
was approximately $9,000. Mr. Skolsky is not yet vested in any of these shares. On December 31, 2002,
December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2004, Dr. Bolognesi received 254, 540 and 917 shares of stock,
respectively, and as of April 23, 2005, is vested in all of those shares of stock. Based upon the closing price of the
Company’s common stock on the date of grant, the value of the Company’s 401(k) contributions to Dr. Bolognesi
for years 2002, 2003 and 2004 was approximately $11,000, $11,300 and $13,000, respectively. On December 31,
2002, December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2004, Mr. Bonczek received 277, 630 and 1,129 shares of stock,
respectively, and as of April 23, 2004, is vested in all of those shares of stock. Based upon the closing price of the
Company’s common stock on the date of grant, the value of the Company’s 401(k) contributions to Mr. Bonczek
for years 2002, 2003 and 2004 were approximately $12,000, $13,200 and $16,000, respectively. On December 31,
2002, December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2004, Dr. Koszalka received 170, 631 and 1,129 shares of stock,
respectively, and as of April 23, 2005, is vested in 50% of those shares of stock. Based upon the closing price of
the Company’s common stock on the date of grant, the value of the Company’s 401(k) contributions to Dr.
Koszalka for years 2002, 2003 and 2004 were approximately $7,300, $13,200 and $16,000, respectively. On
December 31, 2002, December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2004, Mr. Creech received 254, 540 and O shares of
stock, respectively, and as of April 23, 2004, is vested in all of those shares of stock. Based upon the closing price
of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant, the value of the Company’s 401(k) contributions to Mr.
Creech for years 2002 and 2003 were approximately $11,000 and $11.300, respectively. On December 31, 2004,
Mr. Graham received 381 shares of stock. Based upon the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the
date of grant, the value of the Company’s 401(k) contribution to Mr. Graham for 2004 was approximately $5,400.
Mr. Graham is not yet vested in any of these shares.

(12) In connection with his Separation and Severance Agreement with the Company, Dr. Ellis is entitled to continue
receiving his monthly base salary as of the date of termination of his employment for a period of two years
following termination (up to a total of $628,000). The amount reported for 2004 includes approximately $10,000
owed to Dr. Ellis as a result of unused vacation time.




Stock Option Grants

The following table sets forth the stock options we granted during the year ended December 31, 2004 to each of
our Named Executive Officers. We have never granted any stock appreciation rights.

Amounts shown as potential realizable values are based on compounded annual rates of share price appreciation
of five and ten percent over the 10-year term of the options, as mandated by rules of the SEC, and are not indicative of
expected share price performance. Actual gains, if any, on share option exercises are dependent on future performance
of the overall market conditions, as well as the option holder’s continued employment through the vesting period. The
amounts reflected in this table may not necessarily be achieved or may be exceeded. The indicated amounts are net of
the option exercise price but before taxes that may be payable upon exercise.

OPTIONS GRANTED IN THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Individual Grants
Percent Of Potential Realizable Value

. At Assumed Annual Rates
Number Of Total Options N Lo
Securities Granted To Exercise Of Stock Price Appreciation

Underlying Employees In Price Expiration For Option Term (6)
Name Options 2004 Per Share Date 5% 10%
Steven D. Skolsky .................. 350,0002)  37.0% $11.51  9/08/2014 $2,377,264 $5,945,442
Dani P. Bolognesi ................... 13,500(3) 1.4% 21.01 6/18/2013 167,376 418,601

13,500(3) 1.4% 1496 6/18/2013 115,263 286,156
23,500(4) 2.5% 14.14  6/22/2014 208,975 529,585
23,500(4) 2.5% 15.95  6/22/2014 228,457 575,279

M. NixonEllis(1) .................. 6,500(3) 0.7% 21.01  6/18/2013 80,589 201,549
6,500(3) 0.7% 14.96 6/18/2013 57,382 143,511
RobertR. Bonezek ............... ... 6,500(3) 0.7% 21.01  6/18/2013 80,589 201,549

6,500(3) 0.7% 1496  6/18/2013 55,497 137,779
11,800(4) 1.2% 14.14  6/22/2014 104,932 236,412
11,800(4) 1.2% 15.95 6/22/2014 114,715 288,864

Barney Koszalka .................... 3,500(3) 0.4% 21.01 6/18/2013 43,394 108,526
3,500(3) 0.4% 14.96  6/18/2013 30,898 77,275
8,200(4) 0.9% 14.14  6/22/2014 68,422 171,121
8,200(4) 0.9% 1595  6/22/2014 77,181 193,026

Timothy J. Creech (1) . ............... 3,000(3) 0.3% 21.01  6/18/2013 37,195 93,023
3,000(3) 0.3% 1496 6/18/2013 26,484 66,236
5,200(4) 0.6% 14.14  6/22/2014 43,390 108,516
5,200(4) 0.6% 1595  6/22/2014 48,944 122,407

Andrew L. Graham . ................. 5,000(5) 0.5% 11.95 9/01/2014 35,259 88,182

(1) This table represents the total number of options approved by the Compensation Committee to be granted to
named executive officer for 2004. In the case of both Dr. Ellis and Mr. Creech, these options expired unexercised
following termination of their employment with the Company.

(2) These options to purchase shares of stock were granted to Mr. Skolsky pursuant to the Amended and Restated
Stock Incentive Plan in connection with his initial employment agreement with Trimeris. The options vest
monthly over four years (100% vesting in September 2008). In the event that Mr. Skolsky’s employment is
terminated because of death, disability, without Cause, or for Good Reason (as these terms are defined in Mr.
Skolsky’s employment agreement), prior to September 2006, Mr. Skolsky will automatically vest in 50% of the
options granted.

(3) Each option represents the right to purchase one share of common stock. The options shown in this row were all
granted pursuant to the Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan. These options were granted in January 2004
and April 2004 based upon an aggregate option number determined in June 2003 that was designed to be granted
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on a quarterly basis over four quarters at the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant. These
January 2004 and April 2004 options become exercisable ratably over a three-year period that began in June 2004.
Upon the occurrence of certain events that result in a change of control, all outstanding options granted to all
employees, including executive officers, will become fully exercisable.

(4) Each option represents the right to purchase one share of common stock. The options shown in this row were all
granted pursuant to the Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan. These options were granted in June 2004 and
October 2004 and collectively become exercisable over a four-year period. The June 2004 grant is exercisable in
full in June 2005. The October 2004 grant is exercisable ratably over a three-year period that begins in June 2006.
The number of option shares granted in each instance was based upon an aggregate option number that was
determined in June 2004 and that was designed to be granted on a quarterly basis over four quarters at the fair
market value of our common stock on the date of grant. Upon the occurrence of certain events that result in a
change of control, all outstanding options granted to all employees, including executive officers, will become fully
exercisable.

(5) These options to purchase shares of stock were granted to Mr. Graham pursuant to the Amended and Restated
Stock Incentive Plan in connection with his initial employment agreement with Trimeris. The options vest
monthly over four years (100% vesting in September 2008).

(6) Amounts represent hypothetical gains that could be achieved for the respective options if exercised at the end of
the option term. The 5% and 10% assumed annual rates of compounded stock price appreciation are mandated by
the rules of the SEC and do not represent an estimate or projection of our future common stock prices. These
amounts represent certain assumed rates of appreciation in the value of our common stock from the fair market
value on the date of grant. Actual gains, if any, on stock option exercises are dependent on the future performance
of the common stock and overall stock market conditions. The amounts reflected in the table may not necessarily
be achieved.

Year-End Option Table

The following table contains information regarding stock options held by our named executive officers, and the
number of and value of any unexercised in-the-money options, as of December 31, 2004. The value of unexercised
in-the-money options at December 31, 2004 is based on a value of $14.17 per share, the fair market value of our
common stock as reflected by the closing price on the Nasdaq National Market on December 31, 2004, less the per
share exercise price, multiplied by the number of shares issuable upon exercise of the option.

AGGREGATED OPTION EXERCISES IN THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND YEAR-END
OPTION VALUES

Number of Securities
underlying Unexercised
Options as of December 31, Value of Unexercised In-the-Money

Shares Acquired Value 2004 (#) Options at December 31, 2004
Name on Exercise (#) Realized (1) Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
Steven D. Skolsky .......... — — 21,875 328,125 $ 58,188 $872,813
Dani P. Bolognesi ........... — — 524,352 114,890 1,323,584 705
M. Nixon Ellis (2) .......... — — 0 0 0 0
Robert R. Bonczek .......... —_— — 303,800 56,930 562,870 354
Timothy J. Creech (3) ........ 20,487(4) 62,485 54,334 22,766 50,900 156
Barney Koszalka . ........... — — 11,499 28,901 0 246
Andrew L. Graham .......... — — 416 4,584 924 10,176

(1) Value realized is calculated as the fair market value of our common stock as reflected by the closing price on the
Nasdaq National Market on the date of exercise, less the per share exercise price, multiplied by the number of
shares issuable upon exercise of the option.

(2) Mr. Ellis resigned from the Company, effective June 27, 2004.

(3) Mr. Creech resigned from the Company, effective October 25, 2004.

(4) At the time of exercise, Mr. Creech was not an employee of the Company.
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Employment Agreements

We have entered into employment agreements with some of our Named Executive Officers as described below. In
addition to the specific rights set forth in any agreement, in the event of any change in control, options and restricted
stock granted pursuant to the Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan contain a change in control provision, which
provides for the immediate vesting in full of all grants or lapse of all restrictions for all grantees.

In April 1999, we. entered into an employment agreement with Dr. Bolognesi to serve as our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Scientific Officer. Under this agreement, Dr. Bolognesi is entitled to receive minimum annual
compensation of $285,000, an annual bonus based upon the achievement of certain milestones and all health insurance
and other benefits generally made available to our employees. He also received in 1999 a one-time payment of $40,000
for replacement of lost income. In connection with the agreement, Dr. Bolognesi received a grant of options to
purchase 235,000 shares of common stock at $11.625 per share. If Dr. Bolognesi’s employment is terminated for any
reason other than for cause, Dr. Bolognesi’s employment agreement provides that he is entitled to his base salary and
benefits for two years from the date of termination. In April 2003, Dr. Bolognesi’s employment agreement was
automatically renewed until April 2005, unless terminated earlier in accordance with its terms. In September 2004, Dr.
Bolognesi stopped serving as Chief Executive Officer but continues to serve as Chief Scientific Officer. The Company
is currently in negotiations with Dr. Bolognesi with respect to the terms of a new contract.

In March 2000, we entered into an employment agreement with Dr. Ellis, our former President. Under this
agreement, Dr. Ellis is entitled to receive minimum annual compensation of $220,000, an annual bonus based upon the
achievement of certain milestones and all health insurance and other benefits generally made available to our
employees. In June 2004, the Company terminated its employment agreement with Dr. Ellis. According to the terms of
the Separation and Severance Agreement between Dr. Ellis and the Company, Dr. Ellis is entitled to receive his
monthly base salary as of the date of termination of his employment for a period of two years following termination.
The Company will contribute towards medical and dental coverage for Dr. Ellis and his wife through December 2005
as part of the Separation and Severance Agreement.

In January 2000, we entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Bonczek, our Chief Financial Officer and
General Counsel. Under this agreement, Mr. Bonczek is entitled to receive minimum annual compensation of $210,000
and an annual bonus based upon the achievement of certain milestones. Pursuant to his agreement, he also received in
2000 a one-time payment of $16,000 for replacement of lost income and in 2001 a one-time payment of $19,790 for
reimbursement for moving and miscellaneous expenses. In October 1999, Mr. Bonczek received a grant of options to
purchase 100,000 shares of common stock at $17.625 per share. If Mr. Bonczek’s employment is terminated for any
reason other than for cause, Mr. Bonczek’s agreement provides that he is entitled to his base salary and benefits for two
years from the date of such termination. In January 2004, Mr. Bonczek’s employment agreement was automatically
renewed until January 2006, unless terminated earlier in accordance with its terms.

In February 2004, we entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Creech, our former Vice President of
Finance. Under this agreement, Mr. Creech is entitled to receive minimum annual compensation of $172,000, an
annual bonus based upon the achievement of certain milestones and all health insurance and other benefits generally
made available to our employees. If Mr. Creech’s employment is terminated by the Company for any reason other than
for cause, Mr. Creech’s employment arrangement provides that he is entitled to his base salary and benefits from the
date of such termination until February 2005. This agreement expired according to its terms upon Mr. Creech’s
termination of employment in November 2004 with no further obligations on the part of the Company.

In June 2004, we entered into an employment agreement with Dr. Koszalka, our Executive Vice President of
Commercial Operations. Under this agreement, Dr. Koszalka is entitled to receive minimum annual compensation of
$235,000, an annual bonus based upon the achievement of certain milestones and all health insurance and other
benefits generally made available to our employees. If Dr. Koszalka’s employment is terminated for any reason other
than for cause, Dr. Koszalka’s employment arrangement provides that he is entitled to his base salary and benefits for
one year from the date of such termination. The agreement is set to expire in June 2006 and shall automatically renew
for a one-year period unless terminated earlier in accordance with its terms.

In September 2004, we entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Skolsky, our Chief Executive Officer.
The employment agreement has an initial term of two years and thereafter will automatically be extended for two year
periods unless notice of non-renewal is given by either party no later than 90 days prior to the end of the expiration of
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each term. Under the agreement, Mr. Skolsky will receive an annual salary of $450,000, as well as other compensation,
including bonus opportunities based upon the achievement of financial and other performance criteria. In addition,
under the agreement, Mr. Skolsky received a grant of an option to purchase 350,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock and a grant of 50,000 shares of restricted stock. Both the option grant and the restricted stock grant are subject to
the terms of the Company’s Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan. In the event that Mr. Skolsky’s employment
is terminated other than for Cause, death or Disability or upon his resignation for Good Reason (as these terms are
defined in the agreement), Mr. Skolsky will be entitled to certain severance payments and benefits, including two times
his base salary plus his Target Bonus (as defined in the Employment Agreement). Mr. Skolsky will also be entitled to a
pro rata bonus for the year of termination based on actual results for such year if he is terminated due to death,
Disability, termination without Cause, or upon resignation for Good Reason. Mr. Skolsky is subject to non-competition
restrictions during the term of his employment and for one year thereafter. In the event that the payment of benefits is
due as a result of a Change of Control, the Company is required to pay any excise taxes that may apply to such
benefits. Mr. Skolsky is entitled to receive reimbursement for financial planning and tax preparation (including a gross-
up for any taxes incurred on payment for these services) up to a maximum of $10,000 per year.

401(k) Plan

The Company sponsors a 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan (the “401(k) Plan™) under Section 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code covering all qualified employees. Participants may elect a salary reduction from 1% to 75% as a
contribution to the 401(k) Plan, up to the annual Internal Revenue Service allowable contribution limit, Modifications
of the salary reductions may be made quarterly. The 401(k) Plan permits the Company to match participants’
contributions. Beginning in 1998, the Company matched up to 100% of a participant’s contributions with Company
stock, provided the participant was employed on the last day of the year. Matching contribution shares vest ratably
based on a participant’s years of service and are fully vested after four years of service.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

Our Board of Directors’ Compensation Committee is responsible for determining the salaries and incentive
compensation of the executive officers and providing recommendations for the salaries and incentive compensation of
all other employees and consultants. The Compensation Committee also administers our benefit plans, including the
Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan. Dr. Cook serves as the Chairman of the Compensation Committee and
the other members of the committee are Mr. Lipton, Dr. Sanders, Mr. Tang and Felix J. Baker. None of Dr. Cook,
Dr. Baker, Mr. Lipton, Dr. Sanders or Mr. Tang has served as an officer or employee of Trimeris or has any
relationship with Trimeris requiring disclosure under SEC regulations.

Director Compensation

We reimburse our directors for all reasonable and necessary travel and other incidental expenses incurred in
connection with their attendance at meetings of the Board. Directors do not receive additional compensation in connection
with their attendance at meetings. In addition, all eligible non-employee directors, except the Chairman, automatically
receive a grant of an option on the date of our annual meeting to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock. The Chairman
automatically receives a grant of an option on the date of our annual meeting to purchase 15,000 shares of common stock.
In addition, all eligible non-employee directors serving as members of the Compensation Committee or Audit and Finance
Committee, except the directors serving as chairmen of these committees, receive an option on the date of our annual
meeting to purchase 1,250 shares of common stock. The directors serving as chairmen of these committees each receives
a grant of an option at the date of our annual meeting to purchase 2,500 shares of common stock. These options have an
exercise price equal to 100% of the fair market value of our common stock on the grant date and become exercisable after
the completion of one year of service following the grant. Newly-elected directors are granted an option to purchase
20,000 shares of common stock, with the options vesting ratably over the three years. These options have an exercise price
equal to 100% of the fair market value of our common stock on the grant date. Members of the Nomination and
Governance Committee do not receive any compensation for serving on this committee.

Compensation Committee Report on Executive Compensation

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors offers this report regarding compensation for our executive
officers, including our Chief Executive Officer. The Compensation Committee is composed entirely of independent
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directors (as defined in the Nasdaq listing standards) and is responsible for developing and making recommendations to
the Board with respect to our executive compensation policies and practices, including the establishment of the annual
total compensation for all executive officers, including our Chief Executive Officer.

General Compensation Policy. Our primary objective is to maximize the value of our shares over time. The
Compensation Committee, with this objective in mind, authorizes compensation packages for our executive officers
designed to retain and attract top quality management and to encourage them to contribute to the achievement of our
business objectives. In addition, the Committee attempts to establish compensation packages that are comparable to the
packages received by executives of similar companies, in our industry.

We compensate our executive officers with a combination of salary and incentives designed to encourage efforts
to achieve both our short-term and long-term goals. The compensation structure attempts to reward both individual
contributions and our overall corporate performance. The Committee evaluates corporate performance and makes
executive compensation decisions from various performance measures such as sales growth, earnings per share,
achieving milestones in the development of drug candidates and raising capital needed for operations.

Section 162(m) of the Code limits the federal income tax deductibility of compensation paid to Trimeris’ five
most highly compensated executive officers. Under this section of the Code, the Company generally may deduct
compensation paid to any such officer to the extent that it does not exceed $1 million during any calendar year or is
“performance-based” as defined in Section 162(m). The Compensation Committee expects that the deductibility limit
of Section 162(m) will not currently have a significant effect on the Company. Current cash compensation paid to each
of the Company’s executives is less than $1 million per year and is thus generally fully deductible to Trimeris.

The basic components of our compensation packages for our executive officers include the following:
* Base Salary

¢ Performance Incentive Awards

¢ Long-term Incentives

*  Benefits

Each executive officer’s compensation package contains a mix of these components and is designed to provide a level
of compensation competitive with the compensation paid to comparable officers of similar biopharmaceutical companies.
The Committee favors a compensation structure that aligns the long-term interests of its executive officers with the interests
of its stockholders, and as a result places significant weight upon long-term incentives in the form of equity compensation.

Base Salary. Base salary and increases in base salary are determined by both individual and Company
performance, as well as the salary levels in effect for similar biopharmaceutical companies. During 2004, the
Committee attempted to keep the base salaries of our officers at a level consistent with the median range of the salaries
of equivalent officers in similar biopharmaceutical companies. In addition, the Committee considered the following
factors in setting the base salaries for executive officers during 2005: our sales of FUZEON, achievement of cost and
earnings objectives, our progress in the development of next generation fusion inhibitors, and contributions in any area
of special expertise by a particular executive.

Performance Incentive Awards. Performance incentive awards are granted by the Committee based upon its
evaluation of the performance of each executive officer and the achievement of our goals during the year. Payment of
bonuses occurs as soon as practical in the following calendar year. In February 2005, bonuses totaling $382,000 were
awarded to the Named Executive Officers for achievements in 2004, which included increases in FUZEON sales and
progress in the development of a third generation clinical candidate.

Long-term Incentive Compensation. Long-term incentive compensation in the form of stock-based awards is
expected to be the largest element of total compensation over time in order to conserve our cash resources, to align the
long-term interests of each officer with the interests of our stockholders and to provide long-term incentives for the
individual officer to remain with us. Grants are generally made to most employees on their date of hire based on salary
level and position. Under our stock option plan, stock option grants made in connection with commencement of
employment are priced at the fair market value on the date of grant, generally become exercisable aver a period of four
years and have a term of up to ten years. All employees, including executive officers, are eligible for subsequent
discretionary grants, which are generally based on corporate and/or individual performance. During the period covering
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2000-2004, the number of options to be granted was determined each June. The options were granted in June, October,
January and April at the fair market value of our common stock on the date of each grant. In order to receive the
quarterly grant, the individual employee was required to be employed on the date of grant. Prior to 2000, discretionary
grants were awarded on an annual basis at the fair market value on the date of grant and became exercisable over a
period of four years. The size of the stock option grant to each officer is based on the officer’s current position and
expected future contributions to our businéss. Awards of stock options are designed to have an expected aggregate
exercise value over time equal to a multiple of salary, which are expected to create a significant value opportunity
based upon stock ownership. Restricted stock grants include a restriction that lapses after three years of service with
the Company and are subject to the provisions of the Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan.

Benefits. Benefits offered to our executive officers are substantially the same as those offered to all our regular
employees and generally include medical insurance, dental insurance, 401(k) plan, employee stock purchase plan,
disability insurance, life insurance and flexible spending account.

CEO COMPENSATION

Mr. Skolsky’s compensation in 2004, including base salary, bonus award and stock-based incentive grants was
determined within the same general framework established for all executive officers of the Company. However, in light
of the fact that 2004 was the first year of Mr. Skolsky’s employment, the Committee also considered the requirements
of attracting a top-level executive to the Company.

Mr. Skolsky’s 2004 base salary of $450,000 was arrived at using various surveys regarding executive
compensation at similar biopharmaceutical companies. Prior to the Committee establishing Mr. Skolsky’s bases salary
for 2004, the Committee conducted an extensive study of compensation for officers with similar responsibilities in
similar biopharmaceutical companies.

Mr. Skolsky’s target bonus is set by contract to range from 25% -75% of his base salary based on financial and
other criteria set by the board in consultation with Mr. Skolsky. Mr. Skolsky’s bonus award was $70,000 for 2004,
which was pro rated for his partial year of service. The Committee based the bonus on objectives relating to FUZEON
sales and other personal objectives.

In September 2004, we entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Skolsky, to serve as our Chief Executive
Officer and a member of our Board of Directors. The employment agreement has an initial term of two years and
thereafter will automatically be extended for two year periods unless notice of non-renewal is given by either party no
later than 90 days prior to the end of the expiration of each term. Under the agreement, Mr. Skolsky will receive an
annual salary of $450,000, as well as other compensation, including bonus opportunities based upon the achievement
of financial and other performance criteria. In addition, under the agreement, Mr. Skolsky received a grant of an option
to purchase 350,000 shares of the Company’s common stock and a grant of 50,000 shares of restricted stock. Both the
option grant and the restricted stock grant are subject to the terms of the Company’s Amended and Restated Stock
Incentive Plan. For a detailed discussion of Mr. Skolsky’s employment agreement, please refer to the section entitled
“Employment Agreements” on page 11 of this Amendment No. 1.

The Committee expects that stock options will represent the largest element of Mr. Skolsky’s compensation and
will provide a direct link between Mr. Skolsky’s compensation and the Company’s performance overall. The
Committee believes that Mr. Skolsky’s inducement package was appropriate to attract an executive of Mr. Skolsky’s
background and experience and are comparable to the compensation offered to chief executive officers in similar
biopharmaceutical companies. In addition, it is the Committee’s judgment that Mr. Skolsky’s commercial experience
and management leadership skills are extremely important to the Company, and it is therefore essential to provide Mr.
Skolsky with a significant unvested stock ownership position.

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors

E. Gary Cook, Ph.D., Chairman
Felix J. Baker, Ph.D.

Jeffrey M. Lipton

Charles A. Sanders, M.D.
Kevin C. Tang
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Stock Performance Graph

Comparative Total Returns
December 31, 1999
through December 31, 2004
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The following table compares the yearly percentage change in the cumulative total stockholder return on Trimeris
common stock during the five fiscal years ended December 31, 2004 with cumulative total return on the Nasdaq stock
market and the Nasdaq Pharmaceuticals index. The comparison assumes $100 was invested on December 31, 1999 in
Trimeris common stock and in each of such indices and assumes reinvestment of any dividends.

CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

12/31/99  12/31/00  12/31/001  12/31/02  12/31/03  12/31/04

TRIMERIS, INC. . ..o\ o $100 $232  $190  $I183  $89 $ 60
NASDAQ STOCK MARKET-US .. .......oovvee. .. $100 $60 $48 $33 $49 $ 54
NASDAQ PHARMACEUTICALS ................... $100  $125 $106 $69  $101  $107

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in any of our previous or future filings under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, that might incorporate
this report or future filings made by the Company under those statutes, the Compensation Committee Report
and Stock Performance Graph are not deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and shall not
be deemed incorporated by reference into any of those prior filings or into any future filings made by us under
those statutes.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The following table sets forth information with respect to the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of
April 26, 2005, for each person or group of affiliated persons, whom we know to beneficially own more than 5% of our
common stock. The table also sets forth such information for our directors and executive officers, individually and as a
group.

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, or
SEC. Except as indicated by footnote, to our knowledge, the persons named in the table have sole voting and
investment power with respect to all shares of common stock shown as beneficially owned by them. Options to
purchase shares of common stock that are exercisable within 60 days of April 26, 2005 are deemed to be beneficially
owned by the person holding such options for the purpose of computing ownership of such person, but are not treated
as outstanding for the purpose of computing the ownership of any other person. Applicable percentage of beneficial
ownership is based on 21,949,847 shares of common stock outstanding as of April 26, 2005.

Unless otherwise indicated in the footnotes, the address for each listed stockholder is: c/o Trimeris, Inc., 3500

Paramount Parkway, Morrisville, North Carolina 27560.
Total Number of Options  Percentage of Total

Number of Options Number of Shares and Shares Beneficially Number of Shares and
M Beneficially Owned(# Beneficially Owned(#) Owned(#) Options Owned
Felix J. Baker and Julian C.

Baker (1)................. 34,582 3,642,369 3,676,951 16.8%
Mazama Capital Management,

Inc.(2) .......coveiiin.. 2,988,135 2,988,135 13.6%
T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc.

) I 2,837,420 2,837,420 12.9%
Franklin Advisors, Inc. (4) ... .. 2,530,616 2,530,616 11.5%
Andrew H. Tisch, Daniel R.

Tisch, James S. Tisch and

Thomas J. Tisch (§) ........ 2,158,848 2,158,848 9.8%
Barclays Global Investors (6) . . . 1,298,157 1,298,157 5.9%
Steven D. Skolsky (7) ........ 65,625 50,635 116,260 *%
Dani P. Bolognesi (8) ......... 575,825 90,331 666,156 3.0%
Robert R. Bonczek (9) ........ 325,893 43,234 369,127 1.7%
Barney Koszalka (10) ......... 22,698 12,930 35,628 *%
Andrew L. Graham (11) ....... 937 381 937 *%
Jeffrey M. Lipton (12) ........ 110,000 175,822 285,822 1.3%
E.Gary Cook (13) ........... 70,000 3,500 73,500 *%
J. Richard Crout (14) ......... 56,667 6,370 63,537 *0p
Charles A. Sanders ........... 88,383 7,804 96,187 *%
KevinC. Tang (15) .......... 53,750 185,500 239,250 1.1%
All executive officers and

directors as a group (twelve

persons) (16) .............. 1,404,360 4,219,376 5,623,736 25.6%

*  Less than 1%.

(1) Based on a information provided by Felix J. Baker and Julian C. Baker each reported shared voting power and
shared dispositive power over the shares listed. Julian C. Baker is the beneficial owner of 16,666 options and Felix
J. Baker is the beneficial owner of 17,916 options. The address of Felix J. Baker and Julian C. Baker is:
667 Madison Avenue, New York, New York 10021.

(2) Based on Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 14, 2005, Mazama Capital Management, Inc. held sole
voting power as to 1,585,750 shares and sole dispositive power as to 2,988,135 shares. The address for Mazama
Capital Management, Inc. is: One S.W. Columbia, Suite 1500, Portland, Oregon 97258.

(3) Based on Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 14, 2005, T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. held sole
voting power as to 820,020 shares and sole dispositive power as to 2,837,420 shares. T. Rowe Price Associates,
Inc.’s address is 100 East Pratt Street, Baltimore, Maryland 21202.
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(4) Based on Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 13, 2005, Franklin Advisors, Inc. held sole voting power
as to 2,530,616 shares and sole dispositive power as to 2,530,616 shares. Franklin Advisors, Inc.’s address is One
Franklin Parkway, San Mateo, CA 94403.

(5) Based on a Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on April 28, 2004. Each person reported shared voting power and
shared dispositive power over certain of the shares listed. Because of certain family relationships among the
reporting persons, they filed the Schedule 13G jointly, but each reporting person disclaimed beneficial ownership
of shares owned by any other reporting person. The address of Andrew H. Tisch, James S. Tisch and Thomas
J. Tisch is 667 Madison Avenue, New York, New York 10021. The address of Daniel R. Tisch is: 500 Park
Avenue, New York, New York 10022.

(6) Based on Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 14, 2005, Barclays Global Investors, N.A., Inc. held sole
voting power as to 1,180,416 shares and sole dispositive power as to 1,298,157 shares. The address for Barclays
Global Investors, N.A. 1s: 45 Fremont Street, San Francisco, CA 94105.

(7) Includes 50,000 restricted stock shares that were granted pursuant to the Amended and Restated Stock Incentive
Plan, in connection with his initial employment agreement. These shares vest 100% in September 2008. Also
includes 635 shares held in Mr. Skolsky’s 401(k) plan account. Mr. Skolsky is not currently vested in any of these
401(k) plan shares. Mr. Skolsky holds voting power as to his restricted stock and his 401(k) shares.

(8) Includes 31,300 restricted stock shares that were granted pursvant to the Amended and Restated Stock Incentive
Plan. These restricted stock shares vest 100% in June 2007. Also includes 2,559 shares held in Dr. Bolognesi’s
401(k) plan account. Dr. Bolognesi is currently vested in 100% of these 401(k) plan shares. Dr. Bolognesi holds
voting power as to his restricted stock and his 401(k) shares. Includes further, the following shares as to which
Dr. Bolognesi disclaims beneficial ownership: 9,000 shares of common stock owned by Sarah Bolognesi,
Dr. Bolognesi’s wife, and 7,153 shares that Mrs. Bolognesi may acquire pursuant to certain stock options
exercisable within 60 days after April 26, 2003.

(9) Includes 15,700 restricted stock shares granted pursuant to the Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan. These
restricted stock shares vest 100% in June 2007. Also includes 2,180 shares held in Mr. Bonczek’s 401(k) plan
account. Mr. Bonczek is currently vested in 100% of these 401(k) plan shares. Mr. Bonczek holds voting power as
to his restricted stock and his 401(k) shares.

(10) Includes 11,000 restricted stock shares granted pursuant to the Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan. These
restricted stock shares vest 100% in June 2007. Includes further, 1,930 shares held in Dr. Koszalka's 401(k) plan
account. Dr. Koszalka is currently vested in 75% of these 401(k) plan shares. Dr. Koszalka holds voting power as
to his restricted shock and his 401(k) shares.

(11) Includes 381 shares held in Mr. Graham’s 401(k) plan account. Mr. Graham is not currently vested in any of these
401(k) plan shares.

(12) Includes the following shares as to which Mr. Lipton disclaims beneficial ownership: 8,540 shares beneficially
owned by Shelley Lipton, Mr. Lipton’s wife and 3,300 shares held by his sons and grandchildren.

(13) Includes the following shares as to which Dr. Cook disclaims beneficial ownership: 1,500 shares beneficially
owned by Brenda B. Cook, Dr. Cook’s wife.

(14) Includes the following shares as to which Dr. Crout disclaims beneficial ownership: 1,500 shares beneficially
owned by the Keith R. Crout Irrevocable Trust, for which Keith R. Crout, Dr. Crout’s son who shares Dr. Crout’s
house, is the sole beneficiary and Linda C. Spevacek, Dr. Crout’s daughter, is the sole trustee; 470 shares
beneficially owned by Keith R. Crout, Dr. Crout’s son who shares Dr. Crout’s house; and 900 shares beneficially
owned by Carol K. Crout, Dr. Crout’s wife.

(15) Includes 22,500 shares that Mr. Tang contributed to the Tang Family Trust u/t/d August 27, 2002, of which Mr. Tang
is co-trustee. Includes 163,000 shares owned by Tang Capital Partners, LP of which Tang Capital Management, LLC
is the general partner. Mr. Tang disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares except to the extent of his pecuniary
interest therein. Mr. Tang is the sole managing member of Tang Capital Management, LLC.

(16) See notes (1) and (7)—(15).
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Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth certain information as of December 31, 2004, regarding shares authorized for
issuance under our equity compensation plans.

The equity compensation plans approved by our stockholders are the Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan
and our 1997 Trimeris, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan. As of December 31, 2004, we did not have any equity
compensation plans that were not approved by our stockholders.

Equity Compensation Plan Information as of December 31, 2004

Number of securities Number of securities
to be issued upon Weighted average remaining available for
exercise of exercise price of future issuance under
outstanding options, outstanding equity compensation plans(#)
warrants and options, warrants (excluding securities
Plan Category rights(#) and rights reflected in column (a))
(a) (b) (©
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders .......... i . 3,473,000(1) $27.09 652,000(2)
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders ....... ... .. i — — —
Total ... .. . e 3,473,000 $27.09 652,000

(1) This amount includes the following awards granted pursuant to the Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan:
* 3,244,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of outstanding stock options.

* 229,000 restricted stock shares. Since these restricted stock awards are freely transferable upon vesting and
have no exercise price, they are not included in the weighted average exercise price calculation in column (b).

(2) Includes 556,000 options remaining available for grant under the Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan,
and 96,000 shares issuable under the Trimeris, Inc. 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

In 2004, the Board of Directors voted to expand the Board and to appoint Felix J. Baker and Julian C. Baker as
new directors. In connection with their appointment to the Board, the Company granted the Bakers certain registration
rights related to the resale of Trimeris common stock.

During 2004, there were.no other transactions between the Company and any officer, director or principal
stockholder except those related to employment and executive compensatios.

For information regarding compensation and employment agreements with our directors and executive officers,
see [tem 11, “Executive Compensation.”
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The aggregate fees billed to Trimeris by KPMG LLP for services rendered related to 2004 are set forth in the
following table:

Type of Service Amount of Fee
Audit Fees
Audit fees for the 2004 financial statements (including quarterly reviews) ...................... $177,510
Attestation report of effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting and management’s
ASSESSIMENT .« . ottt et ettt e e et e e e e e e e e 202,940
Audit related fees (miscellaneous consultation) .. .. ... ottt 12,055
Comfort Letters and registration Statements . .. .. ... ...ttt ittt e —
Audit related fees
Audit of 401(K) plan . ... .. i e 22,000
Total audit and audit related fees .. ... ..ottt e e $414,505
Tax fees
Tax COMPHANCE . . ... ettt e e e e e e e 11,785
Tax consulting (relating to compensation and benefits issues) ................. ... ... ... ..., —
Total tax SErVICE TEES . ..o\ttt $ 11,785
Allother fees . ... . . e e —
Lot FOES o $426,290

The aggregate fees billed to Trimeris by KPMG LLP for services rendered related to 2003 are set forth in the
following table:

Type of Service Amount of Fee
Audit fees
Audit fees for the 2003 financial statements (including quarterly reviews) ...................... $139,000
Attestation report of effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting and management’s
Tyt 1) 11 1=) 1) e —
Audit related fees (miscellaneous consultation) . ........... i e e —
Comfort Letters and registration SIatements . . .. ... ..ottt ittt i 4,960
Audit related fees
Audit of 401(K) plan ... ... e e e —
Total audit and audit related T8e5 . .. .. oottt $143,960
Tax fees
Tax COMPIIANCE . . L. ottt ettt e et e e e e e e 8,375
Tax consulting (relating to compensation and benefits issues) ............ ... ... ... .. oL, 1,950
Total tAX SEIVICE fR8S . . o ottt e 10,325
Allother fees .. ... . . . . . e —
TOtal EES .. e $154,285

Pre-Approval Policy and Procedures

The Audit Committee has adopted a policy that requires advance approval of all audit, audit-related, tax and other
services performed by the independent registered public accounting firm. During the year, circumstances may arise when
it becomes necessary to engage the independent auditor for additional services that are not contemplated in the original
pre-approval. In those instances, the Audit Committee requires specific pre-approval before engaging the independent
auditor. The Audit Committee has delegated to the chair of the Audit Committee the authority to pre-approve audit related
and non-audit services not prohibited by law to be performed by the Company’s independent registered public accounting
firm and associated fees up to a maximum for any one audit-related or non-audit service of $5,000 per service in a
calendar year. The chairman is required to report, for informational purposes only, any pre-approval decisions that have
been made to the Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting. The Audit Committee is prohibited from delegating to
management its responsibilities to pre-approve services performed by the independent auditor.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

TRIMERIS, INC.

May 2, 2005 By: /s/ Steven D. Skolsky

Steven D. Skolsky
Chief Executive Officer
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Fourth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant
Specimen certificate for shares of Common Stock.
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of the Corporation of the Registrant, filed as Exhibit 3.2).
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Adoption Agreement for the Trimeris, Inc. Employee 401(k) Plan.
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Executive Employment Agreement between Trimeris, Inc. and George W. Koszalka dated June 21, 2004.

Executive Employment Agreement by and between Trimeris, Inc. and Steven Skolsky dated September 8,
2004. 1

Incentive Stock Option Agreement by and between Trimeris, Inc. and Steven Skolsky dated September 9,
2004.

Restricted Stock Agreement by and between Trimeris, Inc. and Steven Skolsky dated September 9, 2004.

Development and License Agreement between Trimeris and Hoffmann-La Roche dated July 1, 1999
(Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to an order of the Commission granting confidential
treatment.). )

Financing Agreement between Trimeris, Inc. and Roche Finance Ltd. dated as of July 9, 1999.
Registration Rights Agreement between Trimeris, Inc. and Roche Finance Ltd. dated as of July 9, 1999.
Lease between Trimeris, Inc. and University Place Associates dated April 14, 1999.

Sublease Agreement between Trimeris, Inc. and PPD Development, LP dated June 30, 2004.

Lease Agreement and Amendments between PPD Development, LP (formerly PPD Pharmaco, Inc.) and
Weeks Realty, LP relating to Sublease Agreement filed as Exhibit 10.17 hereto.

Executive Agreement between Trimeris and Robert R. Bonczek dated January 7, 2000.
Employment Agreement between Trimeris, Inc. and M. Nixon Ellis dated March 31, 2000. t
Settlement Agreement and Release between Trimeris, Inc. and M. Nixon Ellis dated July 1, 2004. 1

Research Agreement between Trimeris, Inc., F. Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd, and Hoffmann-La Roche, Inc.
dated January 1, 2000 (Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to an order of the Commission
granting confidential treatment.).




10.24® Form of Purchase Agreement dated as of May 7, 2001 by and between Trimeris, Inc. and the purchasers set
forth on the signature page thereto.

10.25® Sublease Agreement dated as of December 14, 2001 between Trimeris, Inc. and Triangle Pharmaceuticals,
Inc.

10.26® Second Amendment dated as of January 21, 2002 between University Place Properties, LLC and Trimeris,
Inc.

10.27®  Form of Equity Option Confirmation for Call Transaction.

10.28@ First Amendment to the Research Agreement by and between Trimeris, Inc. and F. Hoffmann-La Roche
Ltd. And Hoffmann-La Roche Inc. dated November 13, 2003. (Portions of this exhibit have been omitted
pursuant to a request for confidential treatment filed with the Commission.)

10.29®  Form of Purchase Agreement dated as of January 23, 2002 by and between Trimeris, Inc. and the
purchasers set forth on the signature page thereto.

10.30tm  Rescission of the Amendment to the Development and License Agreement dated July 12, 2004.

10.31® Amendment to the Development and License Agreement between Trimeris, Inc. and Hoffman-La Roche
dated on July 12, 2004. (Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment filed with the Commission.)

10.32® Third Amendment of Lease between University Place Properties, LLC and Trimeris, Inc. dated May 28,
2003.

10.330 Agreement of Sublease by and between Gilead Sciences, Inc. and Trimeris, Inc.
10.34 + Description of compensation arrangement for Andrew L. Graham. *

10.35+ Description of non-management director compensation arrangements. T

23+ Consent of KPMG LLP.

31.1+ Rule 13a-14(a) Certification by Steven D. Skolsky as Chief Executive Officer
31.2+ Rule 13a-14(a) Certification by Robert R. Bonczek as Chief Financial Officer.
31.3 ** Rule 13a-14(a) Certification by Steven D. Skolsky as Chief Executive Officer
31.4 ** Rule 13a-14(a) Certification by Robert R. Bonczek as Chief Financial Officer.
32,1+ Section 1350 Certification by Steven D. Skolsky as Chief Executive Officer.
322+ Section 1350 Certification by Robert R. Bonczek as Chief Financial Officer.

t Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this form pursuant
to Item 15(a) of this report.

*  Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-31109)
initially filed with the Commission on July 11, 1997.

**  Filed herewith.

+  Previously filed.

(a) Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1999.

{b) Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999.

(c) Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000.

(d) Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000.

(e) Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001.

(f) Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 11, 2001.

(g) Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001.

(h) Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on January 30,
2002.

(i) Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 filed
with the Commission on March 25, 2002.

() Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 filed
with the Commission on March 27, 2003.

ﬁ



(k)
®

(m)
(n)

(©)
P

Incorporated by reference to Trimeris” Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003.
Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 filed
with the Commission on March 12, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to Trimeris” Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004.
Incorporated by reference to Trimeris” Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on September 10,
2004.

Incorporated by reference to Trimeris’ Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2003,
filed with the Commission on October 15, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to Trimeris” Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A for the quarter ended June 30, 2004,
filed with the Commission on October 15, 2004,

All financial statement schedules have been omitted because either they are not required, are not applicable or the

information is otherwise set forth in the Financial Statements and Notes thereto.




Exhibit 31.3
CERTIFICATION

I, Steven D. Skolsky, certify that:
I have reviewed this Amendment No.1 to Form 10-K of Trimeris, Inc.; and
Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a

material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report.

May 2, 2005

/s/  STEVEN D. SKOLSKY

Steven D. Skolsky
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.4
CERTIFICATION

I, Robert R. Bonczek, certify that:
I have reviewed this Amendment No. 1 to Form 10-K of Trimeris, Inc.; and
“Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a

material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report.

May 2, 2005

/s/ ROBERT R. BONCZEK

Robert R. Bonczek
Chief Financial Officer
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